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To provide for the return of certain property managed by the U.S. Army Corp . of Engineers 

Minutes: 1-6 Attachment 

Rep. Porter: We wi l l  open the hearing on HB 1338 

Rep. Brandenburg: The bi l l  that we have here deals with the Corp. Land and the high water 
level on both Lake Oahe and Lake Sakakawea to the takings l ine. We had a good meeting 
this morn ing with the tribes and the tribes are here today. I handed out an amendment 
(Attachment 1) the governor would work with the Corp. to get the land back. We may need 
to amendment these amendments; and ask the State of N.D.to return to the riparian owner 
through working with the Tribal Indian Affairs Division and the non-tribal land working with 
the State Land Dept. 

Rep. Schmidt: On l ine 8 we bel ieve it should be amended to 1620 and the 49286 amended 
to 493.70 

Rep. Brandenburg: I talked with Mr. Englehardt we may need to make some adjustments 
on those levels and I am open to that. 

Herb Grenz: I am representing four counties in N.D. that are affected by Lake Oahe and the 
counties are; Sioux, Morton,  Burleigh ,  and Emmons Counties. (Attachment 2) 

Rep. Brabandt: How many total acres were taken by the Corp.? 

Herb Grenz: In N. D. it is 550,000 acres. 

Rep. Brabandt: Just in N.D.? 

Herb Grenz: Yes when they narrowed up the south of Sioux City, Iowa, Nebraska, and 
Kansas they don't talk much about this but they gained about 250,000 acres. 
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Glenn McCrory: I l ive west of Linton on the Oahe Reservoir. There are places where the 
Corp. d idn't take property; for they took flowage easements. The wildl ife doesn't care if 
they are on the Corp . Land or if they are on private property. When the Corp . was talking 
about charging for water and you had to get a permit to get to the water. The th ing they left 
out was to get a permit to cross our land they d idn't think they needed a permit to cross our 
land. 

Merl in Leithold: I am with the N .D .  Weed Control Association; the words noxious weeds 
have been spread around on the two bi l ls . Our association deals not only with the city and 
county weeds boards in the state we also work with the Corp. and Game and Fish and 
other state agencies. The Corp. is trying; financially they don't know where they wi l l  be i n  
the next two years . I th ink the Corp . People would be more than wil l ing to g ive up some of 
that land so they wouldn't have to worry about spraying the land. They are also having 
problems find ing people to spray because no one wants to deal with the chemical anymore. 
We feel under state law we cannot as county weed officers go and force those that have 
federal to spray. We can force the State Land and the landowners to spray. 

Fred Fox: I am the Vice Chairman of the MHA Nation . I am here to present testimony on 
behalf of chairman Tex Hal l. (Attachment 3-4) I respectfully provide this testimony i n  
opposition to HB 1338. We also oppose the HCR 3010 both of which address the return of 
access lands around Lake Sakakawea. We will stand with you in your efforts to regain the 
access lands in N .D .  that were taken outside the Nation; but we wi l l  continue to fight any 
effort by the state to acquire the lands that were taken unjustly from the MHA. I urge you to 
clarify this bi l l  that does not apply to the access lands taken in the boundaries of Fort 
Berthold and Standing Rock Reservations. 

Rep. Porter: With that language going back to the exterior boundaries of the two 
reservations and the checker board effect of the land where some of it is held in title and 
some of it is fee land and some owned by nontribal members at the time of the taking . How 
do we address their concerns as citizens in the state of N. D.? 

Fred Fox: I nclude us in the tribal governments and for us to have a government to 
government relationsh ip to return these homelands. But having a bi l l  exclude us and not 
recogn izing us as a member of these taken lands. We want to be sure that you mention 
the Mandan Hidatsa and Arikara Nation and the Standing Rock Sioux tribe. 

Rep. Porter: So does the amendment need to say all lands on the exterior boundaries of 
that reservation, it's any trust lands of the exterior boundaries of that reservation so that the 
title land is excluded to whoever the previous owner was.  

Fred Fox. Yes. 

Chris Rausch: Attorney with in-house legal department with the Stand ing Rock Sioux Tribe. 
I am joined today with Evert l roneyes who is the Water Resource Director for the tribe. We 
understand that there are amendments that are being d iscussed and that are being passed 
around. The thing that I would to point out is that in the testimony that you have before you 
which is Charles Murphy's testimony (Attachment 5) is to be part of these d iscussions. We 
are opposed to the bill as it is presently written .  
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Michael McEnroe: N .D. Chapter of Wildl ife Society; I am here to oppose HB 1338 which 
calls for the return of certain property along Lake Oahe and Lake Sakakawea to returned to 
the neighboring landowners .  (Attachment 6) 

Rep. Keiser: If the state or some entity used commendation to take land and then later on 
decided not to use that land for the purpose for which the commendation occurred. Should 
that land go back to the owner? 

Michael McEnroe: That is the process that was done in South Dakota about 10 years ago. 

Rep. Keiser: In your opinion should that land go back to the property owner? 

Michael McEnroe: No it should not. It should go to the tribe or to the state and that is the 
process that was done in South Dakota 10 years ago. 

Mike Donahue: N .D .  Wild l ife Federation; and as in the past we are opposed to this activity 
and we are opposed to HB 1338 and ask for a do not pass. 

Rep. Porter: We wil l close the hearing on HB 1338. 
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Minutes: 1-2 Attachment 

Rep. Porter: We wil l open HB 1338. 

Rep. Schmidt: Introduces the amendments .2001 and then a copy of 1338 with those 
amendments in it. (Attachment 1) We have input from Standing Rock and Three Affi l iated 
Tribes with respect to those amendments. 

Rep. Porter: The way the amendment reads and the marked up version reads it still says to 
the neighboring land owners. 

Rep. Schm idt: That should be removed . 

Rep. Porter: I some concern with us tel l ing the governor to support an agreement that we 
haven't reviewed. 

Rep .  Schmidt: That wordage is from Standing Rock and the Three Affi l iated Tribes they 
understand the wordage better than I. 

Rep. Keiser: In the original bi l l  is there a way that on line 9 to strike "neighboring" and put 
"landowners as of a date certain"? 

Rep .  Schmidt: That should be "land outside the reservation boundaries the land wou ld be 
returned to the state of N .D ." 

Rep. Porter: I am very hesitant to open this up to a hearing level of d iscussion based that 
language. If the tribes want to have language l ike this placed in the bi l l  and it passes the 
house then, they can speak during the senate committee hearing so al l  sides can be there .  
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Rep. Schmidt: The governor cannot negotiate with the Corp of Engineers for the return of 
return of land on the reservation. 

Rep. Porter: We should have a 2002 amendment. 

Rep. Schmidt: Now you have the 2002 for the amendments and then attached to that we 
have the bi ll as it would be with those amendments. (Attachment 2) I wi l l  move that we 
accept those amendments 2002 for HB 1338. 

Rep. Porter: We have a second from Rep. Silbernagel. 

Rep. Kelsh: What happens if the lands are transferred back to the state? 

Rep. Schmidt: This is simi lar to what happen to the state of S .D .  with the return of the corp. 
lands which went back to the state. I n  the Oahe side of the river already maintains the 
noxious weed control as wel l  as all the management. 

Rep. Brabandt: How many acres are we talking about? 

Rep .  Schmidt: About 40,000 acres. 

Rep .  Hunskor: Do you see the intent of this that the land would stay as it has been? 

Rep .  Schmidt: I don't see the state doing anything else with that. 

Rep. Porter: The mineral rights stay with the individual that owned the land when it was 
taken .  

Rep. Keiser: Orig inally the land was owned by somebody and then the Army Corp .  of 
Engineers took the land. We are asking for the Army Corp . to that land back to the state of 
N .D .  Are asking the state to give the land back to the original owners? 

Rep .  Schmidt: The landowners had to give up ownership for that land and it up to 1620 in 
elevation .  A lot of that land was purchased in 1964-1966 that was for flood protection. A lot 
of those acres never flooded before 2011 and so the state of N .D .  has maintained the land 
so why shouldn't the state get possession of those lands? 

Rep. Keiser: If I cou ld get the land back I would be happy to maintain it and it seems fair  to 
give it to the owner of that land . 

Rep. Schmidt: I agree; the landowners that I represent would be more than to leave the 
infrastructure under state control .  

Rep. Porter: I wou ld view this amended version of this bi l l  as being step one of the 
negotiation process to then look at the states infrastructure and the state of N .D .  
investment and then have the next level of negotiation with the owner after i t  came back to 
the states control .  
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Rep.  Froseth: Would the intent of this be that any land that is suitable for grazing or farming 
would be leased or sold to the orig inal landowner or anyone interested in the land. 

Rep. Porter: That is why I think this is step one. You can't have the land going back to the 
landowner without the consideration of the state to decide which land should or not be 
returned to the individual landowners. 

Rep .  Schmidt: We were required to give up ownership of that land and a number of acres 
of that land is h igher than the elevation of the dam. They had to rel inquish ownership of 
agriculture lands because they were going to flood . But most of that land only flooded once 
and that was in 2011. 

Rep. Hofstad : I am concerned because most of the testimony came from landowners and I 
hope it is the intent that that we wi l l  negotiate with the landowners. 

Rep. Porter: Voice vote carries. We have the amended version of HB 1338. We have a 
motion for a do pass as amended By Rep. Schmidt and a second from Rep. Nathe. 

Yes 9 No 4 Absent 0 Carrier: Rep. Schmidt 
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Title. 03000 

Adopted by the Energy and Natural Resources 
Committee 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO.  1338 

Page 1 I line 21 replace "corp" with "corps" 

Page 1 I line 21 replace "neighboring landowners" with "state of North Dakota" 

Page 1 I line 51 replace "landowners" with "state" 
Page 1 I line 71 after "lands" insert "outside the boundaries of the Fort Berthold Indian 

Reservation" 

Page 1 I line 8 1  after "lands" insert "outside the boundaries of the Standing Rock Sioux 
Reservation" 

Page 1 ,  line 8 ,  replace " 1 ,6 1 7" with " 1 ,620" 

Page 1 ,  line 8, replace "492.86" with "493 .86" 

Page 1 ,  line 91 replace "neighboring landowners" with "state of North Dakota. Any agreement 
for the return of lands described under this section must include provisions for the 
protection of native cultural and religious sites. artifacts. and human remains. The 
governor may support tribal efforts in negotiating with the United States army corps of 
engineers" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No . 1 
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Module ID: h_stcomrep_34_020 
Carrier : Schmidt 

Insert LC: 13.0547.02005 Title: 03000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1338: Energy and Natural Resources Committee (Rep. Porter, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends 
DO PASS (9 YEAS, 4 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1338 was placed 
on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 2, replace "corp" with "corps" 

Page 1, line 2, replace "neighboring landowners" with "state of North Dakota" 

Page 1, line 5, replace "landowners" with "state" 

Page 1, line 7, after "lands" insert "outside the boundaries of the Fort Berthold Indian 
Reservation" 

Page 1, line 8, after "lands" insert "outside the boundaries of the Standing Rock Sioux 
Reservation" 

Page 1, line 8, replace "1.617" with "1.620" 

Page 1, line 8, replace "492.86" with "493.86" 

Page 1, line 9, replace "neighboring landowners" with "state of North Dakota. Any agreement 
for the return of lands described under this section must include provisions for the 
protection of native cultural and religious sites. artifacts. and human remains. The 
governor may support tribal efforts in negotiating with the United States army corps 
of engineers" 

Renumber accordingly 

(1 ) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_34_020 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to provide for the return of certain property managed by the United States 
army corps of engineers to the state of North Dakota. 

Minutes: 

Chairman Dever: Opened the hearing on HB 1338. 

Representative Brandenburg, District 28: Testified as sponsor and to explain the b i l l .  

Senator Erbele from my d istrict is in ful l  support of this b i l l  as wel l  and wanted i t  on the 

record as such. This bill has quite a h istory. We are talking about the land that is above the 

water and has never had a drop of water. It goes from the edge of the water to the takings 

l ine. It is a huge amount of land. It was taken for flood protection and generation. I have 

been in contact with the tribes on this bi l l  and they are way ahead of is on th is issue and 

they wi l l  speak to that. When this land was taken by the army corps of engineers, it was 

not taken right and that is why we are here talking about it. We are working with the 

Governor to negotiate to get this land back to the state. There are many interests in the 

land and there is a reason why it keeps coming back into conversation. There were 

m istakes made when it was done back in the 60's. This needs to be addressed, and I th i nk 

the parties are coming together and working together. 

(5:45) Senator Cook: What happens with the mineral rights; do you assume that they get 

severed? 
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Representative Brandenburg: That is another issue that we will have to talk about with all 

the parties that are concerned here. We are trying to first negotiate with the federal 

government and figure that out after that point. 

Senator Cook: Can the Governor negotiate with the corps and get this land without this bill? 

Representative Brandenburg: I believe he has been working on it for some time to a 

certain amount, but I think there are other parties interested in working with h im and being 

a part of it, and if we put more emphasis on it then we can get this done together. 

Senator Cook: We have received a lot of e mails on this with concerns of this becoming 

private land and will no longer be open for recreational purposes that many use it for today. 

How do you speak to that concern? What do see this land ultimately being used for? 

Representative Brandenburg: Representative Porter and I have been having d iscussions 

on th is and there are interests for everyone here. There are interests for everyone here. 

There are the Native American interests, hunting interests, wi ldl ife, tourism, fishing, 

agricu lture, etc. That is why, as we go along here, we are continuously making changes to 

deal with all of those interests because I think everybody has a play in this land .  There 

needs to be some changes done. I know there is some concern about there need ing to be 

a fiscal note regarding the surveying and appraisal costs. I th ink many wou ld g ladly pay 

the costs to get their land back. It is a minimal cost to deal with the issue. 

Chairman Dever: I understand if we recover this land, that someone becomes responsible 

for things l ike noxious weeds and those kinds of things. 

Representative Brandenburg: Thank you for bringing that up. Everyone knows about the 

problems that have come from the past from the noxious weeds that the corps does take 

care of. There is defin itely a problem with weed control on the corps land . Think of the 

economic return that this land could have back to the state. There is a lot of land here that 
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could be turned back into economic development and I think the state can do a much better 

job dealing with it. 

(12:40) Senator Schaible: My understanding of this is that land that is not used for water 

mitigation or flood protection in the original mission of the corps - that is what you are 

looking at. The corps has that control and does what they want with it currently and I think 

the idea is that the Governor would negotiate to get the land back into the state and they 

would decide what would happen with that land at that point. 

Representative Brandenburg: Absolutely- there are steps to this and then the state can 

figure out what to do with this . 

Chairman Dever: The bill says 1854 feet for Lake Sakakawea, what does that represent? 

Is that where the spillway is? 

Representative Brandenburg: It is 6 or 8 feet above the highest the water has ever hit. 

We are 27 feet lower right now. 

Chairman Dever: Is this an all or nothing thing or does the Governor have the ability to 

negotiate what would be favorable to the state? 

Representative Brandenburg: Before I make any negotiation or compromise- I think 

others should speak to this issue. 

(15:55) Representative Schmidt, District 31: Testified in support of the bil l. I wil l  talk only 

to the portion that affects my district. Some private land owners retained their mineral 

rights and some did not. I have no idea why some were able to keep them and some had to 

release them. I understand that if the state takes these lands over, the state retains those 

mineral rights. 

Chairman Dever: Do you now if at that time if it was done by negotiation or by immanent 

domain? 
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Representative Schmidt: At that time, my fami ly had to give up ownership of 434 acres. 

We had to either sign for $51 per acre with the corps or they would take it by eminent 

domain .  There were no state agencies there to help these land owners whatsoever. There 

was no protection and no help from anyone other than the fami l ies on their own with the 

corps. I started into this is 1996 with the corps. I filed the freedom of information act and I 

have a number of boxes of documents and I want to review some important points that 

brought us to where we are. 

(17:45) (Gave some figures and statements that apply to the area in question when it was 

orig inally acquisitioned and read from the documentation in the 60's and late 50's. ) 

(23:55) As far as I can tel l  from the maps that we have been looking at over the years, unti l 

2011, no more than 30 acres of that track that we have has ever been flooded . Why they 

did not take flowage easements on that land is beyond our estimation. People were forced 

to rel inquish ownership on that land . 

Chairman Dever: Can we narrow the focus on this? Everyone here wou ld probably agree 

that the corps took more land than what was necessary, and given the fact that in South 

Dakota they negotiated some of that back, that is a possibility in North Dakota . The 

question is whether we should or not. I am saying that in the interest of time. We can 

probably all agree that we don't l ike the corps. My interest, and probably yours too, is that 

in this process that we protect the interests of hunting and fishing .  I appreciate your passion 

on this issue. 

(25:50) Representative Schmidt: I have been in touch and have had conversations with 

the Deputy Commissioner for lands in South Dakota, and I have an e mai l that he sent me 

that outl ines what the state of South Dakota on how they ach ieved that. I also have 

testimony that was provided by Paul Kaufmann, the Lands Program Administrator for South 
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Dakota Game and Fish that he presented to the natural resources committee on March 4th. 

Apparently from the South Dakota perspective, the corps has given them this $108 mi l l ion 

trust fund for which the state can operate some of their efforts from. My last comment is 

that they acquired lands above the 1620 elevation, even up to 1680; which means that the 

capitol would have to almost have to be flooded for this land to be flooded. There is no 

effort on the constituents that I represent to interfere with the existing recreational 

structures or plans already establ ished . 

(27:25)Senator Schaible: As you mentioned the river level, they were talking about 1617 

on the south half and they mitigated to 1620- which is basically where the water rises and 

lowers. Even if you go to 1630, I th ink what you are looking at is the land that is way above 

that that never gets wet and does not have any access to the river, is that correct? 

Representative Schmidt: Yes it is. 

Senator Schaible: The intent is not to hinder the wild life areas and establ ished areas that 

we have access to fishing and hunting, but to return the land that is not used for these 

things and get that back into the state control to decide what is best for that land rather than 

the corps? 

Representative Schmidt: Yes. North Dakota Game and Fish has been very cooperative 

with us to try to ach ieve some of those management efforts that we need to do, however, 

funds are obviously l im ited to do that. 

Senator Schaible: So of the opposition says that doing this might be detrimental to the 

state, as we might inherit a problem that is larger than what we want. I guess the other 

concern is that we receive all of the headaches that the land includes if  we get i t  back.  

(30:02)Herbert Grenz, Resident: See Attachment #1 for testimony in support of the bi l l. 
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(50:50) Chairman Dever: Have you had conversations with the corps on transferring that 

land back to you? 

Herbert Grenz: Yes. 

Chairman Dever: What has been their reaction? 

Herbert Grenz: No. (51 :00) Returns to testimony. 

(52:00) Chairman Dever: We wi l l  go through your testimony further and we do appreciate 

your time and we do appreciate your position on the bill. 

(53:00) Glenn McCrory, Resident: See Attachment #2 for testimony in support of the b i l l .  

(58:03)Chairman Dever: The problem that I have with this is that I sympathetic with those 

in support of the bi l l  and those in opposition to the bi l l .  We have some time to look at all of 

this and hear from you and address those concerns. I think that interest is in protecting 

hunting and fishing . 

Opposition Testimony 

(1 :00:1 0) Mike McEnroe, North Dakota Chapter of the Wildlife Society: See 

Attachment # 3 for testimony in opposition to the bi l l, and in favor of the North Dakota 

Game and Fish Departments neutral testimony. 

(1 :03:30) Chairman Dever: When you mention the South Dakota situation, do you see that 

as a positive outcome to the process? 

Mike McEnroe: In South Dakota it was. North Dakota was invited to participate in the same 

process. I think that could work in North Dakota. The process was to transfer those federal 

publ ic lands to the Game, Fish, and Parks Department and to the tribal authorities to be 

managed for the federal project purposes. 

Chairman Dever: That was an all or noth ing thing? 

Mike McEnroe: That is correct. 
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Senator Schaible: With al l of this land, who should be paying to take care of the noxious 

weed problem that we have? 

Mike McEnroe: I believe that it is the managing agency's responsibil ity. 

(1 :05:10) Terry Fleck, Friends of Lake Sakakawea: See Attachment #4 in opposition to 

the bi l l. 

(1 :07:02) Vice Chairman Berry: What is your major objection to this bi l l? 

Terry Fleck: Our position is that there are no excess lands. That was the position that we 

took when the corps tried to g ive the land back in 2006 to the three affi l iated tribes and 

Standing Rock. When I answer your question that there are no excess lands, it is because I 

don't believe that we have an excess lands in terms of how we are going to manage all of 

this because the federal government either is in or they are out. That is a d ifficu lt thing to 

have to work with. I cal led the corps this morning and tried to figure out a way to solve the 

weeds problem. It is resolvable except for one real challenge, and that is that the federal 

government has no money. When the water goes down on the big lake, the challenge is 

where does the corps get more money to take care of the weeds. 

Vice Chairman Berry: Because they are either in or out? 

Terry Fleck: Correct. 

(1 :10:38) Mike Donahue, North Dakota Wildlife Federation: Testified in opposition to the 

bi l l. We do not think that there are excess lands to begin with, and secondly, when HB 1338 

started on the House side it was to return the property to the neighboring land owners and 

then it was amended to get the state to negotiate and look at returning some land . We 

th ink that the amendment is nothing but a sham. We think the objective is to get it to the 

state and then in time, start pushing for the state to give it to neighboring land owners. 

(1 :11 :38) Chairman Dever: Do you see a way to construct this bi l l  to address both sides? 
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Mike Donahue: No I do not. 

(1 :12:36) Bill Helphrey, North Dakota Bowhunter's Association: Testified in opposition 

to the b i l l .  For more than 60 years, the public has been using this corps of engineers land 

for recreational purposes. Land was purchased by the corps of engineers as part of the 

Garrison Dam project for flood control and this flood control was to save l ives and the 

property of the taxpayers. The need of this land as corps land was demonstrated in the 

flood of 2011. Areas within the 1620 foot elevation along the river were completely under 

water. Whi le I am speaking only of the area around Bismarck/Mandan because I am most 

fam i l iar with that, this bill applies to the whole river area from South Dakota al l  the way 

through Garrison and up to Wil l iston. The Kimball bottom area, south of Mandan, has been 

used over the past 60 years by deer and pheasant hunters, campers, h ikers, fishermen, 

bird watchers, rifle and pistol shooters, wild mushroom hunters, boaters, jet ski operators, 

paint-bailers, d irt bike riders, dog walkers, and the North Dakota National Guard .  Thirteen 

boat ramps along this area could be affected. In the Bismarck/Mandan area there are 

approximately 100,000 taxpayers which are either using or could be using this recreational 

area. The population of North Dakota is going up and the amount of land for recreational 

use is not. If it ain't broke, don't fix it! What is broken here that needs fixed? 

(1 :15:15) Chairman Dever: A previous speaker said that it would cost $20 mi l l ion to have 

the land that we are d iscussing surveyed? Shou ldn't there be a corps of engineers map? 

Bill Halfrey: I do not know what maps they have or how accurate they wou ld be. We have 

accuracy today that we d id not have 60 years ago. 

(1 :16:10) Mike Gunsch, Friends of Lake Sakakawea: See Attachment #5 for testimony i n  

opposition to the bil l . 
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Neutral Testimony 

(1 :22:30)Todd Sando, State Engineer, North Dakota State Water Commission: See 

Attachment #6 for testimony in a neutral position . 

(1 :25:35) Chairman Dever: Have you been a part of previous conversations with the corps 

towards this end? 

Todd Sando: I have dealt with the corps of engineers for my whole career so we have 

gone through many issues. 

Chairman Dever: Have there been, as a part of those conversations, d iscussions on 

noxious weeds? Can some of that be above some the elevations referred to here? Is there 

anyth ing we can do to address both sides of this? 

Todd Sando: I do feel for the landowners and the issues with what they have to deal with 

for access to their pastures and fencing out and the issues with weeds. There has to be 

some way to get the corps to do a much better job than what they are doing. I think we 

should never give up on that cause. It is inappropriate how the federal government has 

treated adjacent land owners. 

Chairman Dever: On the map that Mr. Gunsch provided, my in-laws have a cabin and if 

that would be considered excess, I am not sure what we would do with that. In 1997 their 

survey marker was under 7 feet of water and it took out their retain ing wal l  and I think that 

is a point that the corps made a major mistake when it was surveyed for which they take no 

responsibi l ity. 

Todd Sando: There are examples of taking too much land , and some not taking enough .  

We have high  banks that are erod ing back to private land and cabins that are right next to 

major cut banks, etc. There are issues both directions. 

Chairman Dever: There are issues that we should address somehow. 
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Todd Sando: Yes. 

(1 : 28:40) Jeb Williams, Assistant Wildlife Division Chief: See Attachment #7 for 

testimony in a neutral position. 

(1 :31 :10)Senator Schaible: What would your answer be to the noxious weed problem? 

Jeb Williams: The noxious weed problem shou ld be on the agency in charge. North 

Dakota Game and Fish is not perfect, but we do a very d i l igent job. We budget 

approximately $650,000 each biennium which we do the best job possible on our lands that 

we manage and other agencies have that responsibil ity as wel l .  

Chairman Dever: What is our abil ity to require that the federal agency deal with it? 

Jeb Williams: I cannot say that they have done things perfectly but there has been some 

effort in prior years. We have worked together on weed task force meeting and there is 

better coordination and communication. As far as fixing the federal noxious weed problem 

is beyond my scope as far as funding. 

(1 : 32:47) Jeff Magrum, Emmons County Commissioner: Testified in a neutral position 

on the bil l .  The corps has fenced up to the middle of a lot of our section l ines, so the 

access is not avai lable to the river and as far as using the land, I know that they can't take 

four wheelers or anything out there. It is pretty l im ited use and there is a lot of land 

available for use besides what is above the high water mark.  I am also a member of the 

Hazelton Fire Department and the weeds are a problem for the rural fire departments. 

They catch on f ire and we can't stop it. It gets onto the private lands and it is a huge 

burden on our Hazelton Rural Fire Department. Roads have been washed out that they say 

they will fix with a min imum of 10 years so the county had to fix them at our expense . 

(1 : 34:48) Mark Zimmerman, North Dakota Parks and Recreation: See Attachment # 8 

for testimony in a neutral position on the bi l l .  
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(1 :35:35) Deputy Adjutant General, AI Dohrman: See Attachment #9 for testimony i n  a 

neutral position on the bill. 

(1 :36:23) Michael Brand, Department of Trust Lands: See Attachment #1 0 for a neutral 

position on the bill. 

See Attachment #11 for testimony dropped off in opposition to the bill. 

Chairman Dever: Closed the hearing on HB 1338. 
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Committee Clerk Signature 

Minutes: 

Chairman Dever: Opened HB  1338 for committee d iscussion. See Attachment #1 for 

p roposed amendments brought by Senator Schaible. We visited with the Governor and we 

talked about the fact that we wou ld l ike to see some action on this so we don't want to just 

turn it i n  to a study. I got the impression that he is not ready to deal with this issue. We put 

together this language and asked the Governor's office to make some adjustments to it and 

they fol lowed that. They think it is better under the board of university and school lands. 

The Governor would have input as well. They would explore options that would consider 

control of noxious weeds, protecting public access for hunting and fish ing, the costs 

associated with the transition, the costs associated with maintain ing any property, include 

the i nterests of the tribes, and they can put together a task force of stakeholders if they 

would l ike and report to legislative management. Part of the concern that the Governor had 

was that the way the bi l l  was written, it wou ld seem to apply to a l l  excess lands and this 

approach wou ld a llow them to consider what lands may be appropriate for a transfer. 

Senator Cook: Why the appropriations? 

Chairman Dever: The Governor said to have a taskforce, if we are asking private citizens 

to come and meet, that we should cover their expenses and that $50,000 would be 

adequate to do that. 
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Senator Cook: I thi nk the type of people we would want there would g ladly come on the i r  

own d ime. 

Chairman Dever: I certain ly don't d isagree with that. 

Senator Cook: Moved Section 1 of amendments. 

Senator Poolman: Seconded. 

Chairman Dever: I think the intent is that any steak holders would be peop le that do have 

an  i nterest i n  it. 

Senator Nelson: On the discussion on who would be attending, when I look here, fish ing 

and hunting and organizations are al l  here. There would not be any expense for those and 

these two guys that testified here probably could afford to come and talk to the Governor. 

Senator Marcellais: When I look at this bi l l  we d id not have any tribal input. There are 

treaties i nvolved i n  this and the department of interior should be i nvolved i n  this. 

Chairman Dever: We d id add i n  the consideration of the North Dakota tribes. 

Senator Marcellais: When I look at the original  bi l l, it says Standing Rock S ioux Tribe only. 

When I talked to Mr. Fox who was here during the testimony, he said there are treaties 

involved in this. Any time there is excess land or bui ld ings from the federa l  government, 

the first one it goes back to is the tribes when it is a government to government 

relationship. 

Chairman Dever: The reference in the bi l l  is to land outside the boundaries of Ft. Berthold 

and outside the boundaries of Standing Rock and I thi nk that was with the perception they 

are doing their negotiations separately but that they should coordinate with one another. 

Senator Marcellais: Governor Hoven cou ld have settled this years ago when they met with 

h im. 
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Chairman Dever: We are speaking to the amendment and it does not speak to the specific 

tribes any longer. 

Senator Cook: This is a hog-house amendment and it is only referencing the interests of 

North Dakota tribes. 

Senator Schaible: When we talked to the Governor, he also had the concerns - he was 

aware of the treaties or the negotiations that the tribes are doing, and that was his concern. 

That is the premise of this idea. It is better for him to lead the group and the area that that 

pertains to. This way, he brings those people together and their concerns come together 

and then they go from there. He was happy with this, and since we are recommending that 

he does something, I think that is a more balanced approach. 

Senator Marcellais: I don't see the Department of Interior in the amendment and they are 

accountable for the trust lands. The Corps of Engineers has nothing to do with the tribal 

lands. 

Senator Nelson: That would be limiting this to non-tribal lands. 

Chairman Dever: Is  the land under the control of the Corps of Engineers or is it under the 

control of the Department of I nterior? 

Senator Marcella is: Trust responsibility is under the control of the Department of I nterior. 

Chairman Dever: Wasn't that land transferred to the Army Corps of Engineers when the 

dam was built? 

Senator Marcellais: I have no idea. 

Chairman Dever: I think what we are doing with this is putting in place something for the 

Governor to oversee. We are not calling it a study, but they are going to study it and 

explore the options and come up with some solutions and I think they are going to take into 

account a l l  of those different considerations. We did not specifica l ly put the tribes on the 
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taskforce because my understanding is that the tribes negotiate separately for the areas 

that they have interest in. 

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 6 yeas, 1 nay, 0 absent. 

Motion Carries. 

Senator Schaible: Moved a Do Pass As Amended. 

Senator Poolman: Seconded. 

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 6 yeas, 1 nay, 0 absent. 

Senator Schaible: Carrier. 



1 3.054 7.03001 
Title. 04 000 

Adopted by the Government and Veterans 
Affairs Committee � _, '·IIJ' ". April 4 ,  zo1 3 '3r'?J 

PRO POSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1 338 

Page 1 ,  line 1 ,  after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to provide for a 
board of university and school lands study of private lands owned adjacent to lands 
under the control of the United States army corps of engineers and a report to the 
legislative management. 

BE IT ENACTE D  BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. STUDY BY BOARD OF UNIVERSITY AND SCHOOL LANDS­
REPORT T O  LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT. During the 201 3-14 interim, the board of 
university and school lands shall study options to address the concerns of landowners 
adjacent to land under the control of the United States army corps of engineers 
surrounding Lake Sakakawea and Lake Oahe. The study must include consideration of 
control of noxious weeds, protecting public access for hunting and fishing, the costs of 
possible transition of land from the United States army corps of engineers, and the 
costs associated with maintaining any property that may become a responsibility of the 
state. The study must also include consideration of the interests of North Dakota Indian 
tribes. The board may establish a task force consisting of landowners, hunting and 
fishing organizations, the game and fish department, the parks and recreation 
department, the North Dakota national guard, and other parties that utilize the land for 
access. Before October 1 ,  2014, the board shall provide to the legislative management 
a report on the outcome of this study." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 1 3.054 7.03001 
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Com Standing Committee Report 
April 5, 2013 9:12am 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_61_004 
Carrier: Schaible 

Insert LC: 13.0547.03001 Title: 04000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1338, as engrossed: Government and Veterans Affairs Committee (Sen . Dever, 

Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, 
recommends DO PASS (6 YEAS, 1 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). 
Engrossed HB 1338 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to provide for a 
board of university and school lands study of private lands owned adjacent to lands 
under the control of the United States army corps of engineers and a report to the 
legislative management. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH D AKOTA: 

SECTION 1. STUDY BY BOARD OF UNIVERSITY AND SCHOOL LANDS -
REPORT TO LEGISLATIVE M ANAGEMENT. During the 2013-14 interim, the board 
of university and school lands shall study options to address the concerns of 
landowners adjacent to land under the control of the United States army corps of 
engineers surrounding Lake Sakakawea and Lake Oahe. The study must include 
consideration of control of noxious weeds, protecting public access for hunting and 
fishing, the costs of possible transition of land from the United States army corps of 
engineers, and the costs associated with maintaining any property that may become 
a responsibility of the state. The study must also include consideration of the 
interests of North Dakota Indian tribes. The board may establish a task force 
consisting of landowners, hunting and fishing organizations, the game and fish 
department, the parks and recreation department, the North Dakota national guard, 
and other parties that utilize the land for access. Before October 1, 2014, the board 
shall provide to the legislative management a report on the outcome of this study." 

Renumber accordingly 

(1 ) DESK (3) COMMITIEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_61 _004 
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2013 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

House Energy and Natural Resources 

Pioneer Room, State Capital 

HB 1338 
April 18, 2013 

21232 

1:8:1 Conference Committee 

attached testimony." 

Present were: Rep. Brabandt, Rep. Si lbernagel, Rep . Kelsh, Senator Schaible, Senator 
Dever, and Senator Nelson 

Rep. Brabandt: We will call HB 1338 to order. I wil l  read a h istory of the bi l l  so that we 
know what we are doing here. There is a revised fiscal note for approximately $118,000. 
1:00 - 5:45 

Senator: Schaible: The governor shall was mentioned in the f irst part of the bi l l, so we 
thought it was important to talk to the governor. We d id have several meetings with the 
governor to get his input. That is the premise for what we d id. The language that sets 
before you is from his department. 

Rep. Si lbernagel: Did you say the bi l l  has been passed to appropriate the dol lars to fund 
the majority this project? 

Rep. Brabandt: Yes. It has appropriated $50,000 and when this bi l l  is passed another 
$50,000 wou ld be available. 

Senator Dever: When we took this to be drafted it said "shal l explore options" and the 
legislative counci l put "study options" The governor cou ld do this without legislative 
authorization this is positive action. 

Rep .  Brabandt: I agree. 

Rep. Kelsh: You said there would be $100,000 avai lable yet the f inal fiscal note is 
$118,000? Where is the d ifference? 
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Rep. Brabandt: The revised fiscal note is from Chairman Porter and it says total estimated 
cost is $118,000. 

Senator Schaible: I move that the house accede to the senate amendments. 

Rep . Brabandt: We have a motion and a second from Senator Nelson for the house to 
accede to the senate amendments. We will adjourn the meeting. 

Yes 6 No 0 Absent 0 Carrier: Rep. Brabandt 



1 3.0547.04000 

Amendment to: HB 1 338 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

04/09/2013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I I d · r  r ·  t d  d I eve s an appropna 10ns an ICIPa e un er current aw. 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 

Expenditures $141 ,680 

Appropriations 

2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

The Bill d irects the Land Board to study management and possible acquisition of federal land adjacent to Lakes 
Sakakawea and Oahe. It must include coordination of landowners, sportsmen, tribes and other agencies. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 1 of the Bill is the entirety and it does not include an appropriation for the costs of the mandated review, task 
force administration and staff time, or the cost of formulating and documenting recommendations. The Board's 
budget is entirely special funds, and it is not able to divert these funds to other uses. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

NA 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The cost estimate assumes the hiring of a contractor to undertake the study and includes anticipated compensation 
and expenses related to travel, information gathering, research, information technology, public relations, legal and 
administrative support. 



C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

There is no money appropriated or available within the Land Board's discretion to undertake the actions directed in 
the Bill. 

Name: Lance Gaebe 

Agency: Department of Trust Lands 

Telephone: 701 328-2800 
Date Prepared: 0411 1/201 3  
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complete this a study, thus·a contractor would be secured. 

4) Timeline involves review of state and federal laws and regulations, stakeholder 

meetings in state and WDC, task force review and report preparation. 

S)Report likely to be presented by task force representation, with Land Board as the 

facilitator, not study author. 

Suggested time line 

2013 July-13  
July 1 - 31 
August 1 - 21 
Aug 22 - Sept 4 

Sept 

Sept/OcflNov 

Dec/Jan 
2014  

Feb/March 
Apri l - June 
July 
August 

Fuilding availabhf • . . .  , , 
Develop RFP outline and �ntract parame.tt7r$. · 

Advertise contract and a�pt:Pr'Qp()$al$ · . 

Interview applicants and aY@rQ Qo.Otf!a:¥t_ . 

Develop Website to inform pu�lic t>f the issues, meetings and progresS Website wm also allow public to submit written comments and suggestions 
This project. will require public involvement and transparency 

M�etwith theQS Arrny;(;ojp,s :Of-Engineers, study Corp regulations. 
and study diveli!titl.!re prbc�ss ofC<m:>s lands fn o!he� s,ta� .. 1: · ' , ' � 

'·: ' > ;, -�,,��� ;� /:,c, / f� �.'> ' •' ,_' ,' ,' ' --, : Meet with special interest gi:oyp�. �nd agencies to gather t!lelr input 
Meet with tribes and BIA 1 : ; • 

. · . , 1 ·. ,> · · . • •  •· •, • .· ••• . · 
Hold public meetings in: e�¢1'1 of the .10 counties adjoining the re�tvo)rs' 
Advertising to provide pubiic notiCe 
Coordinate drafting · of study with task force of interest groups and agencies . 
D�ft on web for public comment period � no publlo meetings 
Complete final study document 

.land Board/t 

coritaCior · 

· �,-an� soaralc septemtJer October Present final stUdy doCQI1liin� to Laf!d Board . 
. .  Land Boardrra.�k .fQr<;:Ei, fqnvard� sJp�y �o legisl<l�iv� .. rqMag�Qt_ . .  _ .. � 

Budget 

In-state stakeholder 
meetings 
Public meetings 

Meetings in D.C. 
Computer Services 
web site 
Interest Groups 
Task Force 
legal 
work product 

Department of Trust La 

Support & overhead 

Total Estimated Cost 

$12,000 Travel from Williston to Linton and Keene to Fort Yates 
and all points and agencies in-between 

$6,500 1 0  Public meetings in-state 
two people travel and lodging at $500 per meeting and 
meeting room rental 

$5,200 Assumes 2 people: airfare $1 ,000, motel $1 ,200, meals $400 
$1 5,000 the website, data collection, and data 11nalysis. 

$22,500 Meetings with tribes, agencies and special interest groups. 
Organize9 groups need to have input other than the public meetings. 

$1 5,000 Review legal questions: minerals, title, survey, management, access. 
$32,000 Consideration of public input, laws and tribal rights and desires. 

Preparing of final study document. 

$1 5,000 Department costs of contact preparation, negotiation, oversight. 

$1 8,480 1 5% overhead for support staff, office space, and supplies 

$141 ,680 

' . 
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Com Conference Committee Report 
April 18, 2013 11:36am 

Module ID: h_cfcomrep_69_001 

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
HB 1338, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Schaible, Dever, Nelson and 

Reps. Brabandt, Silbernagel, S. Kelsh) recommends that the HOUSE ACCEDE to 
the Se nate amendments as printed on HJ pages 1 260-1 26 1  and place HB 1 338 o n  
the Seventh order. 

E ngrossed HB 1 338 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar. 
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1 3.054 7. 02001 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Brandenburg 

January 25, 201 3 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1 338 

Page 1 , line 2, replace "corp" with "corps" 

Page 1, line 2, replace "neighboring landowners" with "state of North Dakota" 

Page 1 ,  line 9, after "the" insert "state of North Dakota for the future return to the" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 



,----·- . 

1 T H E  P R O PO S E D P R OJ E CT 

1.1  Location 

Oahe Dam is. located about six miles north of Pierre, South Dakota, on the Missouri River 
approximately 1 072.3 river miles from its :p1outh. At nopn� operating pool level ( 16 17  
feet mean sea level (m.s.l.)), Lake Oahe extends roughly 23 i .  �i.les from Oahe Dam to near 
Bismarck, North Dakota. At this level, the lake covers approximately 360,000 acres. At 
elevation 1 607.5 msl, ba.se flood control elevatiop, thelake h� over 2,250 miles of 
shoreline. 

Lake Oahe is located in parts of t�n counties in north-central South Dakota - Campbell, 
Corson, Dewey, Haakon, Hughes, Pot�er, Stanley, Sully, Walworth, and Ziebach, and in 
parts of four counties in south-central North D�ota - Burleigh, Emmons, Morton, and 
Sioux. Additional U.S. Army Corps ofEngineers (Corps) fee,-owned lands surround the 
reservoir and contain such facilities as the dam �mb81lknt�nt, powerhouse, maintenance 
facilities, recreation facilities, and wildlife habitat. 

1.2 Purpose and Need for the Master Plan 

The Oahe Dam/Lake Oahe project was authorized hnder the Flood Control Act approved 
December 22, 1 944 as amended, Public Law 78-534. The Oabe Dam and Lake Oahe were 
named for the Oahe Mission, established in 1 874 to serve the Sioux; Indians. The site of 
the mission was an old Arikara:Indian Village, which. the S�()¢c called "Ti Tanke Ohe" 
("site of the large house") for the dirt council lodge'ioc�ted there. 'shortened to "Oithe" the 
name of the village was eventually given to 'th<:(rtlission and later to the dam and lake that 
now cover the area. 

The first Master Plan for Lake Oahe, Design Memorandum (l)M) M0-1 50:8, was approved 
in November 1 962 for the purpose ofprovidiilg fJogdboiitro( irrigatiort::_J}uiniCipal and ; 
industrial water supply' navigation; !!Y&o}:iowei-; 'recreanoh;]w.h�arid' �dlife, and other 
purposes. The 1 962 Master Plan is' of lirhited l1�e 'ill'guidiflg project develop1pent and 
resource use because of the ·many changes in recreational demand and use patterns� In. 
1 992, the Corps began the process qf updating the Lake Oahe Master Plan. In addition to 
project visits by key rhembers ofthe study te��·p�iirnliicllj'lrieetihgs�ere li�ld With those 
State and local govemniental. officials'tliathave direc'fh1volvetrient ili'$e management of 
Lake Oahe's resources. Scoping meetings to obtain public· inputwere held in 1 993 and 
1 994. The Master Plan update was finished in 1 995 but not approved. 
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Location of Dam 

Operating and Managing Agency 

Purposes 

Authorization 

Year Con.struction Started 

Year Dam Place in Operation 

Project Cost 

Type 

Fill Quantity 

Concrete (all structures) 

Foundation Material 

Height 

Length ofTop 
(elevation· 1 660 feet m.s.l.) 

Width ofTop 

Width of Base (maximum) 

Location 

Number and Type 

Size 

PERTINENT DATA 
GENERAL 

June 2009 

6 miles north of Pierre, South Dakota, at Missouri River 
. miles 1 072.3 ( 1960 mileage) 

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 

Flood control, hydroelectric power, navigation, irrigation, 
fish and wildlife enh11ncem�nt, municipal water supply, 
improvement of water quality, and recreation 

Flood Control Act of22 December 1 944, as amended 
(Public Law 78-534) 

1 948 

1 962 

$347 million (1999 dollars) 

DAM AND EMBANKMENT 

Rolled earth fill and shale berms 

92,000,000 cubic yards 

1 ,045,000 cubic yards 

Pierre shale 

245 feet 

9,300 feet (excluding Spillway) 

60 feet 

3,500 feet 

OUTLET 

Right bank 

6 - concrete lined tunnels 

1 9.75 feet diameter upstream; 1 8.25 feet diameter 

XI 



N I \0 \0 
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1 84.73 27. 1 

-0- -0-

34.66 29.977.23 
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4 1 ,923.4 79,075.65 

6 

T 

South Dakota Counties 

Haako 
Hughes Potter Stanley 

n 

1 ,9 1 6.9 1 6.874.4 1 8,64 1 .8  47.995.5 

9 7 0 0 

1 .766.5 1 02.68 22 1 1 .76 
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205.35 1 63.4 1 84.7 8.o78.42 
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Oahe Project (in acre'S 

Sully 
Wahvort Zlebac 

h It 
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-0- -0- -0-
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North Dakota Counties 

Burleig Emmon 
Morton 

h s 

7,228.9 1 30,838.3 1 2.465.4 

6 2 

1 0  1 , 1 44.37 758.9 
,.oO!O_I - - �= 

3,838.92 65.5.6 774.52 

-0- ·Q· -0-

-0· -0- 1 7.4 

1 1 ,077.8 32,638.3 14,0 1 6.2 

3 3 4 

,, p . ---- - . .  &II o ·5�· 1 ! \ �  0 
N/A N/A N/A · 

-0- -0- 0.26 

-0- -0- 148.29 

434.4 -0- -0-

-0- -0- -0· 

434.4 -0- 148.55 

1 0,643.4 32,638.3 13,867.6 

' 3  3--- 9 '  

Sioux 

3,900.05 

1 66.5 1 

-0-

22.283.3 
I 

-0� 

26,349.8 

7 

N/A 

24.86 

14. 6 1  v 

-0-

-0-

39.47 

26,3 1 0.4 

0 

Project 

Total 

237.060.0 

4 

6,774.34 

14,937.84 

1 70.964.8 
7 

30.35 

429,767.4 
4 

43, 
537.39 

2,49 1 .35 

583.5 1 

434.4 

30,0 1 1 .89 

77,058.54 

352�708.9 

0 

1 

J 
,-......" 

li? 
::;:.. "' 

� � 
� 
li? ;r 

� 
-.. 

:::.. :::: ;;; 

� 



" A revision was begun in 2001 to reflect changes of the Title VI Land Transfer, mandated 
by the 1 999 Water Resources and Development Act (WRDA) (P.L. 1 06-53, Title VI ­
Cheyenne River Sioux Tribe, Lower Brule Sioux Tribe, and State of South Dakota 
Terrestrial Wildlife Habitat Restoration) as amended by the 2000 WRDA (P.L. 1 06-54 1 ). 
Under the Title VI land transfer the Corps is required to 1 )  transfer in fee title certain lands 
(outside the boundaries of Indian reservations) above elevation 1 620 msl, the top of the 
exclusive flood control pool, to the State of South Dakota to be managed by the South 
Dakota Game, Fish, and Parks Department (SDGFP); 2) transfer in fee title lands within 
the boundaries ofthe Cheyenne River Sioux Tribe (CRST) and Lower Brule Sioux Tribe 
(LBST) Indian Reservations that are above elevation 1 620 msl to the Department of 
Interior (DOI) to be managed in trust for the two tribes; 3) transfer all Corps recreation 
areas in South Dakota above elevation 1 607.5 msl to SDGFP and to DOl for CRST and 
LBST; and 4) establish the South Dakota Terrestrial Wildlife Habitat Restoration Trust 
Fund, Cheyenne River Sioux Tribe Terrestrial Wildlife Habitat Restoration Trust Fund, 
and Lower Brule Sioux Tribe Terrestrial Wildlife Habitat Restoration Trust Fund to pay for 
wildlife restoration work, cultural resources preservation, and management of transferred 
lands. Under the provisions of Title VI, the Corps retains fee title to lands and structures 
necessary for the operation of the Oahe dam and related flood control and hydropower 
structures, including land below elevation 1 620 msl. 

Prior to the land transfers, the Oahe project contained 1 8,220 acres of land above the 
exclusive flood control pool ( 1620 feet m .s.l.). Of these, 4,709 acres of land were 
transferred to the State. of South Dakota January 26, 2002, and 7,546 acres were transferred 
to the Bureau oflndian Affairs (BIA) in trust for the Cheyenne River Sioux Tribe (CRST) 
June 25, 2002. Of the 5,965 acres of land above the exclusive flood control pool remaining 
under Corps ownership, approximately 4,700 acres would be transferred to the State of 
South Dakota within one year. of full capitalization of the�_South Dakota Terrestrial Wildlife 
Habitat Restoration Trust Fund, -in 2008 or 2009 (USACE 2oo 1 ). The changes made as a 
result of the Title VI Land Transfer were described in an environmental impact statement 
(EIS), which concluded that no ,significant cumulative impacts would be expected as a 
result ofthe land transfers (USACE 2001 ). In addition, an environmental assessment (EA) 
for the lease of 22 recreation areas within the project area to South Dakota was also 
prepared in 2000 and resulted in a finding of no significant impact (USACE 2000). This 
EA is intended to address the changes that will be made to land allocation and management 
as a result of the update of the 1 962 Master Plan, btltdoes not address the Title VI Land 
Transfers already assessed in the EIS or the land leases assessed in the EA. ' 

The update of the 1 962 Master Pfan will provide guidance for stewardship of natural 
resources, and management for long-term public access to, and use of, the natural resources 
of Lake Oahe. The Master Plan update provides a comprehensive description of the 
project, a discussion of factors influencing resource management and development, an 
identification and discussion of special problems, a synopsis of public involvement and 
input to the planning process, and descriptions of past, present, and proposed development. 
Environmental Assessment 2 June 2009 
Update of Design Memorandum M0-224 M issouri River 
Oahe Dam/Lake Oahe Master Plan South Dakota 



7 

6 P OT E NT I A L C U M U L AT I V E  E F F E C T S  

Cumulative effects, as defined by the Council on Environmental Quality for NEP A, are 
those impacts on the environment which result from the incremental impact of the action 
when added to other past, present, and reasonably foreseeable future actions regardless of 
the agency of persons undertaking these actions. The scope o(this cum�ve effects 
analysis includes the impact of land reclassification under the proposed�aster Plan on 
lands surrounding �ake Oahe. --

a. Past Actions. Numerous cumulative effects from previous actions have occurred 
throughout the Lake Oahe area and have impacted wildlife habitat and other aspects 
of the environment, including hydrology, water quality, and cultural resources. 
Construction of Oahe Dam; filling of Lake Oahe; construction of the addition at' · 
five main stem dams on the Missouri River; management of the Missouri River for 
flood control,  navigation= water supply, and hydropower; development of the 
Missouri River floodplain for agricultural and residential uses; and alteration of the 
Missouri River channel have caused dramatic changes to the entire Missouri River 
system. These anthropogenic changes have caused cumulative effects to resources, 
ecosystems, and human communities. The Missouri River system is now primarily 
a passive, controlled system with reduced natural communities and habitats·. 
Without a complete restoration of the Missouri River basin to its original ecological 
condition, these cumulative effects will not be reversed. 

b. Present and Future Actions Associated with the Master Plan Alternatives. 
Implementation of proposals for Corps-owned areas in the updated Master Plan 
would incrementally reduce the cumulative effects that have occurred in the Oahe 
project area and would also compensate for increased visitor use of the project area 
in the future. These include more stringent and comprehensive uidelines 
development on project an s, recrea 10n areas designe WI high canying 
capacities so intensive visitor.nse can be concentrated away fro.lll re�onrc.e-oriented 
�. _greater 9]Vironment<!lprotection and impr..Q_vement o£:wjjd1i�and 
�reater maintenance of sustainable resources. 

These Corps actions would be combined with actions of those managing the areas 
transferred to the State of South Dakota and to the BIA in trust for the CRST to further 
incrementally reduce the cumulative impacts on the environment that have occurred il) the 
Oahe project area. The resources of the State and the CR T would be added to Co s 
dredging funds. equipment, and expertise to re uce cumul tive impacts of sediment on lake 
access. 

Environmental Assessment 
Update of Design Memorandum M0-224 
Oahe Dam/Lake Oahe Master Plan 
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elevations. Pre-historic and historic sites are located along the original river channel and on the 
surrounding bluffs and plains. Nearly all sites are affected by the changing water elevations but 
this issue is most critical at the extreme h igh and low water elevations. Sites covered by water 
during normal pool operating levels are potentially affected by low water conditions because they 
may be exposed and subject to wave action, wind erosion or looting. Sites above the normal pool 

operating levels are affected by high water conditions because they are newly exposed to erosive 
wave action and can be damaged directly or exposed once the water level drops. Regardless of 
the operating condition, the National Historic Preservation Act requires that archeological sites 
that are eligible or potentially el igible for l isting on the National Register of Historic Places be 
preserved and protected from adverse effects. 

c. Bank Erosion. Bank erosion caused by wave and wind action is an issue of concern at 
all reservoir levels. But it becomes a particular concern at the extremes of the pool elevations as 
areas that are not often subjected to wave action are exposed to the wind and waves. Essential 
faci l ities such as roads, ramps, docks and/or areas of particular safety concern such as unstable 
banks near recreation areas are of first importance. Erosion is also a concern with regard to 
cultural issues and municipal water intakes. Erosion can expose or damage cultural or historic 
resources, cause turbidity that can clog water intakes and impact water treatment, or damage 
water intake structures. 

d.  Invasive Species. Several invasive plant species (noxious weeds) thrive in low pool 
conditions. Newly exposed shoreline provides ideal habitat for invasive species to grow and 
spread quickly. Invasive species tend to be species that specialize in colonizing and thriving in 
disturbed environments such as the newly exposed reservoir shoreline. As noxious weeds spread 
quickly on the exposed soils a.nd gain a foothold they can then more easily spread to adjacent 
farms and ranches. The primary· invasive species threats on-the exposed shorelines of Oahe 
Reservoir are Canada thistle (Cirsium arvense), saltcedar (Tamarix ramosissima, Tamarix 
chinensis, and Tamarix parviflota), and leafy spurge (Euphorbia esula). Saltcedar poses an 
immediate threat to the natural resources around the reservoir. At all operating levels (high, low, 
and normal) adjacent disturbed land is susceptible. 

e. Municipal Intakes. Municipal water supply intakes may be threatened by the receding 
of the reservoir pool during low water conditions. Through six intake locations,, the reservoir 
provides public drinking water to several communities {approximately 1 00,000 individuals) and 
serves a number of individual h omes. The reservoir level required for a given intake structure to 
operate properly varies. Exposure of municipal water intake structures can result in turbidity 
issues with the water supply, shut down of the faci lity, or collapse of the intake pipes due to 
erosion of adjacent banks. 

f. Irrigation Jntakes. Irrigation intakes are impacted primarily by low water levels. 

, "'����.r.�Jbe res.n_Qusifll!.i!xJ:d)hejngjyk!yiJLQ.W_!:!e���The owners general ly 

extend their lines to follow the water down in!o the reservoir as the pool level recedes. This is an 
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issue for both land mangers and owners to be aware of as reservoir levels rise and fall.  
Contingency plans for pump relocation, with input fonn both parties, are advantageous to 
facilitate emergency actions. 

June 2009 

g. Threatened and Endangered Species. The foraging and nesting activities of two 
endangered bird species are impacted by changes in pool elevation. The interior least tern (Sterna 
antillarum athalassos) and piping plover (Charadrius melodus) are two shorebirds that feed and 
raise their young on the shores of the Missouri River and reservoir beaches. The least tern is a 
pale grey swallow-sized bird that tends to nest west of the reservoir on sand bars in riverine 
conditions. 

The reservoir area provides habitat primarily for the piping plover, a sandy brown robin-sized 
shorebird. A steady drop in reservoir elevations provides for an optimum increase in potential 
nesting habitat for the piping plover. The piping plover prefers the newly exposed open 
shorelines for nesting that are provided by a steady drop in the �eservoir elevation. However, this 
habitat is short lived as within one to two years vegetation will encroach and colonize the open 
shores and eliminate the open habitat. The additional vegetative growth that accompanies lower 
elevations also decreases their critical foraging areas and increases opportunities for predators. 
Changes in foraging habits can adversely affect the survival of chicks and adult birds. H�gh grass 
and weeds along the shoreline will discourage piping plovers away from ideal feeding locations. 
Vegetation also provides cover for predators such as snakes, raccoons, and skunks to destroy 
nests. Nests can be concentrated on ideal sandy soil but in limited areas, endangering a large 
percentage of the population by allowing predators easy access. 

The transition to low pool conditions has the potential of providing optimum conditions for these 
endangered species. As the reservoir level drops new habitat_is continually exposed. Because 
very I ittle sedimentation occurs in the upper end of the reservoir, as the e levation of Lake Oahe 
goes down, the upper end reverts to riverine conditions that are not encumbered by sediment, 
which enhances habitat for bird· species (Pavelka, 2007). If low pool elevations persist, however, 
some ·habitat wil l  be overgrown with vegetation. Year to year the more important factor for the 

· . .  

endangered bird species i s  the short-term rise and fal l  of the reservoir pool. 

Higher water levels pose the greatest issues for the endangered birds because nearly all of the 
prime habitat areas would be inundated by the rising water. As reservoir elevations enter the 
flood control zones the open expanses of shoreline begin to disappear. At high pool elevations 
habitat is eliminated on almost th'e entire reservoir except for Dredge Island (Pavelka, 2007). 

One additional endangered species resides in the reservoir. The pallid sturgeon (Scaphirhynchus 
albus) is a bottom dwelling fish that prefers large, free-flowing, wann turbid water, with a vast 
array of physical habitat conditions that are in a constant state of change. The low water pool 
conditions may have beneficial effects for pallid sturgeon in that riverine habitats are exposed in 
the upper end of the reservoir. These areas would provide habitat conditions that were not 
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version ofthis plan, M(Gen) 1 9, as a good starting point, they did not endorse the plan as full 
mitigation. In the late 1 980s and the 1 990s the Corps implemented some wildlife mitigation at 
the Oahe project by contracting with the SDGFP to plant trees, food plots, and nesting cover on 
Corps land. 

TITLE VI 
Under the Title VI land transfer, mandated by the 1 999 WRDA (P .L. 1 06-53) as amended by the �" 2000 WRDA (P .L. 1 06-54 1 ), the Corps is required to transfer in fee title certain lands and / 

, � recreation areas (outside the boundaries of Indian reservations) above the top of the exclusive �{ , flood control pool, to the State of South Dakota to b�J!t!!naged b.y_the S.QGE�;_tr�J.!§.f�r..aLUan4�-­
including recreation areas within the boundaries of the CRST Indian Reservation above elevation 
1 620 feet m.s.l. to the DOl to be ma�d in tru:',it for the triqe;Jlnd es!ablishJhe_$_Q.Y.tll.J2.akota 
�trial Wildlif� Habitat Restoratio� Trust F..!:!Jid and fheyenne River Sioux Tribe Terrestrial 
Wildlife Habitat Restoration Trust Fund to pay for wildlife restoration work, cultural resources 
preservation, and management of transferred lands. The transfer of lands owned by the Corps in 
South Dakota to the State of South Dakota fulfills Corps obligations as defined in the 1 982 post 
authorization plan, which was a plan for the restoration of terrestrial wildlife habitat loss that 
occurred as a result of flooding related to the Oahe project. \lnd�r-th.e....pr.QYlstQII..§_.QfTjtle_\[l,_th,e 
�fP-�ns fee title to land�_E�����sary ��-t��O.P..�I!!!i!?!l .Qf!h� . .  O.!lh.e..Q!1m.and 
related flood control and hydropower structures, including land below elevation 1 620 feet m.s.l. . 

----.:. ___ ..,...::.. _ _.___. _________ ··----·--------··-..o•• ·�----··-·--·----

On January 26, 2002, the Corps transferred in fee title 3,065.88 acres, including 27 recreation 
areas outside the boundaries of Indian reservations above elevation 1 607.5 feet m.s.l. to the State 
of South Dakota. Fee title of other lands above elevation 1 620 feet m.s.l., such as wildlife 
management lands totaling approximately 39.3j!acres, were transferred to the State of South 
Dakota in July 2007. On June 5� 2002 the Department of lrtterior, Bureau ofindian Affairs 
accepted the transfer of custody and accountability of32,879.64 acres, including 6 recreation 
areas within the boundaries of Gheyenne River Sioux Indian Reservation to be held in trust for 
the C�ST. This completes the transfer of lands within the Cheyenne River Sioux Indian 
Reservation pursuant to Title VI prior to the Cheyenne River Sioux Tribe TetTestrial Wildlife 
Habitat Restoration Trust Fund being ful ly capitalized at $42,476,000. 

After these trust funds are fully capitalized, interest from these funds can be used by the State of 
' 

South Dakota and the CRST to develop, submit, and carry out plans for the restoration of 
terrestrial wildlife habitat loss thaj occurred as a result of flooding related to the projects carried 
out as part of the Pick-Sloan Missouri River Basin Program. The interest can also be used for 
protecting archeological, historical, and cultural sites, and for funding cost associated with lease, 
ownership, management, operation, administration, maintenance, or development of recreation 
areas and other land transferred or to be transferred by the Secretary of the Army. 

CURRENT LANDHOLDINGS 
There were four types of land tenure acquired for the Oahe project: 
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transferred to the DOl and the recreation areas transferred to the State of South Dakota pursuant 
to Title VI were transfeJTed subject to these easements. 

FLOWAGE EASEMENTS �J ,;\; 
The flowage easements acquired at the Oahe project give the Government a perpetual right to t �� "\ '$;'� 
overflow the land when necessary as a result of construction, maintenance, and operation of the ·$;? 
project. The Government also has the right to enter the easement lands as needed as well as to '\' 
remove from the easement lands any natural or manmade obstructions or structures which, in the 
opinion of the Government, may be detrimental to the operation and maintenance of the project. 
The flowage easements were acquired subject to "existing easements for public roads and 
highways, public utilities, railroads, and pipe lines." 

Historically, it has been Corps policy to prohibit structures for human habitation on flowage 
easements acquired by the Corps. Construction and/or maintenance of non-habitable structures 
on the flowage easement are subject to prohibition or regulation·by the District Engineer. 

GRAZING RIGHTS WITHIN THE CRST AND SRST RESERVATIONS 
Section 1 0  of Public Law 83-776 dated 3 September 1 954 (68 Stat. 1 1 9 l ) and Section 1 0  of 
Public Law 85-9 1 5  dated 2 September 1 958  (72 Stat. 1 762.) provided that after the Oahe Dam 
gates were closed and the water of the Missouri River was impounded, the .Cheyenne River Sioux 
and the Standing Rock Sioux Tribes, respectively, and their memQ.ers were given exclusive 
pern1ission, without cost, to graze livestock on the land between the watei-'level ofthe reservoir 
and the e ior boundary ofthe reservation. Consistent with this legislation and in accordance 
with the 26 May 1 977, Decision by the Comptrol ler General, the Corps has defeJTed 
administration of all grazing p,rograms within the reservation boundary to the Tribal Council and 
the Bureau of Indian Affairs. 

These grazing rights have no effect on the statutory limitation that the grazing privileges only 
extend to lands the Secretary of the Army determines are not devoted to oth.er beneficial uses or 
project purposes. ���clcaQ be withdrawn ..fum!..g_razing if iNs to be put to an -
authorized p�. Thus. public park and recreation or fish and wildlife uses continue to 
preempt the tribal grazing privileges. 

A legal opinion was done in 1 9 84 concerning these grazing rights. The opinion stated that these 

� �grazing rights have no effect on' the statutory limitation thatthe;grazing privileges only extend t�
' 

lands the Secretary of the Army detennines are not devoted to other beneficial uses or project 
purposes. Additional ly, any land can be withdrawn from grazing if it is to be put to an authorized 
project use. Thus, public park and recreation or fish and wildl ife uses continue to preempt the 
tribal grazing privilege). ' , � {} f (/ n r tu4\ ... + o..W -r" u. '\t t � lJJt "1t UA.r w �t ��(/_ VA -�AA � #W'11LLL· 
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Public Law 1 02-575 (106 Stat. 473 1), 30 October 1 992, Title XXXV - Three Affiliated Tribes 
and Standing Rock Sioux Tribe Equitable Compensation Act. In compliance. Section 3503 
declares that the Standing Rock Sioux Tribe is entitled to additional financial compensation for 
the taking of over 56,000 acres of its reservation lands, as the site for the Oahe Reservoir. TillLact 
�so pro�ided that certain lands acquir� the Gove!:!!!!�DtfuJ11·e.��i!!�t!�!� r�servGir 
created by bahe Dam would be offered for����.9Jl1Jh���.?�� 
pur-ehaSea or to their heirs.� All Jail'ifnotaequired by the original owners or heirs woulq be 
' �-------�-··.,..--,..._.,-"' --.,._ __ ..,.-· · •�.._ __ - ....... -··- · · � · · - " " -. . . . -··- ,e-•-._ - - .. . ···�. · · ·  ·-• ·- • 

available for purchase by the Standing "Rock SiOux Tfloe: The land transfer part of this act was 
repealed by Congress in February 1 994: 

Public Law I 03-2 1 1 ( 1 08 Stat 3,41) 12 February 1 994, Emergency Supplemental Appropriation 
Act. In compliance. Section 407 of this act repealed the land transfer provisions of the Public 
Law 1 02-575 as they pertained to the Oahe project (Section 3509). 

Public Law I 06-53, 1 7  August 1 999, Title VI of the Water Resources Development Act of 1 999. 
Cheyenne River Sioux Tribe, Lower Brule Sioux Tribe, and State of South Dakota Terrestrial 
Wildlife Habitat Restoration. In compliance. Under this provision, the Government retains fee 
title to lands and structures necessary for the continuation of the operation, maintenance, repair, 
replacement, rehabil itation, and structural integrity of the dam and related flood control and 
hydropower stru'ctures, including land below the top of the exclusive flood control pool, and can 
lease in perpetuity all or part of certain recreation areas associated with the dams to the State of 
SOlith Dakot� or to the Cheyenne River Sioux Tribe at the Oahe project. Title Vi establishes the 
South Dakota and Cheyenne River Sioux Tribe Terrestrial Wildlife Habitat Restoration Trust 
Fund. · After these funds are f�lly capitalized the interest may be used for costs associated with 
the restoration and management ·costs associated with the transferred binds. This legislation also 
requires the Secretary to arrange for the U.S. Geological Survey to complete a comprehensive 
study of the potential impacts Of! water flows in the Missouri River as a result of the transfer of 
lands under this 'title and prohibits such transfers until the secretary determines that the transfers 
wil l  not significantly reduce the amount of water flow to the downstream States of the Missouri 
River. The master plan reflects land transfers that have occurred as a result of Title VI. 

Public Law 1 06-541. 1 1  December 2000, Title Vl of the Water Resources Development Act of 
2000. In compliance. Section 540 ofthis act amended Public Law 1 06-53. The• section applied a 
deadline of 1 January 2002 for laqd transfers; included direction on the lease of specific 
recreation are�s to th� State of South Dakota; and a requirement to clean up each open dump and 
hazardous waste site. The act also established both a Cultural Resources Advisory Commission 
as well as a requirement to inventory and stabilize each cultural and historic site on land to be 
transferred. The master plan reflects land transfers that have occurred as a result of Title VI. 
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noise emissions to within compliance levels. Noise emission levels at sites where development 
was proposed in the updated Oahe Master Plan would increase above current levels temporarily 
during periods of construction; however, appropriate measures will be taken to keep the noise 
level within the compliance levels. 

Public Law 93-205 (87 Stat. 884). 28 December 1 973, Conservation. Protection, and Propagation 
of Endangered Species Act of 1 973. as amended. In compliance. This law repeals the 
Endangered Species Conservation Act of 1 969. It also directs all Federal departments/agencies to 
carry out programs to conserve endangered and threatened species of fish, wildlife, and plants and 
to preserve the habitat of these species in consultation with the Secretary of the Interior. This act 
establishes a procedure for coordination, assessment, and consultation. This act was amended by 
Public Law 96-1 59. Corps management and construction activities proposed by the master plan 
would have no effects on federally or State listed or candidate threatened and endangered species 
known to exist in Oahe project areas for which the Corps is responsible. 

Public Law 93-523 {88 Stat. 1 660), 1 6  December 1 974, Safe Drinking Water Act, as amended. 
In compliance. This act amends the Public Health Service Water Act to assure that the public is 
provided with safe drinking water. This law states that all potable water at civil works projects 
wil l  meet or exceed the minimum standards required by law. This act was amended by the Safe 
Drinking Water Act Amendments of 1 986, Public Law 99-339 of 1 986, and Public Law 1 04-1 82. 
The NDDH and SDDENR work with all public water systems along Lake Oahe to ensure they 
comply with this act. 

�· Publ ic Law 93-629. (88 Stat. 21 48), 3 January 1 975, Federal Noxious Weed Act of 1 974. as s amended. In compliance. Section 1 5, added to the act in 1 990, requires noxious weed control 
management on Federal lands and sets forth the process by which it is to be accomplished. 
Resource objectives and development needs for management units in the master plan include the 
control of noxious weeds. 

Executive Order 1 1 988, 24 May 1 977. FloodJ:)Iain Management; In compliance. This order 
outlines the responsibilities of Federal agencies in the role offloodpbiin' management. Each 
agency shall evaluate the potential effects of actions on floodplains and should not undertake 
actions that directly or indirectly induce growth in the floodplain, unless there i� no practical 
alternative. Agency regulations a.nd operating procedures for licenses and permits should include 
provisions for evaluation and consideration of flood hazards. Construction of structures and 
facilities on floodplains must incorporate flood proofing and other accepted flood protection 
measures. Agencies shall attach appropriate use restrictions to property proposed for lease, 
easement, right-of-way, or disposal to non-Federal public or private parties . 
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TOPOGRAPHY. GEOLOGY. AND SOILS 
The area to the east of Lake Oahe is characterized by gently roll ing plains to steep glacial 
moraines. West of the lake, the topography is typically gently sloping to very steep with a few 
scattered buttes. The bedrock surrounding Lake Oahe consists of nearly flat sedimentary rock 
with older rock exposed in the southern part of the project and the younger rock exposed in the 

. tJttl. 
northern portion of the project. Soils within the project area vary in their suitability for :oad J;.Jl /1.).�61).)� 
construction, facility development, and vegetative �lantings. .J..�tt...R �� ltv\ J.p. U 

LAND usE Vl,u� M.,.4u.nJ �TutL..t-p. f:,� · 

Agric
,�

ltural use accounts for the majority of the land in the counties bordering Lake Oahe. 
remainder of the lands is devoted to recreation, wildlife, transportation, and urban areas. 

Th� 
BORROW AREAS AND UTILITIES 
Major borrow areas used during the construction of the dam were located at the left abutment east 
of the powerhouse and northwest of the existing West Shore Recreation Area. At the present 
time, the only active borrow areas located on project land are the ORV area south of the dam and O .;1 the area northwest of the West Shore Recreation Area. }(J.Y - ��# t1 STEWARDSHIP 

· ;lf' . 
Corps stewardship of Oahe project lands reflects priorities established by the Assistant Secretary 

, M._/-
ofthe Army for Civil Works and the Corps' National Stewardship Advisory Team. The first t,b' 'l 
priority is to comply with al l laws relating to endangered speci�;.-cultuml resources, and 
mitigation. The second priority is to transition all poor or fair condition lands towards a 
sustainable ecosystem. This would include prairie restoration c wee s, and 
preventing the loss of wetlands or native prairie. The third priority is to balance uses of project 
lands while ma�ntaining a sustainable ecosystem in good to excellent condition. 

VEGETATION RESOURCES 
Native vegetation found on the Oahe project varies widely. Although much of the project region 
is dominated by a short grass ecosystem, a substantial number of tall grass species occur in some 

' l ,  ' ' 

areas. · Riparian wetlands occur in the northern portion of the project where remnants of the old 
Missouri River forest can be found. Smaller embayments and narrow drainages-are found in the 
centml and southern portions of the lake. Bottomland woodlands are dominated largely by 
cottonwoods and are found predominantly in the upper portions of the major tributary drainages. 

The fluctuation of the wat�r level on Lake Oahe creates unique temporary vegetative layers. The 
annual rise and fal l  of the lake's elevation provides a changing seedbed that is constantly 
renewed. During consecutive years with lower water levels, shorel ine vegetation levels 
dramatically increase which results in an increase in upland game, migratory birds, and big game 
populations. 
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, . .  t\ Public Law 90-583 (82 Stat. 1 146), 1 7  October 1 968. Noxious Plant Control. In 

compliance. This law provides for a control of noxious weeds on land under the 
control of the Federal govenunent. Resource o�ecti\'eS and development needs for . 

V management units include the control of noxious weeds. 

Public Law 86-7 1 7  (74 Stat. 8 1 7). 6 September 1 960. Conservation of forest Lands in Reservoir 
Areas. In compliance. This law provides for the development and maintenance of forest 
resources on Corps managed lands and the establishment and management of vegetative cover so 
as to encourage future resources of readily available timber and to increase the value of such 
areas for conservation. Resource objectives and development needs for the management units 
include planting trees and shrubs to increase the amount of woody vegetation for winter and 
nesting cover for upland and big game species; planting trees, food plots, native grasses, and/or 
marsh grasses to supplement the existing food sources for upland and big game species and/or 
waterfowl; and developing additional woody draw habitat 

,.. ...... �i-Jf Public Law 1 09-320 (120 Stat. 1 748), l_t q�tober 2006, Salt Cedar and Russian Olive ..,._J'.J:-. . 
_

. �ontrol De�onstration Act ��g_uires the Secretary of the Interior to work with Secretary 
__ _ . . .  

· of Agriculture and Secretary of Defense to carry out a salt cedar and Russtan ohve 
assessment program to assess the extent of salt cedar and Russian olive in the western 
United States, demonstrate strategic solutions for long-term management of salt cedar and 
Russian olive and assess economic means to dispose of salt cedar and Russian olive. The 
Corps coordinates with the multi-State and multiagency salt cedar task force to control salt 
cedar at Lake Oahe. 

I I  ;ublic Law 9��29, (88 Stat. 2 1 4�� 3
-

J:�7;� Feder� Noxious V.:eed Ac� of l974, 
as amended. In compliance. Section 1 5, added to the Act m 1 990, reqUires noxtous weed 
control management on Federal lands and sets forth the process by which it is to be 
accomplished. Resource objectives a1d delelopment I1E9:Js for �·units i n  the 
updcta:f Masta- AalfEA indudethe control of noxi ouswEB:ts. 

,/ 

u ........ "' I hur till a:;;;:n 1 10'1 <::'f'>f Wlh\ 1) I )!"'tnhOr;IJU:Ol<:i:lVIr"T\lTli ... :TCI..,�- -=-"'·�• �------- ---·�-- · ···--··-· .. 

I G Public Law 92-500 (86 Stat 8 1 6). 1 8  October 1 972. The Federal Water �ollution Control <)' 111. 
Act Amendments of 1 972, as amende�. In compliance. This law anierids'the Federal \'\r \:% "': ater Poll�tion Control Act an� establis�es a n�tional ·goal of�liminating

.
pollutant � dtscharges mto waters of the Uruted · States� ·SectiOn 404 authonzes a permit program for · 

the disposal ofJ!redged or fill material in the Nation's waters that is to be administered by 
the Secretary of the Anny acting through the Chief of Engineers. This law wlis later 
amended by the Clean Water Act of 1 977, Public Law 95-2 1 7, to provide additional 
authorization to restore the Nation1s water. The j>roja::t is iri  coinpliSlcewiththis I aN. If 
my construction a::tivities involve tnetanporEJY or;pa11l?I1Eilt·pla::ernent of-<,fra:fgErl or fi l l  \ 
maa-ia into my wcta-body or wetla1d a-Ea a·L� � a  permit pursumt to Sa::tion Y 
404 is requira:f. ·'�' ' ,  . ��\ .� ··. i ·; Public Law 92-574 (86 Stat. 1:234), 27 October 1 972. Noise Control Act, as amended. �':§.:· ·.� In compliance. This Act estab,tishes a national policy to pr.omote an environment for all ��.J\:/'t•\ 
Americans free from noise·that'·jeopardizes their health and welfare. Federal agencies are Y,_ :��;' .,� · - ; 
required to limit noise emissions to within compliance levels. Noiseanission laels ci t::\���J �, �.:' 
sites wha"e delel opment wcs pr� in t� updcia:f <Tcile 

.
Masta- Am would inc:"ea;e �\· (JF: ' 

cix>ve curr� lerels tempora-tly dun':'9 peraods ?f �rud:ton� however, 
��

opncte (\ · measureswt l l  betcien to leEf) the oose le.el Wlthi n the compiiSlcele.els: , '\ 
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SCHMIDT/GRANER BOTTOMS 

Management Unit. MU #062 

Classification. Multiple Resource Management: Wildlife Management 

Management Agency. North Dakota Game and Fish Department 

June l009 

Location. The Schmidt/Graner Bottoms area is located in Morton County approximately 1 0  
miles south of Mandan, North Dakota. This area is in the extreme northern portion of the Oahe 
project located on the west side of the lake. The area extends from the northern boundaty south to 
the Huff Village Area but excludes both the Little Heart and the Graner Park Recreation Areas. 
Access is by several minimum maintenance roads and dirt trails leading from ND Highway 1 806. '·· 

��(j 
Description. The topography of this 5,59 1 -acre manage01ent area is flat river bottomland. \'. · \�':. 

There are large forested areas of primarily cottonwood with willow along the shoreline. In addition, 
r, ..... .. 

there are small stands of bur oak on the small side slopes. Portions of this area that are leased for · ·;-'r ,, 
agricultural purposes provide supplemental food sources for area wildlife. Com, wheat, oats, and J 

alfalfa are p lanted by local farmers and portions of these crops are left standing for the benefit of 
wildlife. 

The heavily wooded bottomlands along the lake are home to a variety of wildlife species. White­
tailed deer are numerous. Upland game species include pheasant with a few sharp-tailed grouse. 
Cottontail rabbits, squirrels, raccoon, porcupine, and turkey also reside here. Beaver and muskrat 
make their homes in the many small embayments in the area. These embayments also receive 
considerable use by migrating waterfowl during the spring and fall. Numerous shorebirds reside in 
the area because ofthe location of adjacent sandbars and the sandy nature of the shoreline. These 
include killdeer as well as the federally endangered least tern and the threatened piping plover. 

The CRMP has identified cultural sites in this area. Prior to any future development at or near this 
area, an evaluation must be made to determine if the development would affect any historic 
properties that may be eligible for the National Register or any Traditional Cultural Properties 
and the best way to avoid, m inimize, or mitigate potential impacts. 

Area Use. The area is managed to improve the quality of habitat for wildlife species by 
maintaining woody vegetation and' winter cover and providing a supplemental food source. Several 
shelterbelt plantings have been established within the Schmidt/Graner Bottom Area. As mentioned 
earlier, portions of cropland are left standing for an additional food source. The cropland left 
standing have attracted numerous waterfowl species during spring and fall migrations, making this a 
prime waterfowl hunting location. 
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This area receives considerable hunting pressure for big game species, as well as some upland game 
and waterfowl. There is a small rifle range located adjacent to project land near the Little Heart 

Recreation Area that is operated by Morton County. This area is heavily used just before and during 
hunting season for sighting-in rifles, target practice, and skeet shooting. 

This management area is also popular for shoreline fishing because of its easy access and proximity 
to the Little Heart and Graner Park Recreation Areas. Other activities include sightseeing, 
photography, and hiking. 

Resource Objectives. 
• Upgrade the quality of habitat for big game, upland game, and waterfowl species 
• Protect any State or federally l isted threatened and endangered species that may 

periodically use the area 
• Promote ecological integrity by controlling noxious weeds 
• Preserve, monitor, and protect any cultural resources 

Development Needs. 
• Manage vegetation for optimum use of wildlife and fisheries when water returns 
• Increase food plots to supplement existing food sources for waterfowl, big game, 

and upland game 
• Monitor and maintain the vegetative resources to ensure the continued survival of 

the bottomland forest 
• Manage vegetation for optimum use of threatened and endangered species and 

other wildlife and fisheries 
• Control noxious weeds 
• Provide appropriate protection for any cultural resources 

Rationale. A land use classification of Multiple Resource Management: Wildlife 
Management is assigned to the Schmidt/Graner Bottoms Area because it serves as a travel corridor 
for wildlife moving between upland areas and Lake Oahe. Much ofthe area is suitable for additional 

wildlife plantings such as trees, shrubs or food plots. Compatible recreation opportunities based 
upon the resources present are also supported. 
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Excess land taken for reservoir construction of dams in 
I'".i.U� Lake Saka:kawea and Lake Oahe in eieven counties 
1n the lviissouri River corridor., land above.eJevation 1 611 .. -
on Lake u""' ... t...e n-rnA e'lev<>+;on 1 ��1� on r .<>lre Q..-.l_...qK1'"'"''""'·� 

·- ·-- - -. W!. .. � �  M. - �  .. ��- . - � .1. -0-:f"._ J.l. � UU-4'\..U.. U¥!f� 

Conditional excess = meaning land wouldn't be needed 
.J ...1 I d • • • • • unuer mouem um _ acquiSition cntena. 

Ex;ce$8 Land· = me.ans property under the c.ontrol of a.11y 
Federal Agency which is not requi..�d for 
its needs- and-the discharge of its- responsibilities. 

Every ND COIL11ty affected by the 1944 .Flood .Act has a 
different geography a..t1d each county is going to have a 
difterent prospectiYS of excess acres. The county commissions 
of each county in the river corridor� set up conunittees for t.he 
purpose of 1naking reconunendations involving wildlife 
mitigatio� recreation and excess lands. When the county 
committees have concluded their recommendations, the -county 
commis-s-ioners-have approved the plan, the state of'NU- shaH /\\ 
petition the Federal Government Agencies for the transfer of · \ li 
the excess land to that cour..r; for their consideration� 

Understand, it is not possible for the Corps to transfer land 
to state or counties without specific federal legislation authority. 
All land lying below elevation 1617-1854 and federal recreation 
areas would remain the r�sponsibility ofthe Corps. 

\ .  :,;:! · - ' -
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Defending Their Lands 
The Struggle of Three Tribes to Save 

Their Reservation in the 1940s 
By Robert J. Hanna 

"T he principles that we 
fought for in this last war, right 
beside you, was for the very 
homes, lands, and resources that 
you are trying to take from us 
today." 

-Mandan, Hidatsa and Arikara 
Nation Councilman Mark Mahto, 
Washington, D.C., July 1 7, 1947. 

It was a bitter irony. During 
World War II, while 250 Mandan, 
Hidatsa and Arikara Indians­
half the adult men from their 
reservation-were away fighting 
to protect their country and homes, 
their country was making plans 
to destroy their homes instead. 
In 1 944, Congress approved a 
plan to build a dam that would 
flood the core of the Fort Berthold 
Reservation and the homes of 90 
percent of the reservation's people. 

These three tribes had lived 
along the Missouri River for 
hundreds of years. They built 
their culture around the river, 

locating their 
e a r t h l o d g e  
v i l l a g e s  
on bluffs 
o v e r l o o k i n g  
its banks and 
farming the 
river bottoms. 
Every spring 
they depended 
upon the 
Big Muddy 
to flood its 
banks, laying 
sediments as 
fertile soil and 
watering the 
ground. The 
f l o o d  p l a i n s  
were divided 
into vast 

Fort Berthold Tribal Council Cilairman George Gillette weeps as 
].A. Krug signs the contract to purchase reservation lands for the 
construction of Garrison Dam. 

stretches of fenced fields where 
the women raised enough corn, 
beans, squash, and sunflowers to 
feed their families and trade with 
other tribes. Tens of thousands of 
people thrived here until the late 
1700s. Then, beginning in 1781, 
a series of smallpox epidemics 

began that killed all but a few 
hundred people within a century. 
Still, the tribes persevered. In 1862, 
they banded together to form 
what is now called the Mandan, 
Hidatsa and Arikara Nation. 

At that time, their reservation 
history was beginning. The 

Continued on Page 4 

The Battle of the Washita 
The following article was originally 

published in the New York Times on 
Feb. 14, 1869: 

"T he St. Louis Democrat 
publishes the following private 
letter from a participant in the 
battle of Washita, Idaho, which 
gives some of the secret history 
of that fight, and accounts for the 
fact of Maj. ELLIOTT and his men 
being reported missing: 

Fort Cobb, I.T., Dec. 22, 1868. 
MY DEAR FRIEND: I wrote to 

you from Camp Supply, which 
place we left on the 7th, arriving at 

this post on the evening of the 18th. 
On the 11th we camped within 
a few miles of our 'battle of the 
Washita,' and Gens. SHERIDAN 
and CUSTER, with a detail of 
one hundred men, mounted, as 
escort, went out with the view 
of searching for the bodies of 
our nineteen missing comrades, 
including Maj. ELLIOTT. 

The bodies were found in a 
small circle, stripped as naked as 
when bom, ... and nearly all had 
been horribly mangled in a way 
delicacy forbids me to mention. 
They lay scarcely two miles from 

the scene of the fight, and all we 
know of the manner they were 
killed we have learned from 
Indian sources. It seems that Major 
ELLIOTT's party were pursuing a 
well mounted party of Cheyenne in 
the direction of the Grand Village, 
where nearly all the tribes were 
encamped, and were surrounded 
by the reinforcements coming to 
the rescue of the pursued before 
the Major was aware of their 
position. They were then out of 
sight and hearing of the Seventh 
Cavalry, which had remained at 

Continued on Pnge 3 
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The R iver Be Darnnted 
Continued from Page 1 
government and the tribes signed 
the Fort Laramie Treaty of 1851, in 
which the government agreed to 
recognize much of the traditional 
lands of the tribes as belonging 
to them-an area of 12.6 million 
acres. But, over the years a process 
began in which more and more 
reservation lands were taken 
away and the very concept of the 
reservation itself was degraded. 
In 1870, the reservation was 
arbitrarily reduced by executive 
order. It was reduced again in 
1880, down to 1.2 million acres, 
to allow the government to give 
free land to the Northern Pacific 
Railroad, which it was to sell to 
settlers. Then, in 1887, the General 
Allotment Act determined that the 
tribes would no longer hold the 
reservation in common, but rather 
each head of household would be 
assigned a 160-acre plot from the 
reservation. Any reservation lands 
left over-indeed the majority of 
the reservation-could be sold 
to the government. The tribes 
were essentially strong-armed 
into doing so several times until 
1910. By then, the reservation 
was one twelfth its original size, 
with even less of its land under 
the ownership of Three Tribes 
members. 

But, if any comfort was left 
to them it was that they still had 
the river bottornlands. Their 
towns of Elbowoods, Nishu, Red 
Butte, Charging Eagle, Lucky 
Mound, Independence, Shell 
Creek, Beaver Creek and Square 
Butte punctuated long stretches 
of farmland and beautiful 
cottonwood forests. The soil 
there was among the most fertile 
on the Great Plains. The tribes 
carried on their thousand-year 
tradition of farming in the river 
valley, adding wheat to their 
more traditional crops. Many 
also invested in cattle and made 
ranching the reservation's second 
main industry. They did so well 
that during the depression of the 
1930s, even though they also faced 
poverty, their economy survived 
better than that of surrounding 
white areas- many impoverished 
white people survived the 
depression by getting jobs on 
Three Tribes farms and ranches. 
Even during the Second World 
War, while so many of the men 
were away, the farms managed to 

increase production. 

• 

Fort Berthold 
Reservation 

After the Construction 
of Garrison Dam 
. (.\lf!C'OII 'I"I"'n' 
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But, far downstream, 
things were not going 
well. The year 1943 
saw one of the largest 
floods recorded along 
the Missouri, claiming 
several lives and 
destroying millions of 
dollars of property. The 
Missouri had always 
been an unpredictable 
river, prone to flood 
one year and drop so 
low another that it was 
unnavigable. The nation 
was persuaded to do 
anything necessary to 
stop it, and when the 
waters started lapping 
into the streets below 

Mandaree 

Lake Sakakawca 
the Omaha office of Adapted from a map in Meyers, copyright 1977. 
Colonel Lewis Pick 
of the Army Corps of 
Engineers, no one was 

Tire construction of Garrison Da111 flooded several Fort Bertirold communities and resulted in tire 
creation of five new towns, all away from the newly-flooded river bottoms. 

more persuaded than he. Sent 
away to Omaha after bungling 
the design of an Army Air Corps 
training facility (it had to be shut 
down after it was determined that 
the runway was impossible to 
land on), Pick now found himself 
called upon to design a flood­
control plan for the entire Missouri 
basin. Developed in just 90 days 
and only 10 pages long, the Pick 
Plan called for almost the entire 
length of the upper Missouri River 
to be converted to a series of five 
artificial lakes, with the intended 
result of not only controlling 
flooding, but also ensuring 
enough water for permanent 
navigation on the lower Missouri. 
The plan naturally won the favor 
of downstream states. 

Meanwhile, Glenn Sloan of 
the Bureau of Reclamation office 
in Billings, Mont., had been 
working for the last three years on 
another proposal for controlling 
the Missouri. The Sloan Plan 
did not provide for downstream 
navigation, but it did provide 
for irrigation of otherwise arid 
farmland upstream and, of 
course, the control of flooding. It  
involved three fewer darns on the 
main stem of the Missouri and 
more small ones on its tributaries. 
Naturally, it was favored by the 
upstream states. 

The two competing plans 
led to long and loud debates 
between Pick and Sloan, between 
the Army Corps and the Bureau 

of Reclamation, between the be hit hardest. Ninety percent of 
downstream and the upstream the people lived on land that was 
states, and between their to be flooded by the Garrison 
corresponding congressmen. Dam, not to mention every one 
Finally, President Franklin D. of their towns. The July 1, 1943, 
Roosevelt ordered the corps issue of the Sanish Sentinel quoted 
and the bureau to design a a memo from Department of the 
compromise plan. Quickly Interior Solicitor Felix S.  Cohen 
realizing that neither side would to Indian Commissioner William 
give ground, they decided in Brophy as saying, "the Garrison 
a one-day meeting to simply site was selected by reason of 
combine all the proposed darns the fact that a large proportion 
and projects of each side without of the inundated area would be 
even considering whether there composed of Indian lands." 
would be enough water in the The Three Tribes' first 
Missouri Basin for the combined indication that their homeland 
goals of both agencies. The was in danger was in the spring 
resulting Pick-Sloan Plan was of 1943 when engineers and small 
approved by Congress as part of red surveyors' flags were noticed 
the Flood Control Act of 1944. around Garrison and Elbowoods. 

Neither side gave much The Stanley Sun was the first to 
consideration to Fort Berthold or break the news to the tribes that 
the many other reservations that the government was planning 
would be affected by the dams. a dam. The Sun reported that 
Taking land for a public works the engineers were trying to 
project from Indian reservations determine where exactly it would 
was very different from using be built. 
eminent domain laws to take it Once the Pick-Sloan plan 
from private citizens. Reservation was approved, the Army Corps 
land was protected by treaties unleashed major advertising 
in which the government had efforts to promote the darns in 
promised to recognize the lands MissouriBasinstates. Newspapers 
of the Three Tribes as theirs in North Dakota reported that 
forever. According to the legal the Garrison Darn, the first of the 
situation in force by that time, new dams, would be a wonder of 
much of the land to be flooded the modern age, providing flood 
was held in trust by the United control, irrigation, recreation, 
States Government for the tribes. cheap electricity and, eventually, 
But four of the five artificial lakes an industrial paradise for the 
to be created from the Missouri state, not to mention a crystal­
would fall on reservations, and clear sparkling blue lake in place 
the Three Affiliated Tribes would of the muddy Missouri. A text 
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was even written for the state's 
public schools so that school 
children could be informed in 
class about the benefits of the 
dam, presented as a monumental 
work of human technology and 
ingenuity. 

The Three Tribes tried to 
defend their homes, land, cities 
and economic base. As early as 
November, 1943, the tribal council 
passed a resolution opposing 
construction of the dam because of 
the "untold material and economic 
damage" it would cause to the 
Three Affiliated Tribes. Members 
of the tribal council traveled back 
and forth to Washington many 
times in the following years to 
plead their case. They did not have 
travel money or even professional 
suits to wear, so dances and other 
fundraisers were held throughout 
the reservation to pay for their 
tickets and hotel bills, while other 
members sought out used suits 
of clothing for them in church 
donation barrels. The tribes hired 
a civil engineer named Daniel C. 
Walser to propose an alternative 
dam site. He developed a design 
for a dam in the northwestern 
part of the reservation, which 
would have left the majority of the 
reservation bottomlands intact. 
According to Walser, it would 
have achieved the same flood­
control and irrigation results as 
the Garrison Dam, generated 
electricity even more efficiently, 
cost $1 million less to build, and 
saved perhaps $20 million in 
relocation costs. The Three Tribes 
even offered to give this land to 
the government for free, but the 
Army Corps would not consider it. 
Many have blamed longstanding 
rivalry between the corps and civil 
engineers. 

Having approved the Pick­
Sloan plan in 1944, Congress 
finally authorized funding for it in 
1946 under the stipulation that the 
tribes be offered land of sufficient 
size and comparable quality to 
replace the lands to be destroyed 
by the dam. It looked as if the most 
likely area would be the land just 
south of the dam, in the Washburn 
area. However, an outcry from the 
local non-Indian residents quickly 
dampened the idea. 

In May of 1946, Colonel Pick, 
North Dakota Governor Fred 
Aandahl and other officials 
involved with the dam met 
with Three Tribes members in 
Elbowoods. The corps hoped 
to persuade tl1e Three Tribes to 

accept replacement lands outside 
of the current reservation, but 
the tribes hoped to persuade the 
corps to consider their other dam 
location. One Three Tribes man 
expressed empathy for the white 
settlers who would have to be 
removed to give the Three Tribes 
additional river bottom land. 
"The residents of the lieu area are 
pioneers of the country, and I do 
not think it right to compel them to 
leave their home." The consensus 
of the tribes was that they could 
not duplicate their former lifestyle 
in other riverside areas. Both the 
tribes and the Bureau of Indian 
Affairs ultimately rejected the 
offer. 

Finally, in 1947, the tribes were 
offered $5,105,625 along with 
irrigation and free electrical power 
as a take-it-or-leave-it settlement 
for the lands to be inundated. 
Tribal Council Chairman George 
Gillette, literally in tears, signed 
the agreement on May 21, 1948. 
The Sanish Sentinal quoted him as 
saying that day, "The truth is, as 
everyone knows our Treaty of Fort 
Laramie, made in 1851 and our 
tribal constitutions are being torn 
into shreds by this contract." 

Once work began on the dam, 
it was every bit the amazing 
spectacle of human might and 
technology the Army Corps 
literature had promised. An entire 
planned town, named Riverdale, 
with its own church, school, stores 
and recreation centers was built 
next to the site to house all the 
workers. A bFidge was built over 
the river from which dump trucks 
poured stone and earth to form the 
dam while earthmovers worked 
the sides of the site. Massive 
turbines were constructed for the 
electrical generators. Meanwhile, 
Three Tribes members were 
haphazardly relocated from their 
precious river bottom to lands 
on the desolate high plains. 
Frequently, entire houses were 
moved on trailers, leaving behind 
ghost towns of gaping basements. 
Other Three Tribes members were 
given new housing with woefully 
inadequate insulation that no 
North Dakota resident would 
voluntarily chose against the harsh 
winters. Tribal members were not 
permitted to salvage the wood of 
the cottonwood trees. On the high 
plains they would no longer have 
access to their usual wood and 
coal veins as sources of fuel and 
heat. Government representatives 
told them that they would receive 

sufficient electricity from the dam 
generators as a replacement, but 
the promise was never followed 
through. 

Final!)" in 1954, fue dam 
was finished. President Dwight 
D. Eisenhower himself came 
to oversee the dam-closing 
celebration. After he left and the 
festivities died down, the Mandan, 
Hidatsa and Arikara watched 
the water slowly back up against 
the earth-filled wall and swallow 
up a little more of their doomed 
homeland every day for the next 
two years. 

In addition to never receiving 
the power benefits, the promise 
of irrigation for the people's 
new lands never materialized. 
Furthermore, the swollen Missouri 
now divided the reservation into 
five distinct sections that could 
not be accessed except by driving 
many dozens of miles outside the 
reservation to the nearest bridges. 
The combined force of all these 
factors threw the once-growing 
Three Tribes economy on its side 
for decades. Despite repeated 
attempts at justice, none got very 
far. With their economic base 
destroyed and no help establishing 
a new one, the tribes struggled on 
for over 30 years. 

In 1986, a Joint Tribal Advisory 
Committee was formed under 
orders from the Secretary of 
the Department of the Interior 
to examine the effects of the 
Garrison Dam on the people of 
the Fort Bertl1old Reservation, as 
well as the effects of other Pick­
Sloan dams on the people of the 
Standing Rock Reservation. In 
a carefully-researched, 90-page 
document, the committee reported 
that the Three Affiliated Tribes 
had borne most of the expense 
of a dam of which they had not 
voluntarily accepted construction, 
and brought them no benefits 
whatsoever. Even though written 
in straight-forward, objective 
legal terminology, the document 
is deeply moving as one reads 
the long list of injustices done to 
the tribes. The committee pointed 
out that justly compensating the 
Three Tribes for the taking of 
their lands required much more 
than reimbursing them for the fair 
market value of their farmland. 
The river bottomland was also 
the essential raw material of fueir 
economy-an economy that could 
not be replicated on the dry high 
plains. Adequate compensation 
should consider what it would 

take for the people to form some 
completely new kind of economic 
base. Furthermore, the document 
pointed out how the dividing 
of the reservation had lead to 
serious difficulties in reaching 
emergency medical care, how 
the taking of the trees and coal 
veins had eliminated the tribes' 
energy sources in ways that the 
failed promise of electricity had 
never restored, while shabbily­
insulated government-provided 
houses often forced families at the 
time to pay electrical bills of $400 
or $500 per month in the winter. 
Because the land was taken in 
square chunks, a considerable 
amount of excess land around 
the reservoir had been taken that 
was not needed for the running 
of the dam. Health care facilities, 
an important bridge, schools, 
highways and access roads had 
been removed that were never 
replaced, despite Army Corps 
promises. Furthermore, the tribes 
were not allowed to develop 
picnic shelters, marinas and 
other recreational facilities along 
the lakeshore that might help 
their economy. Altogether, the 
document listed 10 changes that 
Congress should make to improve 
the fairness of the land-taking of 
1948. 

Once the report was sent to 
Secretary of the Interior Donald 
P. Hodel, however, he allowed it 
to sit on his desk for over a year. 
It appeared that the document 
would be ignored indefinitely until 
President Ronald Reagan, during a 
meeting with then-tribal chairman 
Ed Lone Fight and several other 
Native American leaders, heard 
about the situation and personally 
requested Secretary Hodel to look 
into the document right away. This 
began a long legislative process, 
lasting until late 1992, in which 
Congress agreed to pay the tribes 
$149.2 million dollars to help 
them recover from the damages 
caused by the dam. Money from 
the electricity generated by the 
Garrison Dam was to be placed 
into a trust fund and the interest 
from the fund to be sent to the 
tribal government at regular 
intervals. 

This amount was less than half 
the minimum suggested by the 
Joint Tribal Advisory Committee. 

Of course, no amount of money 
or improvements will ever bring 
back the memories, the beauty or 
the thousand-year ties lost to the 
flood. 
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Tex "Red Tipped Arrow" Hall, Chairman 
Mandan H idatsa & Arikara Nation 

Fort Berthold Indian Reservation 

Chairman Porter, Vice Chairman Damschen and members of the House Energy and 

Natural Resources Committee, my name is Fred Fox, I am the Vice Chairman of the Mandan 

Hidatsa and Arikara Nation (MHA Nation) of the Fort Berthold Indian Reservation. I am here to 

present testimony on behalf of Chairman Tex Hall. I respectfully provide this testimony in 

opposition to House Bill 1 338 .  We also oppose House Concurrent Resolution 3 0 1 0, both of 

which address the return of excess lands around Lake Sakakawea. 

In its current form, HB 1 338 directs the Governor to negotiate with the federal 

government for the return of excess lands around Lake Sakakawea and Lake Oahe. The MHA 

Nation is opposed to this Bill because it makes no exception for lands taken by the United States 

within the Fort Berthold or Standing Rock Reservations. Without a clarifying amendment to 

ensure that the Bill does not apply to lands within the Fort Berthold and Standing Rock 

Reservations, this Bill conflicts with long-standing federal treaties and law securing reservation 

lands for the benefit of Indian tribes and our members. This Bill also conflicts with a specific 

federal law, Section 206 (b) of the Fort Berthold Reservation Mineral Restoration Act, which 

provides for the return of lands not needed by the Army Corps around Lake Sakakawea and 

within the Fort Berthold Reservation to the MHA Nation. 

In fact, the MHA Nation has been working pursuant to Section 206 (b) for a number of 

years to obtain the return of our lands. In our efforts, we are not seeking the return of State 

lands, and we have pledged to work with the non-Indians and recreation areas within the 



Testimony of Chairman Hall on HCR 3010 
House Energy and Natural Resources Committee 

4 _, January 29, 2013 
Page 2 of 4 

Reservation to assure their continued access. HB 1 338 ,  as currently  drafted, will interfere in 

these ongoing efforts. This Committee should amend HB 1 33 8  to be consistent with long­

standing federal treaties and law and to respect the efforts of the MHA Nation to obtain the 

Reservation lands that were taken. 

I note that this is the second time in recent years that I have been forced to testify in 

opposition to a measure in the North Dakota Legislature seeking Army Corps' surplus lands 

around Lake Sakakawea and Oahe. In the 62nd Legislative Assembly I testified in opposition to 

House Bill 1 466 for its failure to properly exclude reservation lands from its provisions. I ask 

that the North Dakota Legislature end these efforts to usurp tribal lands and begin to develop 

bills and resolutions that recognize the MHA Nation' s  and the Standing Rock Sioux Tribe' s  

rightful c laim t o  the excess reservation lands around Lake Sakakawea and Lake Oahe. 

The Mandan, Hidatsa and Arikara people have, for centuries, l ived and thrived along the 

Missouri River, which we have long called "grandfather". The River has always been our lifeblood 

and the source of much of our economic activity. History documents that the Missouri River and the 

history of our peoples are inseparable. Our lodges were built along its bluffs, our crops grew, and our 

animals grazed and had shelter along the river bottom. We built our culture and economy around the 

river, it was our heartland. Even during the Great Depression our people did wel l  along the River. 

This all changed when the Army Corps came with the Flood Control Act and constructed the 

Missouri River Pick-Sloan Project. 

The Missouri River is now control led by a series of dams. One of our former Chairmen, the 

late Carl Whitman, noted that these dams were conveniently placed to have maximum effect on the 

Indian tribes whose reservations and homelands lie directly upriver from the dams, placed that way 

primarily because it was easier to condemn tribal lands than other lands along the river. This is a 

documented fact. 

No one can dispute that the effects of these dams have been devastating to our people, our 

culture, and our way of life. The MHA Nation is only now beginning to emerge from the long 

shadow of devastation inflicted by the "great flood" as our elders have cal led the creation of Lake 

Sakakawea behind the dam. This flood took away 1 56,000 acres of our heartland. This was fertile 

bottom land that supported our people and our animals for centuries. The reservoir called Lake 

Sakakawea stretches from one end of our Reservation to the other. The reservoir also means that we 
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have lost immediate access to the river, as the Army Corps owns the land adjacent to it, part of what 

is cal led the "taken area". 

The MHA Nation was the only tribal nation to be split in two parts by the dams. In fact, to 

get from one part of our Reservation to another, we must travel outside the boundaries of our 

Reservation. What used to be a close knit community is now split into widely separated towns, with 

some communities, once a few miles part, separated by 1 20 miles because of Lake Sakakawea. 

I have attached an article entitled "Defending Their Lands" written by Robert J. Hanna for 

"The Past Times", the official publication of the Fort Lincoln Foundation. I ask that it be made a part 

of the record along with this testimony. I want to quote the beginning of this insightful article 

because it goes to the heart of the injustice that surrounds the taking of our homeland, and our 

continuing effort to regain the land that was unjustly taken from our people. Remember, it was 

during World War I I  when the groundwork was being laid for the Garrison Dam. The Article quotes 

what one of our Councilmen said back then: 

"The principles that we fought for in this last war, right beside you, was for the very homes, 

lands, and resources that you are trying to take from us today. " 

-Mandan, Hidatsa and Arikara Nation Councilman Mark Mahto, Washington, D. C. ,  July 1 7, 

1947. 

The Past Times Article goes on to state : 

"It was a bitter irony. During World War II, while 250 Mandan, Hidatsa and Arikara 

Indians- half the adult men from their reservation-were away fighting to protect their 

country and homes, their country was making plans to destroy their homes instead. In 

1944, Congress approved a plan to build a dam that would flood the core of the Fort 

Berthold Reservation and the homes of90 percent of the reservation 's people. " 

The Garrison Dam displaced 90 percent of our people and flooded all of our towns, 

including our hospital which has never been replaced. The Fort Berthold Indian Reservation was 

set aside by federal law for the benefit of the MHA Nation. If the excess Reservation lands along 

the lake belong to anyone, they belong to us. Federal law authorizes the return of these excess 

lands to the MHA Nation. Section 206 (b) of the Fort Berthold Reservation Mineral Restoration 

Act grants the Secretary of the Army the power to enter into agreements with the Secretary of the 

Interior to restore these excess lands in trust for the Mandan Hidatsa and Arikara Nation. This 

federal law will help to remedy a historical injustice. 
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I ask that the State of North Dakota and its Legislature respect the sacrifice our people 

made in the taking of our heartland and economic resources, and our efforts to regain what was 

wrongfully taken from us. We will stand with you in your effort to regain the excess lands in 

North Dakota that were taken outside of the Reservation. But we will continue to fight any effort 

by the State to acquire the land that was taken unjustly from the MHA Nation. Mr. Chairman, 

Mr. Vice Chairman and members of the Committee, I urge you to clarify that this Bill does not 

apply to the excess lands taken within the boundaries of the Fort Berthold and Standing Rock 

Reservations. 



STATEMENT OF CHARLES W. MURPHY 

CHAI RMAN, STANDING ROCK SIOUX TRIBE 
NORTH DAKOTA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 

ENERGY AND NATURAL RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
HEARING ON HB 1 33 8  

FEBRUARY 7 ,  20 1 3  

Mr. Chainnan and members of the Energy and Natural Resources Committee, my name is Charles 

W. Murphy. I serve as Chairman of the Standing Rock Sioux Tribe. I ask that my statement be entered 

into the hearing record on HB 1 3 3 8, a bill to require the governor to negotiate for the transfer of Army 

Corps of Engineers' land to the adj acent landowners. 

I recognize the severe impact of the Missouri Basin Pick-Sloan Program, and the desire of the 

affected landowners to receive excess lands taken by the Corps. Indeed, we do not oppose the individual 

landowners to whom this Bill references, nor denigrate their collective loss. But it is because the Standing 

Rock Sioux Tribe so thoroughly identifies with that loss that raises serious concerns for the Tribe over the 

Bil l .  The Pick-Sloan Program, and resultant dam construction, decimated lndian Country along the 

Missouri River, including the Treaty-protected homeland of the Standing Rock Sioux Tribe, which led to 

the taking of 56,000 acres of the Tribe's land, and the dislocation of a quarter of the Tribe' s  population. 

Given the Tribe' s  own history, its overwhelming interest in the return of taken Tribal lands, and the 

impl ications of the language in the bill  before you, the Tribe's primary concerns with HB 1 33 8  focus Dn 

two areas: 

( I )  HB 1 33 8  will  harm Native American cultural resources on land that may be transferred 

out of federal status, as federal protections currently in place would be eliminated. 

(2) HB 1 3 38 does not adequately take into consideration Tribal interests. 

Given these concerns, addressed more thoroughly below, further discussion between the State and 

Tribe is necessary on this issue before legislation is enacted mandating negotiations over the return of taken 

lands, and we must respectfully request a "do not pass" recommendation on HB 1 3 38.  

1 .  The Proposed Land Transfer Under HB 1 338 Would Eliminate Federal Protections 

for Cultural Resou rces Along the Missouri River. 

Our Tribe wintered in the bottomlands of the Missouri River for hundreds of years before non­

Indian settlement. Consequently, this area contained a wealth of artifacts and cultural resources of our 

Tribe (and the Three Affiliated Tribes). By one report, the Corps of Engineers itself identified I ,  1 1 4 

cultural sites at Lake Oahe, and 1 ,402 cultural sites at Lake Sakakawea. (U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, 

Final Environmental Impact Statement, Missouri River Master Water Control Manual, Review and Update, 

March 2003, p. 3 - 1 65). While those are significant numbers, the Tribe believes these figures are still too 

low, and there are probably thousands of additional sites. Their protection is very important to the Standing 

Rock Sioux Tribe. 

1 
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The Oahe Act of September 2, 1 958, which authorized the Corps of Engineers to acquire 56,000 

acres of wooded bottomlands at Standing Rock for the Oahe Reservoir, required the Corps to relocate the 

cemeteries that were located in the taken area. (72 Stat. 1 762- 1 763). The Corps, however, failed to do so. 

As a result, water level fluctuations at the M issouri River main stem reservoirs continue to result in the 

unearthing of human remains, funerary objects and cultural resources, traceable to Standing Rock and our 

neighboring Tribes. 

Federal law protects these objects from looting and other activities, as long as they are located on 

federal land. The National H istoric Preservation Act (NHPA) requires federal agencies to evaluate the 

impacts of their operations on such sites, to consult with the H istoric Preservation Officers when such 

impacts occur, and to mitigate harm. ( 1 6  U.S.C. §470t). The Native American Graves Protection and 

Repatriation Act (NAGPRA) prohibits the intentional unearthing of Native grave sites and cultural objects 

on federal lands, and prescribes mitigati'on requirements for the unintentional unearthing of such objects. 

(25 U.S.C. §3002). 

Any Corps of Engineers' land transferred to the Tribes retain their federal character, so these 

protections would remain in place. But Corps' lands transferred to private landowners would lose these 

protections for Native American cultural resources. Such resources, when uncovered, would be subject to 

c laims of private ownership and to possible excavation and sale. 

That is extremely troubling to the Standing Rock Sioux Tribe, as many of the historic sites and 

cultural resources along the M issouri River are of Lakota and Dakota origin. As such we have proprietary 

rights to these resources under NAGPRA. (25 U.S.C. §3002). Any land transfer to private landowners, as 

contemplated in HB 1 338, wil l  jeopardize our rights under NHPA and NAGPRA. This issue requires 

much more consideration before there may be any negotiated transfer of land from federal to private status. 

2. H B  1 338 Does Not Adequately Take Into Consideration Tribal Interests. 

HB 1 33 8  provides that the Governor negotiate the return of excess lands ''to neighboring 

landowners." This language does not distinguish between the Corps of Engineers' land acquired from the 

Standing Rock Sioux Tribe and Tribal members, and the Corps' land in North Dakota outside of the 

Reservations, and therefore the intent as to the extent of the Governor's authority is unclear. As you are 

aware, the Tribe is a sovereign nation, and taken Tribal and trust lands within the Reservation boundaries 

are within the purview of the Tribe and the Federal Government, for which the Governor does not have the 

authority to negotiate. The Tribe wants to clarify that the Bil l  cannot grant that authority, as it would be in 

conflict with inherent principles of the Tribe's sovereignty. 

However, beyond that issue, the Tribe still opposes the Bil l  since it makes no acknowledgement or 

provision of support for the Tribe' s  significant interests in the return of its taken lands, nor provide for a 

Tribal voice in the negotiations. 

The land taken from our Tribe by the Corps of Engineers for the Pick-Sloan program was Treaty­

protected land, guaranteed to our Tribe to be held in trust by the United States in perpetuity, in the Treaty 

of Fort Laramie of April 29, 1 868 ( 1 5  Stat. 635). After ignoring those Treaty obligations and flooding the 
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Reservation, section l (b) of the 1 958 Oahe Act provided that excess taken land should be returned to Tribe 

and former Indian landowners within two years. (72 Stat. 1 762). A lthough approximately 20,000 acres of 

Corps lands at Standing Rock lay above 1 620 mean sea level, the maximum pool level for Oahe Reservoir, 

the Corps never implemented this provision. 

In 1 985, the Secretary of the Interior appointed an authoritative committee to study Pick-S loan' s  

impacts on the Standing Rock Sioux and Three Affiliated Tribes. The establishment o f  this committee was 

related to passage of the Garrison Reformulation Act of 1 986. ( I  00 Stat. 4 1 8-426). Prominent North 

Dakotans, such as General C. Emerson Murray, were appointed to the Joint Tribal Advisory Committee 

(JT A C). The JT AC Committee issued its Final Report on May 23, 1 986. The report stated, "The former 

Indian lands comprising the present excess lands should be restored to the [Standing Rock and Three 

Affi liated] tribes subject to easements for project purposes." (Final Report of the Garrison Unit Joint 

Tribal Advisory Committee, May 23, 1 986, p. 3). 

In 1 992, the Congress established a process for the transfer of these lands to the Tribe and former 

Indian al lottees, in the Three Affiliated Tribes and Standing Rock Sioux Tribe Equitable Compensation A ct. 

( I  06 Stat. 4734-4738). However, this provision was repealed in the Emergency Supplemental 

Appropriations A ct of February 12, 1 994, due to the inability of the Corps of Engineers and Bureau of 

Indian Affairs to carry out the land transfer in a timely manner. The repeal states that, "the U.S.  Army 

Corps of Engineers should proceed with the Secretary of the Interior to designate excess lands and transfer 

them pursuant to Public Law 93-599." ( I  08 Stat. 3). Accordingly, Standing Rock has been attempting to 

work with the Corps for a land transfer under P.L.  93-599, which authorizes the administrative transfer of 

excess Corps' lands to the Interior Secretary, to be held in trust for Tribes. Unfortunately, the state of North 

Dakota has previously expressed opposition to related Tribal efforts. (Letter of Honorable John Hoeven to 

the Departments of the Interior and the Army, dated March 4, 2008, referencing "serious opposition," to an 

administrative land transfer at Fort Berthold). 

Therefore, for nearly 50 years, the Tribe has had expectations of a return of taken Tribal lands, and 

has seen those expectations unfulfilled. By promoting the return of off-Reservation land to landowners, 

while not supporting the Tribe' s  efforts which have spanned the last half-century, nor by ensuring the Tribe 

would be made part of the negotiations, leaves unaccounted not only a significant amount of taken land, but 

also the hopes and interests of hundreds of Tribal members who are also citizens of the State of North 

Dakota. In addition, the Tribe is concerned that the Bil l 's  contemplation of the rights of off-Reservation 

landowners, to the exclusion of equal contemplation of the Tribe and Tribal members, would cast a shadow 

over the Tribe's own efforts, and generate an impression - even if completely baseless - that the State does 

not support the Tribe' s  initiative. 

These are serious and important issues, which should be examined and discussed between the 

State and Tribes prior to enacting legislation which would mandate negotiations over the return of excess 

lands. A similar bill (HB 1 466) was rejected in the sixty-second legislative assembly, at least in part 

because of Standing Rock's concerns and request for further discussions between the State and the Tribe. 
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The Tribe's concerns are as important today, and the need for those discussions remains as crucial, as they 

were two years ago. I remain prepared to work const;uctively with Governor Dalrymple, the legislature and 

all affected stakeholders in North Dakota, to resolve these issues in a mutually agreeable manner. Until 

discussions between the Tribes and the State occur, however, this comm ittee should not recommend 

passage of HB 1 3 38.  Thank you. 

4 
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TESTIMONY OF MIC HAE L  R. McENROE 
NORT H  DAKOTA CHAPTER, THE WILDLIFE SOCIETY 

H OUSE BILL 1 338 
ENERGY AND NATURAL RESOURCES COMMITTEE 

FEBRUARY 7, 2013 

Chairman Porter and mem bers of  Committee: 

For the record, Mike McEnroe, representing the North Dakota Chapter 
of The Wildlife Society. I am here today to oppose HB 1338. 

HB 1 338 calls for the return of certain property along Lake Oahe and 

Lake Sakakawea to be retu rned to the neighboring landowners. This 
a mount of land amounts to approximately �-a o l>o acres of public land 
managed by the North Dakota Game and Fish Department for the 
benefit of h unters and fishermen and other outdoor enthusiasts. The 
Chapter believes these lands should stay in public ownership under 
management by the Department. 

In p revious legislative sessions, this idea has been proposed. The costs 
of s u rveying boundary lines for the proposed land transfer and the costs 
of m oving fence lines and roads was estimated at over $20 million. 

We u rge a Do Not Pass on HB 1338 

Thank you and I will answer any q uestions the Committee may have. 

Ded i ca ted to t he w i se use of e l l  na tu r a l resou rces  



Amended 1 3 .0547.2002 
February 1 4, 201 3  

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HB 1338  

Page 1 ,  line 2, replace "corp" with "corps" 

Page 1 ,  line 2, replace "neighboring landowners" with "state of North Dakota" 

Page 1 ,  line 7, after " lands" insert " outside the boundaries of the Fort Berthold Indian 

Reservation" 

Page 1, line 8, after " lands" insert " outside the boundaries of the Standing Rock Sioux 

Reservation" 

Page 1 ,  line 8, replace " 1,6 1 7" with " 1,620'' 

Page 1 ,  line 8, replace "492.86" with "493 .70" 

Page 1 ,  line 9, replace "neighboring landowners" with "state of North Dakota. Any agreement 

for the return of lands described herein shall include provisions for the protection of 

native cultural and religious sites, artifacts, and human remains. The governor may 

support tribal efforts in negotiating with the United States army corps of engineers" 



HB 1 3 3 8  

A B I LL for an Act to provide for the return of certain property managed b y  the United States 

army ee:FJ?corps of engineers to the neighboring landowners state of North Dakota. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1.  

Return of land to landowners. 

The governor shall negotiate with representatives of the United States army corps of 

engineers for the return of excess lands outside the boundaries of the Fort Berthold Indian 

Reservation around Lake Sakakawea above elevation 1 ,854 feet [565 .01  meters] mean sea level 

and excess lands outside the boundaries of the Standing Rock Sioux Reservation around Lake 

Oahe above -l-;&1:-+ I ,620 feet [ 4 92.8649 3 .  70 meters] mean sea level to the neighboring 

lando'Nners state of North .Dakota. Anv agreement for the return of lands described herein shaH 

include provisions for the protection of native cultural a.nd. religious sites. artifacts. and human 

remains. The governor may support tribal efforts in neg:otiating vvith the United States army 

corps of engineers. The governor shall report on the status of negotiations to the budget section 

of the legislative management by December 3 1 ,  2014. 





1138 

Good morning . .tvly name is Herbert Grenz. I live 45 miles south of Bismarck 
bordering Lake Oahe Reservoir in Emmons County. Our family lost over 2,000 
acres to the reservoir. I was involved with negotiations with the C orps Real-estate 
Division for over 8 years in court and out of court. I was Secretary for the Oahe 
Landowners Association which was organized in 1 960 including Sioux, Emmons, 
Morton and Burleigh County landowners losing land to Lake Oahe. The 
pu...rpose-to gather information and educate landowner' s  rights for negotiation 
procedures with the Army C orps Real-estate Division. 

When Lake Oahe pool levels are reduced from elevation 1 6 1 8  down to 1 590 all 
counties in ND on Lake Oahe are reduced back to the Missouri River waterway, 
and land in this river is now state sovereign land, Oahe reservoir in ND becomes 
one gigantic slough. 

Emmons County has 60 miles (more or less) of take line bordering the lake 
reservoir. Years 2005-2008 had approximately 30,000 acres that became a noxious 
weed nursery on the lake bed. This has become a normal occurrence over the last . 
40 years of lake operation, and this lakebed will continue to become more B<!HOOttSYlokJt:totJS 
with noxious weeds every time land becomes exposed to low water levels. 

- -

B ecause lake elevation trends, the vegetation will turn to more noxious weeds and 
l ess natural vegetation. Salt cedar, Canada thistle, wormwood, and foxtail barley 
now dominate the lake bottoms�, have spread onto adjacent lands. The noxious . 
weed trend· has been uncompromised by Corps Policies by attempting to make wild 
life habitatfpriority. 

Because of these changing policies, we have observed the rapid takeover of 
noxious weeds, and the lack of resources to control the problem. 

Grazing dates have been changed to enhance wildlife, l ivestock is bad for wildlife, 
but why do they get along in the feedlots or hay lots? Most landowners are 
concerned stewards of wildlife and donate resources of assistance for wildlife 
when needed. 



Livestock, which is one of the better natural controllers of noxious weeds in its 
early stages of growth, are not allowed grazing until July 1 5t11 •  Corps claims that 
livestock will have an adverse effect on piping plover, and tern nesting along the 
lakeshore1 if not complied with--$250.00 fme will be assessed for each trespass 
incident, meaning now landowners are responsible for fencing out "Corps take 
line" if there are adj oining grazing pastures with livestock. EXHIBIT (A) 
ATTACHED. 

Property owners are having grave concerns of the influx of noxious seeds being 
spread over vast areas in E1nmons county, be it wood draws, shelter belts, wet 
lands, grazing land, dry land farming, hay land, irrigation lands, high value crops; 
noxious weeds can and does bring a bout restrictions and con tamination to 
agriculture p roduction grown in E mmons County. There is over 8,000 acres of 
irrigated l and bordering Lake Oahe in Emmons County when there is water. 

Addresses many concerns that are presently occurring in Emmons County, which 
is a concerned county with its surrounding environment. This county had a 
beautiful natural riverfront that was destroyed and not by choice. One would hope 
that after 5 0  years some of the natural beauty would return, it hasn't. 

If government owns the land or has the right to regulate it as deems fit, and people 
are at the mercy of bureaucrats regulations, land will not prosper. Land use 
regulations encumber property rights; thereby reducing or eliminating equity so 
there is little to no capital with which to create wealth. Without wealth, land 
becomes n1ore dif[lcult to protect the environment and land asset values decline. 

Received the Corps letter 1 -?6-09 "unless you have a rotational grazing plan which 
is approved by the Corps of Engineers and NRCS or other specific dates as stated 
in the lease, grazing is allowed after 1 4  July lease year." Now we have 2 sets of 
rules to follow: 1 .  NRCS, 2. Corps of Engineers. The grazing dates have been 
changed from 1 May to 1 5  July - Oct. 3 1 .  

• 

"Due to the increased interest in altetnate and early grazing dates,  (who are these 
increased interests?). Grazing lessees are encouraged to Work with their local 
NRCS to set 1-lP rotational grazing program on the Corps 1nanaged lands they lease. 

"Upon con1pl etion of a rotational grazing program, l essee are encouraged to 
personally meet in Bismarck' s  NR staff to discuss and finalize the program and 
work it into their lease.  (Question, which program do I entail my sovereign rights.) 
Paragraphs 2-3 = we are talking in my case about 90 acres of grass that has a 4.5 



mile�shore line which would support 7 ANU if not incorporated within the 2 
pastures consisting of 2,300 acres; where as, July 1 5  would control all pasture 
grazing from May 1 to July 1 5  if not fenced out. The 90 acres of grass are a 
concern because this policy is allowing thousands of noxious weed acres that lie on 
the bottomland below elevation 1 6 1 7  and noxious weeds spreading into lease land 
and private property to flourish. Weeds are not grass, therefore, not rotational 
which was explained by Ken Sedizec "Range Land Management NDSU'' during 
the March 3rd meeting, he explained the July 1 5  date for wildlife protection is  for 
haying, it was also indicated that wildlife numbers are very compatible when 
incorporated with livestock grazing before July 15 .  If forced to fence out the 4.5 
miles to -take area consisting of 90 acres, land from the Corps would not be leased 
- it' s  not worth the .bOther. What we believe brought about the 1 May to 1 5  July 
grazing date. "Digest of Federal Resource Laws of Interest to US Fish Wildlife 
Service." 2nd page The 195 8  Amendments.Wildlife Resources to the Nation. This 

. . _ _ �- is the amendment the Corps refers to. 
_ . -·�-- _ ,_ --� . _ __ _ _ _ ------- ----·-· · - --- ·- · ··--· --· - - ·- - - -- ·- m-= � .. -;rll!l!� u;::;;r::.J'ffi '(_ ilJ,_,:;,fU .�, :- -, � -::;r:_f=; :•..- '-'" •. - -····· ·  

\t. The fence is another issue OQe major_,pr<tblem:iegal:dless who et:ects 
or maintains the take line 'fence; be98use of.,ery steep iDd hilly · 

. .. . · ·wiffi.��tbat� . �!---!§Jfl:���-.:���-��w-:u:�· v->i. !J.L;:::; .�-- .  
bab.:.... 'lnDU_ .. . 

. ,.. 
' � 

� . 
·. , _ ·-.:..v·· ·· - : .. . . , . 

am __,..Jl 4 7 ! ! !L , · · . . _ -._ .  - �l \ 1.1 -�tl: i �� wo l.\.:.  :1 1 1 .[(, -.::;: , ., . 

Does the Corps of Engineers have the right to jeopardize and create hann to 
citizens of this state by failing policies and neglect is a real 
challenge, involving powerful Government agencieS. .. There comes a time when we 
have to challenge the challenged. If we never dd. anything we will never know 
what we've done. But no inatter what we do, when=:you are in a Government 
Agency there are no consequences. Nobody is held accountable, who is to make 
up for their mistakes. We th,e citizens make up for their mistakes.  However, that 
certainly doesn't mean citizens can't and should point out the �istakes and hold 
fast to the facts. · 

After exhausted efforts with the Corps, landowners requested a meeting June 2008 
with Corps officials; county, districts, state and congressional per&onnel at Oahe 
Beaver Bay for a show-tell weed view for all to see. ND weed laws were being 
violated and out of control.  The Emmons County weed board requested with the 
N.D. Dept. of Agriculture meeting with the Corps which took place March 3,  200� 
at the heritage Center in Bismarck. This meeting was a long time coming for 
Federal agencies to come forth and answer questions about lack of noxious weed 
control. ATTACHED EXIDBIT (B). 



Jun kert yielded the floor to Governor John Hoeven as he entered tne neanng room. �.:rovernor Hoeven '\C'iJ' � '  
., 

thanked the Corps for being at the hearing and urged them to listen to the local landowners and act on 
· 

what they have to say. Hoeven stated that local farmers and ranchers, such as those present at the 

'a ring, are the foundation of our economy and that the Corps needs to help with weed control, not 
. , .nder it. Hoeven continued by referencing the great fisheries Lake Oahe and the Missouri River system 

offer a n d  the adjacent wildlife populations. Hoeven urged cooperation between local, state, and 
federal agencies to come up with a common sense solution and recommended that all sides recognize 
each other's problems in the process. 

John Bartel (Corps Project Operations Manager out of Pierre, SO) showed a PowerPoint presentation 
�xplaining the weed control project areas that the Corps manages. The various lake elevations and how 
those elevations affect their management decisions were presented, such as acres exposed at soecific 
lake levels. Bartel pointed out that, according to the Master Plan (1961), which is currently being 
revised, grazing is considered an "interim use" of the htnd and is not an "author�d project puroose'�, a 

... reason h e  gave for the July 15th grazing resm� The grazing restriction was implemented jn 1998 as · 

a resu lt of drought conditions to allow cattle to graze Corps land, according to Bartel. Also, it was 
· mentioned that the Fish and Wildlife Coordination Act of 1958 has· a big impact on their operations as 

it gives them guidelines to land management. Moreover, Bartel said that the focus of their weed 
control efforts shifted in 2007 from saltcedar to Canada thistle, at which time they released 700+ 
Canada thistle stem mining weevils along with several hundred Canada thistle gall flies, which are used 
for bio logical control. In 2008, Bartel pointed out that the Corps invited public comments regarding 

,ottom land grazing, at which time the NO Game and Fish Department urged them to stick with the 

July 15th grazing restriction and continue to look to biocontrol as the weed .control method of choice. 
-- -

Bartel stated tha� they also face budgeting constraints, which may lead to invasions of noxious weed 
and m entioned tll,at weed control is f� on their list of priorities, hence its lack of attention and funds. 

In FY07, the Corps spent $399,677:on weed control, of whlch j� percentwas spent via contracts with 
Emmons County. In FY09, $400t000 is going to be sought for no�ious weed control. 

P roblems the Corps faces regarding weed control include difficult terrain, winding land boundaries, the 

fact that it iS;I)Ot an authorized project, and the fact that their fiscal year starts on October 1st (doesn't 
allow them to write contracts with the Board as they must first receive the fOnds). Bartel explained 
that h igher authorities in their agency have more power, thus only allowing them to do certain things 
and/or bend certain rules. Bartel reminded people that there are also those cor\cerned with wildlife 
habitats who u rge the Corps to keep �heir grazing restriction in place. Bartel sait.i that managing land to 
satisfy all  land users is very difficult. j 

Bartel concluded his presentation by stating that if landowners contact Corps field staff with grazing 

plans, they will work together to come up with an acceptable plan. 

Bud Kuhn (Corps) declared that each year they lease land for cropping,.:haylng and grazing using a 
bidding process. The Corps uses the U.S. Department of Agriculture-North Dakota Agriculture Statistics 

Service (Fargo, NO) land appraisal values to determ ine rent fees. The Corps subtracts 25 percent from 
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(1) Th� lessee of unf�It£�4. �a�c;t �F.�.}����e, .th� ' �e��s� �gements andl�r agreements with the 
owners or lessees of adJacent land regarffihg· access,' fencmg,- and ilie · location· of bowtdary lines. In the event such 
arrangements and/or agreements are .not made,. it will be the sole responsibility of the lessee, at his own expense, to 
7S,�1Jps�t:���e�ff¥,1�ff��r�fr!?S. �� an1J������?��s, a��. to,?���· ·" .�d erec� .the �equ�d fencing which will

.
be constructed 

to meet we reqwrementS c;> tate aws. '  - ·· . . . . . . . � · ·. ·' " ' ·  . .. .. · · · . . r : .. ,, · . • 1 .  ·' : . · ! ·  - · . . .. .  

. . . : , . . {2) � fencing m�t � appr�yed . J?y . ,the United States prior to con.Struction. Fencing required under the 
o�_et pro� b�c9#s:�rirdp#{ o( qi�·v��. s��·u�ori. C.��tn!ction. !FeD.ces ·constructed iby the lessee,and not wtder 
the:. offset pro� lhc_th'bej�y�d1��l301days1 of-leal!� 'termmati&i'oi8ecome tlie.property'of'the United States. · . I . ,. · . .r f. ) .':i� .. J /  < � )J l P. ?L- 1.) :�.--'·i . L: .. . · :· / ' '. ::,H� l. ·., .i· • . . ,' t ·t' '" 

. . 1 -1 l I '. � l ·. . t ' . 
I � 

(3) Maintenance of all boundary and interior fences shall be the responsibility of.tQ e  . l�ee, E�stipg 
�ences will not be 'moved, mod,ified, or changed without written permission. The lakeside end of cross fencing must be 
ilii)ved' iilf aruf down Wfi:Ji\fiiJt"tnaqng1lalCC leveJS1 for 'safetytreaso��<R.eqliest$ to, mOdify ,any f�,· iot<l�g,tb,e .i,J;1Stallation 
ofgat�!l. �ffilifti�1lliect'ed10'the :Sismarck �atinl R�source'bffice;·:.relephOne no. f10l):255-:00l5.: I ;,. ; "  !'; . i .  

Noxious Weeds and Other Pests. 
(' ': ' :  f -� - ' ( . � : ' ' l j (1) Lessees will be responstble for control and attempted elimination oiooiious weeds on all lands leased 

to them. A rental offset may be offered fo control o oxious weeds located 1 w , 1 . fe.et.c 1 and 
adjacent to the leased premises where use of this land is authorized by Paragraph l.a.{2}, abOve� The lessee comply 

:( With. an a�plld�bl� F ,
.

, .. , ·· 'sta� Coililt)if!&ncHviUnici i:l : law.s�� �ordiilances� lindlre a ·ons .. J\dditi��Uy, the .lessee shall 
c9� . � . .. . ·.�: . _. v� · p�o�m·to �ontro '·2WJ!��t' st}2iifie)11tl. · �tiOJ!S p peStsisueh·.as, . . ll.t. ·,n,ot timi� �. r�nts, :� 
.�hopperS; at th'C direCtion-ofar\vitti rtJie·j)CiriiissiblfofJthd!;ake Manager;: rc, : ; < • ; ·;, f! / : , :> . • :: . . , · 1 , , ,  , · 

\( J ; l ' ' ; t.l � : i::'_,r:; · -· : r  •'"'·.:<:•.' .� .. r._�J .) ; :; :.. �rn �·rf t :.- -.: tij ! IJ t :�J ; ; :f , { ; r , ) • q"'! ! f ;  I ' -�- �-· i ' : '  '{'_!,,, ' l ' � · i · - - , - ,  _ - . · _ 
. 

· 

� ;' ,  '· ' ', �_._. (-'. ·. r £$1:. ·(z} 1 P�Sibi{iiluSt be1obhined .fu,m;tbe; rLak�:�g�. ·prl�� :to �th����· ri�y, :��jd�:9� �c ,i�asr9 
4 arfl1 or on ' 1aiwfoelowiLt·M7� '(N�le: �'�· :pestjCidc .. ;�cl�_;J,;utj�,;·�t� li!"�� ;t9 ���de�)n�t9�yi�es, �:ofentict8es; Jffi;e1a&; .f.GilgJcfueSTetc!Y� L8kC Ma&gets'pciQli�io,q'fot-the .1iSC of·;F«fml.ly Jegit;tere4 "mtricted use': 

pesticides 'nilist �· ��e�( ili �titigl Only c�cals' approv:e4 fQr �� m .aquatic �-!'iiifi· �e aU9\\Iid for !\¥J-c pn 1�� 
below 1617.0' n:iSfelevation.' No SUspeilde(i· : ot' caneelled: � pesticide :ID.ay ·be used'·OP ;tbe lease4 area. A liSt of these 
che���· may be o��ed frpm the Lake Manager. . ., 

- ·· · - · 

410----����- ' . ' ' ' · ·:. · . , ,  '1 ' 1  : : : ·, • •  L< : !. !  •,; ; [ !  '·c.<; ·.:.:,IH .':· ·; .. ':'Jl ::·:!J , ·, : · :•.;.''. : ,; c' :; : . ,; • .  · · :.n·- · ·  ; . . '! 1 . .  
r. : :  

. 
, , : 1  ; ' - · (3) lri additio'ldo'1tlie above;��Llc;ssee· .s� repOrt.,.all .. pesticide. : appliya�QQ.S : P�L��J .. �����·s �ua: PestiCidb Rej)ort, by 1' : Oetobef arintially.' �;report: iibaU :bC !Submitted to· .�i Lake ��BJmger � is ;�\lir¢ �eP. �f. DC 

chemicals were applied. Pesticides shall not be stored on United States' pro�rty in .mr,cess. pf �ve (5) ciays, Al� e�p� pesticide containers shall be removed from United States' property within five (5) days. · ·· 
I .<:;·_:/ · ·  · · . ( .• : · · . . ! . . · : - �:--� . .::. J u ·; I ··J·;;. : .' :�;: :. : · · · : : :· - �  i � : :- ': : n .:1 � ·; .. :· 1 l ·. . . . · ·  . .. � . . �· · · · � . i. ; .. . . 

' · --: . : . 
• •· , · ; 1 ;  '" 1 ' '  · : ' '  ( 4):�j)plic�tms :will:bie .re� -to'be,regisfered,m'·accOrdan� .wi� Fe�cral ancb�t�; �tam.�. ,Applicaton 

Will·be iegwr�_ to notifY 1\le ·Lake Miiria$er .• � .Jilinimuln1twO' days!.pljor;.to. apply.ifig :any ,e<heroi� ;to JJ,nite9, $t,at�s· ,prope� 
�d .�binif���di2:J(ii,f� t�;tne"Lttke Mana�s"O.ffice! '\!t'ithin'a �eek of tqJP.lication ... , ;; u _ ; L:: . , . � 1 ;  ; . 
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f. Vegetation Modification. Modification of existing vegetation• !in; �y ,��; J P  -����- .t;ree�, s,luubs 
brush, native and ta.qte gras�s and riparian vegetation is prohibited unless permitt� under the specific terms of this leas· 
ot appr�..:.ea;iii: 'wri� by'�e :B�·-NafunU1Risburce Office; ·Bismarck; North.P�9tai5,�W:; : :, i ,  1 :  · . 
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LAKE O ABE  PROJECT, NORTH DAKOTA 
NO. DACW45-l-09-XXXX 

• I ! 
This lease is· effective only insofar as the rights of the United States in the premises are 1concemed. �.The · 

Lessee shall obtain any permit or license which may be required by Federal, state or local statute in connection with 
the use of the premises. It is unde�tood that the graD.ting of this lease does riOfprecludS the'iiecessity<ofiobtaining a·. 
D�artment of the AI:Iw :permit for activities which involve the discharge of dredge or fill material or the placement 
offu�d.'' �l:nicfin.�::�ijt\li�u w'it�� '6f'ibe U1rited1 Sta.'tes;: priiSU'ant'to · the> pioVisionsrof :Section.rl o ·of: .the Ri•ms and 
���b-�r� A,�t .'3r f�rih 18��}'c33)1sc: 14'o3); iiid ·Section 404 ;of the;Cle8ix:Wiiters :A'ct (33 :USC § 13:44) . . . .. _ 

• • • •  J , J J:.. . .  ;. f .  U L �l :11/� �;)r.} } ._/)H dO !;: i!: 'i.J:)f1 Jn 1 . . f !.: � .,: i • - : • · . •  : .- � , . , :  •• p· - 1 - · ; , _ rf . ... .. . ... -1 J · ' • ... • . • M . .  •• • ; I . I J. ·�. ...... ..i ::: :: ,··. ·- '·· ··� .. ) . 1", ·, .. � J '"' : '  ' • J '  ,· ' : • . . ' . ' 
: Prior to the execution of this lease, the followiog :sftti"Spedflc ·Condition No;:30 :Was 1added hereto .and :m\u,le. a 

part hereof. 
. · · 
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Draft: Threats Ass&ent andSoGFP �gement for Least Tems & Piping Plovers 
Last Modified: August 1 1 .  2004 

them to the elements. SDGFP Wildlife Conservation Officers assist with patrolling 
nesting areas to keep the public out of nesting areas. 

Contaminants 
Description: Adverse affects from environmental contamination should be monitored for 
potential impacts to least tern and piping plover populations. A study on least terns and 
piping plovers on th� Missouri River did not find any reduction In reproductive success 
attributable to contamination (Welsh and Mayer 1993). Researchers should be aware 
of potential impacts by contaminants in the Mure, but management actions do not 
appear to be necessary at this time. 

Disease 
Description: A dead piping plover tested positive for West Nile virus in 2003 (Pers. 
Comm. Greg Pavelka, Corps). The Corps' crews are currently collecting dead least 
tem or piping plover specimens found during monitoring and shipping them to the 
USFWS health Jab for ·analysis. A disease epidemic among least terns and piping 
plovers could have devastating effects on the populations. 

SOGFP Management Options: SDGFP summer employees.pn the river with Corps least 
tem and piping plover crews will assist with specimen collection and documentation as 
they find carcaSses. 

Table 1 :  Causes of least tern and piping plov.er nest failures during the Corps monitoring 
period in Sot..ith Dakota. Monitoring Periods: Lake Oahe 1995-2003, Fort Randall River 
1 986-2003, 'Lewis and Clark Reservoir 1 986-2003, Gavins Point River 1 986-2003. 
Source: Greg Pavelka. · 

Least tern Nests: Causes of Failure 
Total NeStS MonitOred 4,271 · 

Cause Flooding H.uman 
Dlsturbanc• 

Number 235 22 
Destroyed 
Percent of all 5.5% 0.5% 
tern nests 

'!;_ 
Piping plover Nests:: Causes of FallOn 
T otafNests Monitored 2.564 
Cause FlOoding Human 

Disturbance 
Number 
Destroyed 

1�9 36 

Percent of all 5.0% 1 .4% 
plover nests 

� 

Last Modified: August 1 1 .  2004 

r' I Livestock �redatlon Erosion Weather 

10 2Q. 21 128 -:.·-.... 
0.2% 9 �% 0.5% 3.0% " 

Livestock F redatlon Erosion Weather 

3 · . � 56 9 63 
0.1% 0.0% 0.4% 2.5% 

d 
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t:.mmons l;OUnty vveea tsoara 
P 0 Box 1 88 
Linton, ND 58552 

'r;e: 701 -254-4802 

. Biii To: 

.. . • 
..... 11111111111 ij 

• £11 £1  / • IT 

Customer iD 

Bav 

Sales Rep lD 

2 CCS 
3 L-NWC 

4 LCS 

Check/Credit M emo N o: 

Customer PO 

Shipping Method 
Airborne 

Cost Share Discount Chemical 

Noxious Weed Control - Labor 
Cost Share Discount Labor 

Sales Tax 

Total 
Payment/Credit Applied 

TOTAL 

Ship to: 

Invoice Number: 1 1-1-08-7 

Invoice Date: Oct 1 ,  2008 

1 Page: 

Duplicate 

Payment Terms 

Net 30 Days 

Ship Date Due 'Date 

.: 

1 0/31/08 

-224.80 
5, 1 75.00 

-2,587.5d 

4,354.20 

4,354.20 

4,354.20 
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Corps deception to land owners 

During landowner negotiations with the Corps real estate division and court 
testimony taking property no fence needed for take line, therefore, no severance 
damage would be collected for fence purposes. This narrow strip of "take line" 
acreage has become a very controversial hardship for relationship with local 
landovvners, and in adequate management of the Corps policy. It' s becoming a 
concern to all parties involved. 

--------

c Ills 5 I F  v -------'---··-- · -- -- ------What the Co�s should have done, and maybe can be.done is ebrify excess land above e�evatwn � 620:to "flowage easement" category, wherefore, becoming a taxable county valuatiOn and no capital structures allowed. 

FLOWAGE EASEMENTS �' -� � 
The flowage easements acquired at the Oahe project give the Government a perpetual right to t ��'· ��� 
overflow the land when necessary as a result of construction, maintenance, and operation of the t-':: 
project. The Government also has the right to enter the easement ··lands as needed as well as to \' · 
remove from the easement lands any natural or manmade obstmctions or structures which, in the 

opinion of the Government, may be detrimental to the operation and maintenance of the project. 
The flowage easements were acquired subject to "existing easements for public roads and 

highways, publ ic utilities, railroads, and pipe lines." 

Historically, it has been Corps policy to prohibit structures for human habitation on flowage 

easements acquired by the Corps. Construction and/or mail)t�nance of non-habitable structures 

on the flowage easement are s�b.l��!_!9_�r_ohibi!.i�f!" �!.�&�!'ti9n· by the District En�_n_�er._ 
--------�------

I 

Conditional excess = meaning land wouldn't be needed 
under modem land acquisition criteria. 

Excess Land = means property under the control of any 
Federal Agency which is not required for 
its needs and the discharge of its responsibilities. 

Every ND county affected by the 1 944 Flood Act has a 
different geography and each county is going to have a 
different prospecti w of excess acres. The county· commis&ions 
of each county in the river corridor, set up committees for the 
purpose of making recommendations involving wildlife 
mitigation, recreation and excess lands. When the county 
committees have concluded their recommendations, the county 
commissioners have approved the plan, the state ofND shall 
petition the Federal Government Agencies for the transfer of 
the excess land to that county for their consideration. 

Understand, it is not possible for the Corps to transfer land 
to state or counties without specific federal legislation authority. 
All land lying below elevation 1 6JD- 1 854 and federal recreation 
areas would remain the responsibility of the Corps. 
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Glenn McCrory 

From: "Glenn McCrory" <gmccrmy@bektel.com> 
Date: Wednesday, March 27, 20 1 3  1 0:53 PM 

S E N ATE GOVE R N M ENT & VETERANS AFFA I RS COM M ITIEE 

C H A I RMAN SENATOR DICK DIVER AND M E M BERS OF TH E COM M I TIEE 

M Y  N A M E  IS G LE N N  MCCRORY FROM LI NTON N D  

I S U P P O RT TH E PASSAG E OF H OUSE B I LL 1338 

I H AVE HAN DED OUT COP I ES OF LEASES THAT LAN DOWN ERS HAVE TO AG REE TO WITH TH E CORPS OF 

E N G I N EERS BECAUSE THERE IS N O  F E N CE ON THE PROPERTY LI N E .  

1.  C O E  R U LE O F  G RAZI N G  O N LY AFTER J U LY 1 5  CONTROLS THE PR IVATE LAN D  A S  WELL. 

2.TRESPASS CHARGES CAN APPLY IF G RAZI N G  DATES ARE N OT FOLLOWED. (CONTROL) 

3 .COST OF THE LEASE I N CR EASES EVERY TI M E  THE LEASE IS R E N EWED. 

W I LDLI F E  DO N OT CARE WHO HAS TITLE TO LAN D. 

lNEED PROBLEM 

H OW WOULD THE STATE OF N O RTH DAKOTA BE AFFECTED ? 

WATER STORAG E CONTRACTS. PERM ITS TO CROSS TH E I R  EXCESS LAN D  TO O BTAI N O U R  WATER 

(CONTROL) 

I DO N OT FORESEE IT AFFECTI N G  BOAT DOCKS, SHOOTI NG RAN G ES, ETC. I B E L I EVE TH E G OVERNOR 

COU LD N EGOTIATE SUCH TH I NGS O UT. 

I H O P E  YOU CAN R ECOM M E N D  A DO PASS TO SEE I F  TH E FOOTPR I NT OF THE CORPS OF E N G I N EERS 

CAN BE REDUCED I N  NORTH DAKOTA. 

1/27/20 1 3  
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P.O. BOX 1 442 • BISMARCK, N O  58502 

TESTIMONY OF MICHAEL R. McENROE 
NORTH DAKOTA CHAPTER, THE WILDLIFE SOCIETY 

HOUSE BILL 1338 
SENATE GOVERNMENT AND VETERANS AFFAIRS 

COMMITTEE 
MARCH 28, 2013 

Chairman Dever and members of  Committee: 

For the record, Mike McEnroe, representing the North Dakota Chapter 
of The Wildlife Society. I am here today to oppose HB 1 338. 

HB 1338 calls for the return of excess prop�rty along Lake Oahe and 
Lake Sakakawea to be returned to the State. This land is neither excess 
nor not needed for p roject purposes of flood control, hydropower, 
municipal and industrial water, irrigation, navigation, fish, wildlife and 

recreation. Approximately 130,000 acres of public land managed by 
the North Dakota Game and Fish Department, State Parks and 

Recreation Department, and the U. S. Army Corps of Engineers for the 
benefit of all North Dakota citizens, including h unters and fishermen, 
campers, and hikers and outdoors enthusiasts would be lost to the 
public. The Chapter believes these lands should stay in public 
ownership under management by the respective State and federal 
agencies. 

Acq uisition of land for public recreation is very difficult in North 
Dakota. Giving up or losing public recreation lands at a time when our 
State popu lation is  increasing in not acceptable to the approximate 
270,000 outdoor enth usiasts in North Dakota. 

Ded i c a ted t o  t he w i se  u s e  of a l l na t u r a l r e s o u r c e s  



In previous legislative sessions, this idea h as been proposed. The costs 
of s u rveying boundary lines for the proposed land transfer and for 
moving fen ce l ines and roads was estimated at over $20 million. 

The Chapter stands in support of the Game and Fish Department and 
urges a Do Not Pass on HB 1 338 

Than k  you and I will answer any questions the Comm ittee may have. 



Senate Government & Veterans Affairs Committee 
March 28, 2013 

HB1338 
Testimony by Terry Fleck, Friends of Lake Sakakawea Chairman 

Good morning, I 'm Terry Fleck, chairman of the Friends of Lake Sakakawea. The Friends of Lake 
Sakakawea represent a broad cross section of stakeholders in North Dakota - cabin owners, fishermen, 
counties, cites, chambers and businesses. Our membership spans the entire state. We see the whole 
picture and for us discussions about the lake should not be about remedying wrongs of the past but about 
how we can work together in constructively moving forward into the future. It' s  about providing water 
to the cities, industries and rural areas, it's about creating economic opportunities for businesses through 
tourists and job creation and it's about developing a natural resource treasure that has enormous 
potential for ALL North Dakotans. 

The issue of transferring excess land around Lake Sakakawea is nothing new to us. We worked with 
Sen. Dorgan, Gov. Hoeven, the state and the Corps when this issue was on the table in 2006. The same 
issues remain today - uncertainty and results that cause us to fear the phrase, "be careful what you wish 
for." 

We won't belabor the point: our membership is opposed to HB 1 338 and we urge a "do not pass." We 
appreciate the opportunity to have a voice in this important discussion. 



P O E? x :>.09 r. 

Senate Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 

Missouri River Room, 10:45 am, March 28, 2013 

Good Morni ng, my name is M ichael  G unsch and a m  here today speaking on behalf of the Friends of La ke 

Sa kakawea to ask q uestions and provide insights. Looking at H B1338 one has to ask the q uestion what is 

the pu rpose a n d  i ntent of this b i l l ?  If this is  about l a ke access what cha nges? If  t h i s  is  a bout l a n d  

m a nagement around the l a ke what cha nges? 

The b i l l  req uests the return of excess lands based on fixed elevatio ns, but what is  excess? If the return is 

negotiated to these elevations, the CO E sti l l  reta i ns control below this e levation l ine, therefore nothing 

rega rd i ng l a ke access cha nges. So what a re the benefits a nd va l ue to the State of North D a kota? During 

the 20 1 1  flood Lake Saka kawea was surcha rged to elevation 1856.  If these lands were returned based on 

e levation 1854, state lands wo u l d  have been flooded .  So what are excess l a nds? Curre ntly most publ ic  

access to the l a kes is  provided on CO E la nds or those leased to the State or local  gove rnme nta l e ntities.  

HC133 8  is not necessary to provide i ncreased publ ic access, as  it does not. 

In 2007 the COE prepa red a master p lan  they now fo l low to m a nage these lake shore properties.  The 

Friends of Lake Saka kawea provided i nput and comments on this p lan .  Attached to this testimony is a 

sna pshot of one smal l  a rea a l ong the lake shore from this document. These publ ic  lands a re m a naged for 

m u lt ip le purposes, essentia l ly a zon i ng ordina nce, which governs the ir  use for publ ic  benefit. These 

p urposes or zoning designations a re based on the COE's determi nation of highest and best u se, inc luding 

factors l i ke wi ld l ife habitat, protection of cultura l resou rces, recreation a l  access, cabi ns, state pa rks, 

e rosion, etc. These a re publ ic  l a nds and m ust be m a naged as s uch, under federal or  state contro l .  Do 

we agree with every designated use, NO, b ut H B1338 is  not the vehicle to add ress our d iffere n ces. 

If the State o bta ins ownership of the multitude of parcels along the lake shore how m ight this cha nge 

l a nd uses? Would the State m a nage these properties d ifferently, proba bly? M ight they provide better 

weed co ntrol ,  certa i n ly? M ight they a l low grazing on some la nds, maybe? M ight they a l low m o re access 

to the l a ke or development in a reas where there is  significant e rosion or where it wo u l d  a dversely impact 

critical wi ld l ife habitat or cultura l resou rces? Not l i kely.  So aga i n  what a re the benefits and va lue to the 

State of North D a kota? 

So what cha nges? The State would assume land m a nagement costs. What is  the fisca l note on this and is 

it worth the price? Do not pass H B 1338 without seriously co nsidering and knowing a bout the l a rger 

conseq ue n ces. As our Chairman stated - be ca reful l y  what you ask for. Let me summarize : Access does 

not cha nge, land ma nagement rem a i ns publ ic, and the citizens of North Da kota pay the costs. 

M a nagement of these properties is the respo nsib i l ity of the CO E; let's not re l ieve them of that project 

obl igatio n .  We strongly encourage you to vote a DO NOT PASS for H B1338 . 
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TESTIMONY ON E N G ROSS E D  H O U S E  B I LL N O .  1 33 8  

Sen ate G overn m e n t  and Vete ra ns Affa i rs C o m m ittee 

Tod d  S a n d o ,  State Eng i neer 
N o rth Da kota State Wate r Comm ission 

M a rc h  28,  20 1 3  

M r. C h a i rm a n  and mem bers of the Senate Govern ment and Veterans Affa irs 
C o m m ittee ,  my name is Todd Sando.  I am the Chief Eng i neer and Secretary fo r the 
State Water C o m m ission and the State Engi neer.  I am here tod ay to provide i nformation 
reg a rd ing H ouse B i l l  1 338.  

The e levat ions referred to i n  H o use Bi l l  1 338 a re the top of  the flood control pools 
at Lake Sakakawea and Lake Oahe,  wh ich corresponds to the top of the g ates on the 
e merg ency s p i l lways . Lake Sakakawea has rarely reached 1 854 feet, and Lake Oahe 
has never reached 1 620 feet. For com pariso n ,  the base of the flood control poo l ,  wh ich 
is  the e levation targ eted for M a rch 1 of each year, is 1 837.5 feet for Lake Saka kawea 
a nd 1 607. 5 feet for Lake Oahe.  As a res u lt ,  even if the Corps could be persuaded to 
turn over land to the state, they would sti l l  own and control a r ing of land a ro u nd the 
l a kes a n d  m ake access to the state's water d ifficult  or imposs i b le as they have been 
d o i n g  with the s u rp l u s  water ag reements . 

Whe n  the Corps acq u i red the l a n d  fo r the reservoirs they d eterm i ned a pool level 
and acqu i red the enti re parcel (e .g . ,  the entire q u a rter secti o n ) .  This pool leve l was 
i n cre ased in the upstream portion of the reservoirs to acco unt  for backwater and 
agg ra d atio n .  Tra n sfer of land within the pa rcels wo uld req u i re a metes and bounds 
s u rvey that would be very cost ly .  For example ,  the Water Commission has incu rred 
costs of $3 ,000 to $3 ,500 per m i l e  for metes and bound s u rveys fo r the Southwest 
P i pe l i n e  p roject. If the section corners have been destroyed and h ave to be 
reesta b l is hed the costs are even h ig her.  At an e levation of 1 854 feet, Lake Saka kawea 
has a s h o re l ine of a p p roximately 1 , 600 m i les.  

F i n a l ly ,  the C o rps may n ot consider these lands excess for authorized p u rposes 
other t h a n  flood contro l  (e . g . ,  recreation or fis h  and w i l d l ife) .  M ore importantly, the Corps 
w i l l  l i ke ly not consider land down to the e levations p rovided as excess for flood contro l .  
Altho u g h  1 854 feet is the top of  the flood control poo l ,  i n  201 1 the Corps surch a rged 
Lake S akakawea , meaning they intentiona l ly i ncreased the elevation to 1 854.6 feet to 
p rovide add ition a l  storage a n d  red u ce the peak flood flow downstream. Si nce they 
h ave so recently s u rcharg ed Lake Saka kawea , I expect they wi l l  want to m a i ntain 
control  of the land a ro u nd the reservoirs to some elevation h igher  than the top of the 
flood control pool .  



SENATE GOVERNMENT AND VETERANS AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 

Testimony on HB 1338 

Jeb Williams, Assistant Wildlife Division Chief 

March 28, 2013 

Chairman Dever and members of the Senate Government and Veterans Mfairs Committee, my 

name is Jeb Williams, Assistant Chief of the Wildlife Division for the North Dakota Game and 

Fish Department. I 'm here today to provide information on the unintended consequences of this 

bill . 

HB 1 33 8  references the return of 'excess lands' above certain elevations around Lakes 

Sakakawea and Oahe. None of the lands should be considered 'excess' given that the Flood 

Control Act of 1 944 stated that authorized purposes were flood control, navigation, hydroelectric 

power generation, water supply, recreation, and fish and wildlife. Countless hours of hunting, 

fishing, camping, and hiking occurs on these lands. The communities of Bismarck, Mandan, 

Williston, Dickinson and Minot are growing and the demand for recreational opportunity is 

corresponding! y increasing dramatically. 

HB 1 33 8  also states the land should be returned to the State of North Dakota. There is a question 

what this actually means given the State ofNorth Dakota is actually the public and the state 

agencies serving that public. It' s  unclear which agency or agencies would be involved and 

affected. Management of these lands would be different depending on the agency and their 

respective missions and responsibilities. 

A statement was made during the House committee hearing on this bill that this is a "step in the 

process" in returning the land to private landowners. If those lands above the referenced 

elevations were transferred to private landowners it could mean a loss of approximately 1 30,000 

( 1 1 0,000 Lake Sak/20,000 Lake Oahe) acres of publicly accessible land for recreation. Of that 

amount, approximately 3 0,000 acres of wildlife management areas that North Dakota Game and 



Fish manages under permit from the U.S.  Army Corps of Engineers for wildlife production and 

recreational purposes would be in jeopardy. Shooting ranges and other facilities could be lost. 

Access to approximately 35 public boat ramp sites on Lake Sakakawea and another nine sites on 

Lake Oahe could be affected. These two large reservoirs annually account for 30-40% of all 

statewide fishing effort. 

Further, the state, through the North Dakota Game and Fish Department, has invested heavily in 

boat ramps, wildlife management areas and associated facilities over the years. Several million 

dollars of sportsmen dollars dedicated for wildlife habitat projects alone on wildlife management 

areas could be affected and approximately $9 million in boating access. Access to these areas 

would be difficult given that section lines on both Lake Sak and Oahe were vacated when 

Garrison Dam was built. 

This concludes my testimony and I would be happy to answer any questions you might have. 



HOUSE B I LL 1338 

Jack Dal1:vmple. Gol'emor 
Mark A. Zimmerman. Director 

1 61111 East Centwy A venue, Suite 3 
Bismarck. ND 585113-11649 

Phone 7111-328-535 7 
Fax 701-328-5363 

E-mail parkrec@. nd.gov 
www.parkrec.nd.gov 

SENATE GOVER N M E NT A N D  VETERANS AFFAI R C O M M ITIEE 

T H U RSDAY, MARCH 28, 2013 

N O RTH DAKOTA PARKS A N D  RECREATIO N  DEPARTM E NT 

Cha irma n  Dever and m e m bers of the Senate Government and Vetera ns Affa i r  Com mittee. I a m  M a rk Z immerman,  

D i rector of N o rt h  Da kota Pa rks a n d  Recreat ion Department.  I a ppear before th is com m ittee to  provide 

i nfo rm at ion o n  HB 1338 and the Department. 

Poss ib le i m pacts of HB 1338 on o perations of Nort h  Dakota State Pa rks and Recreat ion Department o n  La ke 

Sa ka kawea a n d  i n  the Lake Oahe a rea cou ld  be categorized i n  severa l a reas:  

1 .  Those a reas cu rrently under  lease fro m the Corps o f  E ng ineers-- Lake Saka kawea State Park, Fort 

Stevenson State Park and Lewis and Clark State Park (a tota l of 2323 acres). One a rea of concern 

wou ld  be the expense of  a survey for each of the parks if  actual  t ra nsfer of the property was to 

occur. Conservative est imates for surveys of these three pa rks alone wou ld be i n  the $100,000 
ra nge. 

H owever, should Corps a reas such as Wolf Creek Recreat ion Area, Douglas Bay Recreat ion Area, 

East Totten Tra i l  Recreation Area and perh a ps the Downstre a m  Ca m pground  be retu rned to the 

state and subsequent  m a nagement assum ed by the Depart ment, there would be m ajor add it ion a l  

costs of  staffing a n d  e q u i pment  for m a i ntena nce and operat ion of those a reas.  Project ions for 

staffing would inc lude at least 2 addit iona l  fu l l  t ime staff and perha ps 6 to 8 season a l  staff for 

season a l  m a i ntena nce and operat ion of these a reas. Capita l  projects and m ajor i m p rovem e nts to 

exist ing fac i l it ies, to bring the fac i l it ies to the level of sta ndards m a intained by th is  Department, 

wou l d  be a cou p le hundred thousand do l l a rs per bien n i u m  for at least 3 to 4 bien n i u m .  It shou l d  

be noted entra nce fees and ca m ping fees wou ld be col lected and reta ined by t h e  Department with 

the a ss u m ption of  the m a nagement of these a reas, but those reve nue streams essent ia l ly  cover 

o pe ration a l  costs. Permanent staff sa laries as wel l  as m ajor i m p rovem ent and capita l  projects 

would  look to be fu nded by general  fund do l l a rs as they currently a re now fo r a l l  state pa rks. 

Play in our backyard! 
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2 .  For  those lands in  the La ke Oahe a rea that the Corps o f  Engineers cu rrently ma intains for ca m ping 

a n d  o utdoor recreatio n a l  p ursu its such as Beave r Bay Recreat ion Area,  Hazelton Recreat ion Area 

a n d  the recreatio n a l  a rea  south of Bism a rck, K imba l l  Bottoms, known as "the desert", there wou ld 

be m ajor financ ia l  conside rat ions for the Department should those lands be transferred to the 

state a nd then to the Pa rks and Recreation Department for m a n agement.  Aga i n  there would be 

the costs of surveys to be co m pleted to clea rly define the a reas involved.  An est imated 

expenditure of $197,000 would be necessa ry for a n  in it ia l  6 m o nth seasonal  staffing a n d  sta rt- u p  

costs f o r  fencing, entra nce stat ion  construction and general  c lean-up of K i m b a l l  Bottom s  a re a .  

Addit ion a l  seaso n a l  a n d  fu l l  t ime staffing as w e l l  as ma intena nce and infrastructure u pgrades t o  

the o t h e r  m ajor  recreat iona l  a reas o n  La ke Oahe wou ld run in  t h e  h u n d reds of thousands of  

do l l a rs per  b ie n n i u m .  

A s  t h e  b i l l  current ly reads  there i s  no defin it ion as t o  what agencies o f  state government would  be 

respo nsib le for the o peration and ma intena nce of the recreation a reas currently within those a reas 

ascribed i n  the b i l l .  N o rt h  Da kota Pa rks and Recreation Department's m ission is to  p rovide 

recreationa l  o p po rtun it ies for the citizens and visitors to N o rth Da kota and provides this i nfo rmat ion 

fo r you r  considerat ion .  





TESTIMONY OF 

BRIGADIER GENERA L  ALAN DOHRMANN 
THE DEPUTY ADJUTANT GENERAL 

BEFORE THE 
GOVERN MENT AND VETERANS AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 

MARCH 28, 20 1 3  
HOUSE B I L L  1338 

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee: 

I am Brigadier General Alan Dohrmann, Deputy Adjutant General for the North Dakota National 
Guard. I am testifying neutral on HB 1 338 .  While the office of the Adj utant General does not 
have a position on the policy behind HB 1 338,  we have concerns about its potential impact to our 
readiness. 

Attached to our agency's testimony is a book of maps showing the training areas that we use 
under license or agreement from the Corps of Engineers. Based on our analysis of the engrossed 
bill, these training areas at Kimball Bottoms, Garrison Local Training Area (L T A) and Williston 
LTA could be subject to transfer from the Corp of Engineers if HB 1 33 8  is enacted into law. 

Most critical to our readiness requirements is Kimball Bottoms. Our 95ih Multi-role Bridge 
Company based in Bismarck, uses this area extensively for boating and bridging operations. 
Additionally, our 1 - 1 1 ih Aviation Battalion, based in Bismarck, uses Kimball Bottoms for fire 
bucket training, sling-load operations and air mobil ity operations. In this time of reduced federal 
training resources, having training areas near our bases is critical for maintaining our readiness. 

Another area of concern is the Garrison L T A. While this has not been used to the degree that 
Kimball Bottoms has, due to sequestration, our 1 64th Engineer Battalion out of Minot will use 
this area for its annual training this summer. Again, with the reduction in future year federal 
training dollars, this area will likely see increased use in the future. 

We also have a license from the Corps of Engineer for the Williston L T A. This site has not been 
suitable to our requirements in recent years and we are working with the Corps to terminate our 
license and secure another suitable site. Most likely any new training areas would also be Corps 
property that is subject to the transfer authority contained in HB 1 338 .  

The individual and collective training that i s  conducted at Kimball Bottoms and Garrison LTA is 
critical for both preparing our soldiers to deploy overseas and ensuring we are ready to fight fires 
and floods here in North Dakota. If this land is transferred from the Corps, we would ask that it 
be encumbered to provide for a right of access for North Dakota National Guard training. We 
are aware of this sort of agreement working in the state of South Dakota and we would hope that 
it could happen here. 

I am happy to take any questions that the committee may have. 

Attachments: 
1 .  Maps of North Dakota National Guard Training Areas 



NOTICE NO. D ACW45-1 3-B-RE-0003 

NOTICE OF AVAILABILITY CNOA) 
FOR LEASING REAL PROPERTY OF THE UNITED STATES 

LAKE OAHE PROJECT, NORTH DAKOTA 

District Commander 
Omaha District, Corps of Engineers 
Real Estate Division 
1 6 1 6  Capitol Avenue 
Omaha, Nebraska 6 8 1 02-490 1 

Date: March 20, 2013 

Sealed lease applications, subject to the conditions contained in this NOA, wi l l  be received at  the Corps of 
Engineers Real Estate Office, Administration Building, Riverdale, North Dakota 58565-0527, until I :00 p.m., 
central time, April 3, 20 1 3 , and then publicly opened at the Administration Bui lding, Riverdale, North Dakota, for 
the leasing of the fol lowing described Government real property: 

1 .  Property to be Leased. 

a. Location and D escription. Crop, Haying and Grazing land within the boundaries of the Lake Oahe 
Project, as described on the attached Appl ication for Leasing form. 

b. Description Approximate. The description of the property and the maps are believed to be 
correct, but any error or omission in the description of the property or on the maps will not constitute any ground or 
reason for nonperformance of the provis ions and conditions of the lease or claim by the Jessee for any refund or 
deduction from the rental .  

c. Map. Individual tract maps wil l  be attached to each lease as Exhibit "B" .  Maps showing the 
location of the items are available for review in the following Corps offices: Riverdale Real Estate Office, 
Administration Building, Riverdale, North Dakota 58565-0527 and the B ismarck Natural Resource Office, 1 5 1 3  
South l 21h Street, B ismarck, North Dakota 58504 .  

d.  Land Use  Regu lations. Land Use Regulations for each item offered for lease will be attached to 
each lease as Exhibit "A" . 

e. Specific Management P ractices. If appl icable, individual Speci.fic Management Practices for 
each item offered for lease are found under the Use/Conditions on the attached Application for Leasing form and 
wil l  be incorporated into the lease 's  Land Use Regulations. 

2. Purpose of Leasing. 

a. The lands described in this NOA are available for leasing for the purposes indicated on the 
attached Application for Leasing form. 

b. The purpose of leasing is to place Government lands under an effective resource management 
program and to provide for the maintenance, restoration, protection, and repair of the leased property. Cropping, 
haying, and grazing activities wi l l  be util ized as a management tool wherever compat ib le and supportive of the 
above goals. 

c. In realizing all present and anticipated needs for the operational, recreational, and fish and wildlife 
purposes on the Lake Oahe Proj ect, the Government will use all available tools of sound l and management practices 
and resource conservation to maintain, protect, repair, and/or restore the project lands. Leasing of this land is for 
an interim or temporary use o n ly. Al l  or portions of the leasehold are reserved for operational, recreational 
or wildlife management purposes, o r  may be so designated, and any lease may be modified or terminated 
when the requirement a rises, s u bject to the provisions of the condition on RENTAL ADJUSTMENT in the 
lease. 
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3.  Authority of Law. The authority to lease the items described on the attached Appl ication for Leasing form 
is Title 1 0, United States Code, Section 2667. 

4.  Terms and Cond itions of Leasing. 

a. Form of Lease. Each successful lease applicant wi l l  be 
·
required to enter into a lease with the 

Government on the Army lease form attached to this  NOA. The lease wi l l  be subj ect to al l  existing easements or 
those subsequently granted, for roads, electric power transmission l ines, telephone or telegraph l ines, water, gas, 
gasoline, oi l  or sewer pipel ines or other faci l ities located on the property covered by the lease. Tract Maps and Land 
Use Regulations containing specific management practices for each respective item wil l  be attached to and made a 
part of the lease. 

( 1)  Maintenance requirements or rental offsets are an integral part of the cash consideration for the 
lease. Failure to accomplish required maintenance or offsets may result in revocation of the lease for 
noncompliance. 

(2) The " Lease for Agricultura l  or Grazing Purposes" form wil l  be modified for grazing leases 
by adding the fol lowing cond ition: 

"30. Trespass Charges. The lessee agrees that trespass charges shall be assessed for any 
livestock belonging to the lessee, or under his control, or on the leasehold by his invitation, which remain on the 
leasehold after the date specified in the lease or which return to the leasehold prior to the date specified in the lease. 
The trespass charges are in addition to the a1mual rental and will consist of prorated rental charges for the additional 
days plus an administrative charge of $250.00 for each trespass incident. Failure to pay the trespass charges within 
30 days following receipt of b i l l ing or continued fai lure on the part of the lessee to comply with the lease provisions 
will  be sufficient grounds for immediate revocation of the lease, and wil l  not relieve the lessee from payment of any 
monies due and owing the Government." 

b. Term. The lease term will  be for the term shown under each item. 

c. Payments of Rental. The lease wil l  provide for the payment of rental, annually in advance, to 
"FAO-USAED, OMAHA D ISTRICT". The first payment of rental, less the sum deposited as a guaranty with the 
Application for Leas ing, wi l l  be made at the time the lease is del ivered to the lessee for execution. Al l  subsequent 
rental payments shall be made on or before January I '1 each year thereafter. A charge will be imposed for late 
payment of rent, as specified in the condition on CONSIDERATION in the lease. NOTE: Al l  monetary 
payments of $500.00 or less for the term shall be fu l ly paid for the term at the time the lease is delivered. 

d. Conservation and Crop Lim itations. See the Land Use Regulations attached to and made a part 
of the proposed lease form. 

' 

e. Wa rranty. The property described in the Application for Leasing wi l l  be leased subject to the 
provisions and conditions of this NOA and the attached lease form. The property is now available for inspection. 
Lease applicants are expected to inspect the property and form their own conclusions as to its suitabil ity for their 
purposes. The failure of a lease applicant to make an inspection of the property will not constitute grounds for any 
claim for adjustment or for the withdrawal of his lease application after the lease applications have been opened. It 
is understood and agreed that there is no warranty of any character other than that expressly stated in this NO A. 

f. Inspection of P roperty. Arrangements to inspect the items of land offered for lease may be made 
by contacting the Bism·arck Natural Resource Office at telephone number (70 1 )  255-00 1 5 ,  between the hours of 8 :00 
a.m. and 4 :00 p.m.,  daily, Monday through Friday, except hol idays. 

g. Condition of Property. The Corps of Engineers may prepare an Environmental Condition of 
Property (ECP), documenting the history of each of the items with regards to the storage, release, or disposal of 
hazardous substances thereon. The ECP for any item wil l  be available to any applicant upon request. By submitting 
an appl ication on an item or items, the applicant e ither waives inspection or acknowledges inspection of the 
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premises, and understands that the premises are leased without any representation or warranties whatsoever and 
without obligation on the part of the Government. 

h.  Deposit Requi red. No Application for Leasing will be considered unless it is  accompanied by a 
deposit in an amount not Jess than I 0 percent of the amount of the annual rental offered. The deposit will guarantee 
that the lease applicant will enter into a written lease and pay the balance of the rental due within ten days after the 
date of receipt of written notice of acceptance of his lease application and a lease for execution. The deposit must be 
in the form of a money order or check, payable to the "FAO USA ED-OMAHA DISTRICT". The deposit of the 
successful lease applicant will be retained by the Government to apply against payment of the balance of the annual 
rental offered, and deposits of unsuccessful lease applicants will be returned, without interest, as promptly as 
possible after rej ection. In the event of failure on the part of the successful lease applicants to enter into a lease as 
expressed in the preceding paragraph, or in the event of the lease applicant' s  failure to otherwise comply with the 
terms of this NOA, the Goverrunent may declare the lease applicant in default and the deposit may be applied by the 
Government to any loss, cost, and expense incurred by the Government, including any loss, cost, and expense 
incurred in leasing the property and including any difference between the amount specified in the lease application 
and the amount for which the Government may lease the property, if the latter amount is less than the former. The 
lease applicant is liable for the full amount of damages sustained by the Government because of his default. Such 
liabil ity is not limited to the amount of the lease applicant's deposit. 

i. Acceptance of Lease Applications. All lease applications may remain open for acceptance or 
rej ection for a period of up to 20 days after the date of opening the lease applications. Notice of Acceptance will be 
given to successful lease applicants as soon after the date of lease application opening as practical. Notice by the 
Government of the acceptance of a lease application, if not given to the successful lease applicant personally or to a 
duly authorized representative of the lease applicant will be deemed to have been sufficiently given when mailed in 
a postage paid envelope to the lease applicant at  the address indicated in his lease application.  

j .  Rejection of Lease Applications. The right is reserved, as the interests of the Government may 
require, to rej ect any and all lease applications and to waive any informality in lease applications received, and to 
accept or reject any items of any lease application, un less such lease application is qualified by specific limitation. 

k. A ward of Lease. Leases will be awarded to the lease applicant offering the highest rental amount 
and complying with the conditions of this NOA, provided that the lease applicant is responsible, his lease 
,application is reasonable, and it is in the best interest of the Government to accept it. Identical rental offers will be 
decided by drawing lots. For the purpose of this NOA and a subsequent lease, a responsive applicant is  one who has 
no delinquent accounts or unpaid debts with the Department of the Army as of the date of acceptance of the 
application and/or who has not had an Agricultural or Grazing Lease revoked for non-compliance within the last 1 0  
years. 

5. Instructions to Lease Appl icants 

a .  Lease Applications Subject to These Terms. 

(1) All lease applications submitted shall be deemed to have been made with full knowledge of all 
the terms, conditions, and requirements contained in this NOA, including those set forth in the Land Use 
Regulations (Exhibit "A") , which will be attached to the lease. 

(2) Lease applications may be submitted for one, several, or all tracts; however, a separate rental 
amount must be offered for each tract. (Lump-sum rental amount offers covering more than one or all tracts will not 
be considered.) 

(3) If  the lease applicant stipulates on the lease application form that the lease application is to be 
considered only subj ect to certain qualifying statements, the Government reserves the r ight, as its interests may 
require, to reject the lease application. However, if a lease application so qualified is accepted, acceptance will be 
subj ect to the qualifying statements stipulated by the lease applicant. 
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( 4) If a lease application for two or more tracts is designated by "first choice," "second choice," 
etc. ,  said designations wi l l  be regarded as manifesting the intention of the lease applicant to enter into a lease for no 
more than one tract with the Government. In  the event that a lease application so designated and submitted by the 
same lease applicant is  determined to be the h ighest rental offers on two or more items or tracts, the order of 
preference as indicated by the designations will determine which lease application will be accepted to the extent that 
it is in the best interest of the Government to honor said preference. 

(5) The decisions of the Omaha District, Chief of Real Estate, representing the Government, is 
final and without recourse to all lease applicants. Such decisions will be made in a manner determined to be most 
advantageous to the Government. 

b. Application For Leasing Form. Lease applications must be submitted on the Application for 
Leasing form attached to this NOA. Additional copies of the NOA and Application For Leasing form may be 
obtained from Corps of Engineers Real Estate Office, Administration Building, Riverdale, North Dakota 58565-
0527, telephone (70 1 )  654-7752 and the B ismarck Natural Resource Office, B ismarck, North Dakota, telephone 
(70 1 )  255-00 1 5 . 

c. Execution of Lease Applications. Each lease application must contain the full  address and social 
security number or tax identification number of the lease appl icant and be signed

· 
with the applicant's usual 

s ignature. A lease application executed by an attorney or agent on behalf of the lease applicant shall be 
accompanied by authenticated copy of the appl icant' s  power of attorney, or other evidence of authority to act on 
behalf of the lease applicant. If the lease applicant is a corporation, the Corporate Certificate attached to this NOA 
must be executed. If the lease application is  signed by the secretary of the corporation, the Certificate must be 
executed by some other offi cer of the corporation under the corporate seal . I n  l ieu of the Corporate Certificate, there 
may be attached to the lease application, copies of the records of the corporation that wi l l  show the official character 
and authority of the officer sigl1ing, certified by the secretary or assistant secretary, under the corporate seal, to be 
true copies. 

d. Submission of Lease Applications. It will be the duty of each lease applicant to see that the lease 
application is del ivered by the time and at the place prescribed in this NOA and to ensure that the lease application is  
completely and properly filled out. Lease appl ications received prior to the t ime of opening wil l  be securely kept, 
unopened. The person whose duty it is to open them will decide when the specified time has arrived, and no lease 
application or modifications to a lease application or withdrawals of a lease application received will be al lowed, 
except that lease applications received before award is made, but delayed in the mail by occurrences beyond control 
of the lease applicant, may be considered if written certification is furnished by authorized postal authorities to that 
effect. The Government wil l  not be responsible for the premature opening of a lease appl ication that is not properly 
addressed and identified. Electronic transm ission (i .e . ,  telefax or email) of lease applications wil l  not be considered. 

e. Lease Application Modifications and Withdrawals. Lease applications in the Government' s  
possession may be modified or  withdrawn by written request or by electronic transmission prior to  the time set for 
opening the lease applications. Negl igence on the part of the lease applicant in preparing h is lease application 
confers no right to modify or withdraw the lease application after it has been opened. 

f. Opening of Lease Applications. At the time set for open ing of lease applications, the contents 
wi l l  be made public

' 
for the information of the lease applicants and others who may be present. 

g. Marking and Seal ing Lease Applications. Lease applicants are encouraged to use the enclosed 
self-addressed envelope that contains the r

'
equired information as follows: 
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NAME OF LEASE APPLICANT 
ADDRESS 
CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE 

NOTICE NO. DACW45-13-B-RE-0003 

D 
SEALED APPLICATION FOR LEASE OF PROPERTY AT B OWMAN-HALEY LAKE PROJECT 

Notice No. DACW45-13-B-RE-0003 

TO BE OPENED: 
DATE: April 3, 2013 
TIME: 1 :00 p.m., central time 
LOCATION: COE, Real Estate Office 

Riverdale, ND 58565 

Corps of Engineers 
Real Estate Office 
Administration B uilding 
Riverdale, ND 58565-0527 

h. Additional Information. Any additional information required by the lease applicant may be obtained 
from the Corps of Engineers Real Estate Office, Administration Building, Riverdale, North Dakota 58565-0527, 
telephone number (70 1) 654-7752, or the Bismarck Natural Resource Office, 1 5 1 3  South 1 2tl' Street, Bismarck, 
North Dakota 58504, telephone number (70 1)  255-00 1 5 .  

6 .  Data Required by the Privacy Act of 1 974: The personal information requested in the NOA and 
Application for Leasing is needed and will be used to contact the lease applicant and, in the case of the successful 
lease applicant, to prepare the lease. The lease document, containing the lessee's address, will be made available to 
the public upon request. 
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DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY LEASE 

FOR AGRICULTURAL OR GRAZING PURPOSES 

LOCATED ON 

LAKE OAHE ROJECT 

-------' NORTH DAKOTA 
(county) 

NO. DACW45-l-13-XXXX 

THIS LEASE, made on behalf of the United States, between the SECRETARY OF THE ARMY, 
hereinafter referred to as the Secretary, and ------------

--:-
-

-:---:-
-

-::-
-

-:--
----­

___________________________ ; hereinafter referred to as the Lessee, 

WITNESSETH: 

That the Secretary, by authority of Title 1 0, United States Code, Section 2667, and for the consideration set 
forth herein, hereby leases to the Lessee the property hereinafter identified in Exhibit(s) , attached 
hereto and made a part hereof, hereinafter referred to as the premises, for 

purposes, and in 
accordance with the land use regulations identified in Exhibit(s) 
------------------

-..,...
-'' which is attached hereto and made a part hereof. Said 

property, lying above elevation 1 6 1 7  .0' mean sea level and containing acres, more or less, is more 
particularly described as follows: 

(Tract Number(s) and Legal Description(s) inserted) 

THIS LEASE is granted subject to the following conditions: 

1 .  TERM 

Said premises are hereby leased for a term of (years) (months), beginning 

-=---=---=---------' ___ , and ending ---------- ____ , but revocable at will 
by the Secretary. 

(Alternate) Said premises are hereby leased for a term of (years)(months), beginning 
---,--:-:--:,--------' __ , and ending , ___ , and may be renewed for up to 
an additiona1 5 years in accordance with Condition 3 1 , but revocable at will by the Secretary. 

2.  CON SID ERA TION 

(Use if there will be no rental offsets) The Lessee shall pay rental in advance to the United States in the 
amount of ($ , payable annually in 
advance to the order of the "FAO-USAED, Omaha District" and delivered to USAED, Omaha, ATTN: CENWO­
RE-S, 1 6 1 6  Capitol Avenue, Omaha, Nebraska 6 8 1 02-490 1 .  (Insert the following if first year is less than full year) 
(The period , ___ , through , ___ , shall be considered as one annual year for 
rental payment purposes. All subsequent rental payments shall be made on or before 1 January each year thereafter 
for the remainder of the lease term.) 



Lake Oahe Project, North Dakota 
NO. DACW45- I - 13-XXXX 

a. (Alternate Condition) (Use if there wil l  be rental offsets) As consideration for this lease, the Lessee shall 
pay cash rental in advance to the United States in the amount of , 

($ , payable annually to the order of the "FAO-USAED, Omaha D istrict" and delivered to 
USAED, Omaha, ATTN: CENWO-RE-S, 1 6 1 6  Capitol Avenue, Omaha, Nebraska 6 8 1 02-490 1 .  (Insert the 
following if first year is less than full  year) (The period , ___ , through , ___ , 
shall be considered as one annual year for rental payment purposes. All  subsequent rental payments shall  be made 
on or before 1 January each year thereafter for the remainder of the lease term.) Such cash rental has been reduced 
by the value of work items which shall be accomplished by the Lessee for the maintenance, protection, repair, 
restoration, and improvement of the leased premises as described in the Land Use Regulations attached as Exhibit 
__ . The Lessee shall reimburse the United States annually for any work not performed by the Lessee during the 
previous lease year in accordance with the rental offset requirement included the attached Land Use Regulations. 
The amount of the reimbursement shall be determined by the United States' appraisal of the fai r  market value of 
work and wi l l  be in addition to the cash rental due above. 

b. All  rent and other payments due under the terms of this lease must be paid on or before the date they are 
due in order to avoid the mandatory sanctions i mposed by the Debt Collection Act of 1 982, (3 1 U.S.C. Section 
37 1 7). This statute requires the i mposition of an interest charge for the late payment of debts owed to the United 
States; an administrative charge to cover the costs of processing and handling delinquent debts; and the assessment 
of an additional penalty charge on any portion of a debt that is more than 90 days past due. The provisions of the 
statute wil l  be implemented as fol lows: 

( 1 )  The United States wi ll impose an interest charge, the amount to be determined by law or regulation, on 
late payment of rent. Interest wi l l  accrue from the due date. An administrative charge to cover the cost of 
processing and hand l ing each late payment will also be imposed. 

(2) In addition to the charges set forth above, the United States wil l  i mpose a penalty charge of six percent 
(6%) per annum on any payment or portion thereof, more than ninety (90) days past due. The penalty shall accrue 
from the date of delinquency and wi l l  continue to accrue until the debt is paid in ful l .  

(3) Al l  payments received w i l l  be applied first to any accumulated interest, administrative and penalty 
charges and then to any unpaid rental or other payment balance. Interest wi l l  not accrue on any administrative or 
late payment penalty charge. 

3. NOTICES 

All correspondence and notices to be given pursuant to this lease shall be addressed, if  to the Lessee, to 

--------------- ----------------��--��------�--������--���-- · and if to the 
United States, to the District Commander, Omaha District, Attention: Chief, Real Estate Divis ion, 1 6 1 6  Capitol 
Avenue, Omaha, Nebraska 6 8 1 02-490 1 ,  or as may from time to time otherwise be directed by the parties. Notice 
shal l be deemed to have been duly given if and when enclosed in a properly sealed envelope, or wrapper, addressed 
as aforesaid, and deposited, postage prepaid, in a post office regularly maintained by the United States Postal 
Service. 

4. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES 

Except as otherwise specifically provided, any reference herein to "Secretary", "District Commander", or 
"said officer", include their duly authorized representatives. Any reference to "Lessee" shall i nc lude any sublessees, 
assignees, transferees, successors and their duly authorized representatives. 

5. SUPERVISION BY THE D ISTRICT COMMANDER 

The use and occupation of the premises shall be subject to the general supervis ion and approval of the 
D istrict Commander, Omaha D istrict, hereinafter referred to as said officer, and to such rules and regulations as may 
be prescribed from t ime to t ime by said officer. 
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6. APPLICABLE LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

Lake Oahe Project, North Dakota 
NO. DACW45-l- 13-XXXX 

The Lessee shal l  comply with all applicable Federal, state, county and municipal laws, ordinances and 
regulations wherein the premises are located. 

7. CONDITION OF PREMISES 

The Lessee acknowledges that it has inspected the premises, knows its condition, and understands that the 
same is leased without any representation or warranties whatsoever and without obligation on the part of the United 
States to make any alterations, repairs or additions thereto. 

8. TRANSFERS AND ASSIGNMENTS 

Without prior written approval of the District Commander, the Lessee shall neither transfer nor assign this 
lease, nor sublet the premises or any part thereof, nor grant any interest, privi lege or license whatsoever in 
connection with this  lease. Failure to comply with th is condition shall constitute a noncompliance for which the 
lease may be revoked immediately by the District Commander. 

9. PROTECTION OF PROPERTY 

The Lessee shall keep the premises in good order and in a clean, safe condition by and at the expense of the 
Lessee. The Lessee shall be responsible for any damage that may be caused to property of the United States by the 
activities of the Lessee under this lease, and shall exercise due di ligence in the protection of all property located on 
the premises against ftre or damage from any and all other causes. Any property of the United States damaged or 
destroyed by the Lessee incident to the exercise of the privileges herein granted shall be promptly repaired or 
replaced by the Lessee to a condition satisfactory to said officer, or at the election of said officer, reimbursement 
made therefore by the Lessee in an amount necessary to restore or replace the property to a condition satisfactory to 
said officer. 

1 0. RENTAL ADJUSTMENT 

In the event the United States revokes this lease or in any other manner materially reduces the leased area 
or materially affects its use by the Lessee prior to the expiration date, an equitable adjustment will be made in the 
rental paid or to be paid under this lease. Where the said premises are being used for farming purposes, the Lessee 
shall have the right to harvest, gather and remove such crops as may have been planted or grown on said premises, 
or the District Commander may require the Lessee to vacate immediately and, if funds are avai lable, compensation 
wil l  be made to the Lessee for the value of the remaining crops. Any adj ustment of rent or the right to harvest, 
gather and remove crops shall be evidenced by a written supplemental agreement, executed by the District 
Commander; PROVIDED, however, that none of the provisions of this paragraph shall apply in the event of 
revocation because of noncompliance by the Lessee with any of the terms and conditions of this  lease, and in that 
event, any remaining crops shall become property of the United States upon such revocation. 

1 1 . RIGHT TO ENTER AND FLOOD 

The right is reserved to the United States, its officers, agents and employees to enter upon the premises at 
any time and for any purposes necessary or convenient in connection with government purposes; to make 
inspections; to remove timber or other materials, except property of the Lessee; to flood the premises; to manipulate 
the level of the lake or pool i n  any manner whatsoever, and/or to make any other use of the lands as may be 
necessary in connection with government purposes, and the Lessee shall have no claims for damages on account 
thereof against the United States or any officer, agent or employee thereof. 

· 
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1 2. INDEMNITY 

Lake Oahe P roject, North Dakota 
NO. DACW45-1- 1 3-XXXX 

The United States shal l  not be responsible for damages to property or injuries to persons which may arise 
from or be incident to the exercise of the privi leges herein granted, or for damages to the property of the Lessee, or 
for damages to the property or injuries to the person of the Lessee's officers, agents or employees or others who may 
be on the premises at their invitation or the invitation of any one of them, and the Lessee shall hold the United States 
harmless from any and all such c laims not including damages due to the fau lt or negligence of the United States or 
its contractors. 

1 3. RESTORA TJON 

On or before the expiration of th is lease or its termination by the Lessee, the Lessee shall vacate the 
premises, remove the property of the Lessee and restore the premises to a condition satisfactory to said officer. If, 
however, this lease is revoked, the Lessee shall vacate the premises, remove said property and restore the premises 
to the aforesaid condition within such time as the said officer may designate or as otherwise specified by the 
provisions of the condition on RENTAL ADJUSTMENT. In e ither event, if the Lessee shall fai l  or neglect to 
remove said property and restore the premises, then, at the option of said officer, the property shall either become 
the property of the United States without compensation therefore, or the said officer may cause the property to be 
removed and no claim for damages against the United States or its officers or agents shall be created by or made on 
account of such removal and restoration work. The Lessee shall also pay the United States on demand any sum 
which may be expended by the United States after the expiration, revocation or termination of this lease in restoring 
the premises. 

1 4. N ON-DISCRIMINATION 

The Lessee shall not d iscriminate against any person or persons or exclude them from participation in the 
Lessee's operations, programs or activities conducted on the leased premises, because of race, color, religion, sex, 
age, handicap or national origin. 

1 5. SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS 

This lease is subject to all existing easements, or those subsequently granted as well as established access 
routes for roadways and uti l ities located, or to be located, on the premises, provided that the proposed grant of any 
new easement or route wil l  be coordinated with the Lessee, and easements wi l l  not be granted which will, in the 
opinion of the D istrict Commander, interfere with the use of the premises by the Lessee. 

1 6. S UBJECT TO M INERAL INTERESTS 

This lease is subject to all outstanding mineral interests. As to federally owned m ineral interests, it is 
understood that they may be included in present or future mineral leases issued by the Bureau of Land Management 
(BLM) which has respons ibil ity for mineral development of Federal lands. The Secretary wil l  provide lease 
stipulations to BLM for inclusion in said mineral leases that are designed to protect the premises from activities that 
would interfere with the Lessees operations or would be contrary to local law. 

1 7. TERMINATION 

This lease may be terminated by the Lessee at any time by giving at least s ixty (60) days notice thereof, in 
writing, to the D istrict Commander. In the case of such termination, no refund by the United States of any rental 
previously paid shall be made and payment in ful l  of all rent becoming due during the period of notice will be 
required. In the event the effective date of termination occurs after the start of the grazing, planting or harvesting 
season as specified in the Land Use Regulations, any rent due for the balance of the annual term, or the rental due 
for the remaining term if the lease is for Jess than one year, shall be due and payable on or before the date of such 
termination. 
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1 8. PROHIBITED USES 

a. Certain soil conservation practices may be required by the land use regulations which are identified as 
rental offsets. By acceptance of such offsets, the Lessee agrees that he wil l  not accept any Federal or State cost­
sharing payments or subsidies for the same soil conservation practices. 

b. The Lessee shall not construct or place any structure, improvement or advert ising sign or allow or permit 
such construction or placement without prior written approval of the District Commander. 

1 9. PROTECTION OF NATURAL RESOURCES 

The Lessee shall use the premises in accordance with the attached Land Use Regulations and shall at all 
times: (a) maintain the premises in good condition and free from weeds, brush, washes, gullies and other erosion 
which is detrimental to the value of the premises for agricultural purposes; (b) cut no t imber, conduct no mining 
operations, remove no sand, gravel or kindred substances from the premises; (c) commit no waste of any kind nor in 
any manner substantially change the contour or condition of the premises except changes required to accomplish soil 
and water conservation measures as may be authorized by said officer. 

20. DISPUTES 

a. Except as provided in  the Contract Disputes Act of 1 978 ( 4 1  U.S. C. §§  60 1 -6 1 3) (the Act), all disputes 
arising under or relating to this lease shall be resolved under this clause and the provisions of the Act. 

b. "Claim," as used in this clause, means a written demand or written assertion by the Lessee seeking, as a 
matter of r ight, the payment of money in a sum certain, the adjustment of interpretation of  lease terms, or other relief 
arising under or relating to this lease. A claim arising under this lease, unl ike a claim relating to this lease, is a claim 
that can be resolved under a lease clause that provides for the relief sought by the Lessee. However, a written 
demand or written assertion by the Lessee seeking the payment of money exceeding $ 1  00,000 is not a claim under 
the Act until certified as required by subparagraph c.(2) below. The routine request for rental payment that is not in 
dispute is not a claim under the Act. The request may be converted to a claim under the Act, by this clause, if it is 
disputed either as to l iabil ity or amount or is not acted upon in a reasonable time. 

c. ( I )  A claim by the Lessee shall be made in writing and submitted to the District Commander for a 
written decision. A claim by the Government against the Lessee shall be subject to a written decision by the District 
Commander. 

(2) For Lessee claims exceed ing $ 1 00,000, the Lessee shall submit with the claim a certification 
that: 

(i) The claim is made in good faith; 

( i i) Supporting data are accurate and complete to the best of the Lessee's knowledge and 
belief; and 

( i i i) The amount requested accurately reflects the lease adjustment for which the Lessee 
believes the Government is l iable. 

(3) (i) If the Lessee is an individual, the certificate shall be executed by that individual. 

(ii) If  the Lessee is  not an individual, the certification shall be executed by: 

(A) A senior company official in charge at the Lessee's location involved; or 

(B) An officer or general partner of the Lessee having overall responsibility of the 
conduct of the Lessee's affairs . 
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d. For Lessee claims of $ 1 00,000 or less, the District Commander must, if requested in writing by the 
Lessee, render a decision within 60 days of the request. For Lessee-certified claims over $ 1 00,000, the District 
Commander must, within 60 days, decide the claim or notify the Lessee of the date by which the decision will be 
made. 

e. The District Commander's decision shall be final unless the Lessee appeals or fi les a suit as provided in 
the Act. 

f. At the time a claim by the Lessee is  submitted to the District Commander or a claim by the Government 
is presented to the Lessee, the parties, by mutual consent, may agree to use alternative means of dispute resolution. 
When using alternate dispute resolution procedures, any claim, regardless of amount, shall be accompanied by the 
certification described in paragraph c .(2) of this clause, and executed in accordance with paragraph c.(3) of this 
clause. 

g. The Government shall  pay i nterest on the amount found due and unpaid by the Government from ( ! )  the 
date the District Commander received the claim (properly certified if required), or (2) the date payment otherwise 
would be due, if that date is later, until the date of payment. Simple interest on claims shall  be paid at the rate, fixed 
by the Secretary of the Treasury, as provided in the Act, which is applicable to the period during which the District 
Commander receives the claim and then at the rate applicable for each 6-month period as fixed by the Treasury 
Secretary during the pendency of the claim. Rental amounts due to the Government by the Lessee will have interest 
and penalties as set out in the Condition on CONSIDERATION. 

h.  The Lessee shall proceed dil igently with performance of the lease, pending final resolution of any 
request for relief, claim, appeal, or action arising under the lease, and comply with any decision of the District 
Commander. 

2 1 .  ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

a. Within the l imits of their respective legal powers, the parties to this lease shall protect the premises 
against pollution of its air, ground and water. The Lessee shall comply with any laws, regulations, conditions or 
instructions affecting the activity hereby authorized if and when issued by the Environmental Protection Agency, or 
any Federal, state, interstate or local governmental agency having jurisdiction to abate or prevent pollution. The 
disposal of any toxic or hazardous materials within the premises is specifically prohibited. Such regul.ations, 
conditions or instructions in effect or prescribed by the said Environmental Protection Agency, or any Federal, state, 
interstate or local governmental agency are hereby made a condition of this lease. The Lessee shall not discharge 
waste or effluent from the premises in such a manner that the discharge wil l  contaminate streams or other bodies of 
water or otherwise become a public nuisance. 

b. The Lessee will use all reasonable means available to protect the environment and natural resources, and 
where damage nonetheless occurs arising from activities of the Lessee, the Lessee shall be liable to restore the 
damaged resources. 

c. The Lessee must obtain approval in writing from said officer before any pesticides or herbicides are 
applied to the premises. 

22. HISTORIC PRESERVATION 

The Lessee shall not remove or disturb, or cause or permit to be removed or disturbed, any historical, 
archeological, architectural or other cultural artifacts, relics, remains or obj ects of antiquity. In the event such items 
are discovered on the premises, the Lessee shall immediately notify said officer and protect the site and the material 
from further disturbance until said officer gives clearance to proceed. 
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23. SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION 

Lake Oahe Project, North Dakota 
NO. DACW45-1- 13-XXXX 

The Lessee shall m aintain, in a manner satisfactory to said officer, all soil and water conservation structures 
that may be in existence upon the premises at the beginning of or that may be constructed by the Lessee during the 
term of this lease, and the Lessee shal l  take appropriate measures to prevent or control soil erosion within the 
premises. Any soil erosion occurring outside the premises resulting from the activities of the Lessee shall be 
corrected by the Lessee as directed in writing by the District Commander. 

24. TAXES 

Any and all taxes imposed by the state or its political subdivisions upon the property or interest of the 
Lessee in the premises shall be promptly paid by the Lessee. If and to the extent that the property owned by the 
Governn1ent is later made taxable by State or local governments under an Act of Congress, the lease shall be 
renegotiated. 

25. COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES 

The Lessee warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to solicit or secure this 
lease upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage or contingent fees, excepting 
bona fide employees or establ ished commercial or sell ing agencies maintained by the Lessee for the purpose of 
securing business. For breach or violation of this warranty, the United States shall have the right to annul this lease 
without liabi l ity or, in its d iscretion, to require the Lessee to pay, in addition to the lease rental or consideration, the 
full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage or contingent fee. 

26. OFFIC IALS NOT TO BENEFIT 

No member of or delegate to congress or resident commissioner shall be admitted to any share or part of 
this lease or to any benefits to arise there from. However, nothing herein contained shall be construed to extend to 
any incorporated company if this lease is for the general benefit of such corporation or company. 

27. SEVERAL LESSEES 

If more than one Lessee is  named in this lease, the obligations of said Lessees herein named shall be joint 
and several obligations. 

28. MODIFICATIONS 

This lease contains the entire agreement between the parties hereto, and no modifications of this agreement, 
or waiver, or consent hereunder shall be valid unless the same be in writing, signed by the parties to be bound or by 
a duly authorized representative and this provision shall apply to this condition as well as other conditions of this 
lease. 

29. DISCLAIMER 

This lease is effective only insofar as the rights of the United States in the premises are concerned. The 
Lessee shall obtain any permit or l icense which may be required by Federal, state or local statute in connection with 
the use of the premises. It is understood that the granting of this lease does not preclude the necessity of obtaining a 
Department of the Army permit for activities which involve the discharge of dredge or fil l  material or the placement 
of fixed structures in the waters of the United States, pursuant to the provisions of Section 1 0  of the Rivers and 
Harbors Act of 3 March 1 899 (33 USC §403), and Section 404 of the Clean Waters Act (3 3 USC § 1 344). 

Prior to the execution of th is lease, the following site specific Condition No. 30 was added hereto and made a 
part hereof. 
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30. TRESPASS CHARGES 

Lake Oahe Project, North Dakota 
NO. DACW45-1-13-XXXX 

The lessee agrees that trespass charges shall be assessed for any livestock belonging to the lessee, or under 
his control, or on the leasehold by his invitation, which remains on the leasehold after the date specified in the lease 
or which returns to the leasehold prior to the date specified in the lease. The trespass charges are in addition to the 
annual rental and will consist of prorated rental charges for the additional days plus an administrative charge of 
$250.00 for each trespass incident. Failure to pay the trespass charges within 30 days following receipt of billing or 
continued failure on the part of the lessee to comply with the lease provisions will be sufficient grounds for 
immediate revocation of the lease, and will not relieve the lessee from payment of any monies due and owing the 
Government. 

(OPTIONAL) 3 1 .  RIGHT OF RENEWAL WITHOUT COMPETITION 

The United States may renew this lease by mutual agreement with the current lessee if the lease term stated 
above expressly authorizes renewal, the lessee's performance is satisfactory, and the value as determined by the 
United States Government is acceptable. 

THIS LEASE is not subject to Title I 0, United States Code, Section 2662, as amended. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have hereunto set my hand by authority of the Secretary of the Army this 
___ day of , . 

THIS LEASE is also executed by the Lessee this 
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LAND USE REGULATIONS 
CROPPING, HAYING AND G RAZING 

OAHE PROJECT 

The lessee agrees to conduct all farming and ranching operations in accordance w ith the land use practices 
set forth in this document. 

THE LEASING OF THIS LAND IS AN INTERIM USE ONLY, UNTIL SUCH TIME AS PUBLIC USE 
OF THE LEASED PROPERTY FOR AUTHORIZED PROJECT PURPOSES REQUIRES REMOVAL OF THE 
PROPERTY FROM THE LEAS ING PROGRAM FOR OPERATIONAL, RECREATIONAL, OR FISH AND 
WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT PURPOSES. 

The use of lands covered by this lease are subject to, but not l imited to, the following 
'
specific restrictions 

and regulations and in addition must be in compliance with U.S .  Department of Agriculture approved practices for 
this community. 

1 .  General Management P ractices. 

a. Lease Operations. 

( I )  The lessee agrees to furnish all equipment, material, and labor and to conduct all farming and 
ranching operations in accordance with the lease, recognized principles of good husbandry, and the ·land use 
practices set forth herein. Al l  operations wil l  be accomplished in a timely manner without further notice and at no 
expense to the United States unless otherwise provided. All operations wil l  be conducted with extreme care to avoid 
any possibi l ity of boundary or survey monuments, markers, or bench marks being destroyed or disturbed. The lessee 
wi l l  be held responsible for any damages. The lessee must not enter and occupy the subject property prior to 
receiving a fully executed lease without the prior approval of the Natural Resource Manager. Oahe Project Office, 
28563 Powerhouse Road, Pierre, South Dakota 57501, telephone (605) 224-5862. The lessee's management plan and 
the conditions of leasing must be mutually discussed between the lessee and the Natural Resource Manager prior to 
approval of in itial entry onto the leased lands. 

(2) When the purpose of the lease is for grazing, the lessee may use the land lying below the 1 6 1 7' 
mean sea level (msl) elevation and adjacent to the leasehold for grazing purposes. All conditions of the lease will 
apply with regards to use of this land, including fencing the lease boundaries. No grazing wil l  be allowed on this 
area when tracts are leased for haying or cropping purposes only. 

b. Public Access. The lessee wil l  not interfere with nor obstruct vehicular access to and exit from the water 
areas by the general public on open, public, and reservoir access roads that cross the leased premises without the 
written permission of the Natural Resource Manager, nor interfere with the placement and use of faci l ities or 
structures authorized by the Corps of Engineers. Pedestrian access must be pem1itted. The leased premises are open 
to the general publ ic  for hunting, fishing, and related recreational activities unless prohibited by the Natural 
Resource Manager. Posting of the leased premises by the lessee with "No Trespass", "No Hunting", "Private 
Property" or similar signs is prohibited. 

c. Rental Offset Program .  An offset is  work performed by  the lessee for the United States i n  exchange for 
reduced cash rental .  Examples: leaving a specified amount of crop or hay unharvested or constructing a specified 
amount of fence. Offsets are considered standard requirements of the lease and must be performed by the lessee. 
Fail ure to perform the offset work during the specified time will result in increased rental for the remainder of the 
term or may be a basis for lease revocation. 
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d. Fences. 

( I )  The lessee of unfenced public land must make the necessary arrangements and/or agreements 
with the owners or lessees of adj acent land regarding access, fencing, and the location of boundary Jines. In the 
event such arrangements and/or agreements are not made, it will be the sole responsibil ity of the Jessee, at his own 
expense, to establish necessary access roads and boundary l ines, and to obtain and erect the required fencing which 
wil l  be constructed to meet the requirements of State Jaws and the Corps of Engineers. Al l  such improvements must 
be approved in writing by the Natural Resource Manager. 

(2) All fencing, with the exception of temporary electric type fences that are used in a grazing/rest 
type usage, must be approved by the Corps of Engineers prior to construction. Fencing required under the offset 
program becomes the property of the United States upon construction. Fences constructed by the lessee and not 
under the offset program must be removed within 30 days of lease termination or they will  become the property of 
the United States. 

(3) Maintenance of all boundary and interior fences wil l  be the responsibil ity of the lessee. 
Existing fences, with the exception of temporary electric type fences that are used in a grazing/rest type usage, shall 
not be moved, modified, or changed without written permission. The lakeside end of cross fencing must be moved 
up and down with fluctuating lake levels for safety reasons. Requests to modify any fence, including the installation 
of gates, must be directed to the Natural Resource Manager. 

e .  Noxious Weeds and Other Pests. 

( I )  Lessees will be responsible for control and attempted elimination of noxious weeds on all 
lands leased to them. A rental offset may be offered for the control of noxious weeds l ocated on lands below the 
1 6 1 7' msl elevation and adjacent to the leased premises where use of this land is authorized by Paragraph l .a.(2), 
above. The Jessee must comply with all applicable Federal, State, County, and Municipal laws, ordinances, and 
regulations. Additionally, the lessee must conduct an active program to control or prevent sign ificant infestations of 
pests such as, but not l imited to, rodents, and grasshoppers, at the direction of or with the permission of the Natural 
Resource Manager. 

(2) Permission must be obtained from the Natural Resource Manager prior to the use of any 
pesticide on the leased area or on lands below 1 6 1 7' msl elevation. (Note: the term pesticide includes but is not 
l imited to herbicides, insecticides, rodenticides, larvicides, fungicides, etc.) The Natural Resource Manager's 
permission for the use of Federally registered "restricted use" pesticides must be obtained in writing prior to 
application. Only chemicals approved for use in aquatic areas will be allowed for use on lands below 1 6 1 7' msl 
elevation. No suspended or cancelled use pesticide wi l l  be used on the leased area. A -list of these chemicals may be 
obtained from the Natural Resource Manager. 

(3) In addition to the above, the Jessee must report all pesticide applications on the Lessee's 
Annual Pesticide Report, by I October annually. This report shall be submitted to the Natural Resource Manager 
and is required even if no chemicals were appl ied. Pesticides must not be stored on United States' property in excess 
of five (5) days. All empty pesticide containers must be removed from United States' property within five (5) days of 
application. 

( 4) Applicators will be required to be registered in accordance with Federal and State statutes. 
Applicators will be required to notify the Natural Resource Manager a m inimum of two days prior to applying any 
chemicals to United States' property and submit standardized forms deta i ling all applications made to the Natural 
Resource Manager's Office within a week of application. 
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(5) The United States may pursue noxious weed control on the leased premises or below the 1 6 1 7 ' 
msl e levation without advance notification to the Lessee. 

f. Vegetation Modification. Modification of existing vegetation in  any manner, to include trees, shrubs, 
brush, native and tame grasses and riparian vegetation is prohibited unless permitted under the specific terms of this 
lease or approved in writing by the Natural Resource Manager. 

g. Burning. B urn ing, for any purpose, is prohibited on the leased premises without the prior written 
approval of the Natural Resource Manager. Such approval may be granted only when burning is justified for sound 
grazing or wildlife management practices and for drift and crop residue clearing operations where no practical 
alternative exists. A North Dakota State Burning Permit must be obtained in advance. 

h .  Dead Stock. The lessee must comply with all appl icable Federal, State, County, and Municipal laws, 
ordinances and regulations (including quarantine laws) regard ing dead stock. Additionally, the lessee must 
immediately dispose of dead stock off United States' lands, eliminate any unsanitary conditions, and prevent the 
spread of disease. 

i .  Public Use, Air  and Water Pollution. The leasehold must be managed for agricultural purposes in a 
manner that is consistent with current and future public use and enjoyment and which wil l  preserve and enhance 
scenic, scientific, aesthetic, historical, b iological, and archeological resources. The lessee must not discharge or 
apply any substance to the leasehold or operate the leasehold in any manner which would cause pollution to the 
ground water, surface waters, or air to the extent that it would endanger the health of human, animal, or aquatic life. 
Survei l lance of all possible sources of pollution must be coordinated with the State Health Department. 

j .  H ighly Erod ible Land Conservation and Wetland Conservation Programs. The Federal Agriculture 
Improvement and Reform Act of 1 996 provides for highly erodible land conservation and wetland conservation. It is 
the lessee's responsibility to obtain approval of conservation plans for highly erodible cropland, if applicable, and 
for correction of any existing erosion problems to assure eligibility of US Department of Agriculture benefits. Any 
required conservation practice may or may not be subject to rental offset in accordance with procedures outlined in 
Paragraph I .e . ,  above. 

k. Reservation to Plant Trees/Tree Plantings.  The Natural Resource Manager reserves the right withdraw 
lands from the lease to plant trees. Adjustments in rental for lands removed from the lease wil l  be in accordance with 
the Condition I 0 of the lease. 

I .  Reservation to Fence Woody Draws And Wetlands. The Natural Resource Manager reserves the right to 
withdraw woody draw and wetland habitat from the lease and fence the draw or wetland perimeter. Grazing will not 
be permitted within the draw or wetland once fenced. Adjustments in rental for lands removed from the lease will be 
in accordance with Condition 1 0  of the lease. 

m.  Vehicle and Equipment Storage. Storage of vehicles and equipment, including grain storage faci l ities, 
on lands of the United States, is prohibited. 

n. Cultural Resources. Lessees are required to notify the Natural Resource Manager upon discovery of any 
cultural resources during their authorized operations. Upon discovery of cultural resources, leases may be modified 
to implement protective measures. Unauthorized collection and disturbance of cultural resources is  a Federal 
offense and lessees must not give permission to individuals to search for or collect artifacts from lands of the United 
States. 

o. Threatened and Endangered Species. Shoreline areas are potential nesting habitat for Piping Plovers and 
Least Terns, shorebirds on the Threatened and Endangered Species list. If either or both species are observed, the 
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Corps may fence the nesting site(s) or the lessee may be asked to change grazing dates to prevent disturbance by 
l ivestock. 

p. Grazing Practices. 

( 1 )  There are two approved methods to determine livestock stocking rates, Animal Unit Months 
(AUM) or util ization of no more than 50% of annual forage production. If the leased tracts are fenced on the 
boundary, the lessee must use the AUM util ization rate as specified in Paragraph 2 .  Specific Management Practices. 
If the leased tracts are not fenced on the boundary, the lessee must use a util ization rate not to exceed 50% of annual 
forage production. If a leased area is not fenced, a non-grazing enclosure must be constructed on the premises to 
assist in measuring annual forage production. 

(2) The leasehold wi l l  be periodically inspected and/or a range condition evaluation may be 
completed during the grazing season by the Corps of Engineers. If the inspection or evaluation indicates that grazing 
is adversely impacting the range, grazing may be reduced or terminated for the season. Overgrazing, as determined 
by the Natural Resource Manager, is not permitted and may be a basis for lease revocation or future removal of 
lands from the leasing program without advance notice to the lessee or general public. 

(3) Stock must be removed during the non-grazing season and the use of the leasehold for feedlots 
or localized stock feeding operations is prohibited. The construction of pit or trench si los, ensi l ing of forage, or the 
placement of feeders or watering tanks on the leasehold is prohibited. The construction of corrals or loading chutes 
is prohibited. The use of salt, m inerals or other supplements shall be permitted on lands of the United States as a 
management tool to help in the distribution of l ivestock through a grazing unit. If a lessee fai ls  to remove unused 
blocks or leaves holding tubs within the leased area after l ivestock are removed, this privilege shall be revoked. 

(4) Grazing crop stubble is permitted only if grazing is an authorized lease purpose and only 
during the authorized grazing season, as found in Paragraph 2, Specific Management Practices. 

(5) The lessee must provide a copy and description of the brand(s) found on l ivestock that will 
graze the lease area. 

(6) Livestock animal unit (AU) equivalents are as fol lows: 

AU = Animal Unit 
AUM = Animal Unit Monthly 
1 ,000 pound Cow/Calf pair = 1 .00 AU 
Yearl ing = 0.75 AU 
Dry Cow=0.85 AU 
Bull= 1 .3 AU 
Horse= 1 .5 AU 
Ewe/Lamb pair = 0.20 AU 
Yearling Sheep = 0 . 1 2  AU 
Ram = 0.25 AU 

q. Haying Practices. 

( I )  Unless otherwise specified under Paragraph 2, Specific Management Practices, all haying will 
be conducted after 1 5  July each year. One ( 1 )  cutting only wil l  be permitted per year. 

(2) Individual hay bales, windrowed hay, broken bales, fodder butts, and windrowed feed must be 
removed from the field within 7 days of harvest. Shocked feed, hay stacks, and properly pi led bales may be 

EXIB IT "A" ATTACHED TO AND MADE 
A PART OF DACW45 - 1 - 1 3-XXXX 

Page 4 of 5 Pages 



temporarily stored on hay land of the leasehold (not in high risk flood areas or where permanent vegetation wil l  be 
damaged), but must be removed and the residue cleaned up prior to 1 October each year. 

(3) A 20-foot buffer of uncut hay must be left along all water and drainage edges, adjacent to all 
shelterbelts, tree stands and woody draws. 

r. Cropping Practices. 

( I )  Lessees must not expand cropland beyond that existing as of 1 April 1 992 unless permitted 
under the specific terms of this lease or approved in writing by the Natural Resource Manager. Cropland expansion 
includes breaking grasslands, woodlands, meadows, pastures, prairie or native sod for the purpose of planting row, 
forage, grain, hay or other crops. Expansion includes extending the perimeter of existing cropland fields. Expanding 
cropland without authorization wi l l  be considered noncompliance and msy be a basis for revocation of the lease. 

(2) Lessees must insure that food plots or crops left for wildlife, as required by a rental offset, will 
not be grazed or util ized in any manner and wil l  be left standing until 1 April of the following spring. The food plot 
acreage may be a part of the overall cropland acreage or a separate food p lot located elsewhere on the leased land. If 
the food plot is part of the overall cropland acreage, the Natural Resource Manager has the option to choose the 
location of the crop that wil l  be left standing as a wildlife food plot. A legal description or map of the area to be left 
as a food plot may be included in the lease. The Jessee may be required to plant food plots other than wheat such as 
barley, oats, com, sunflowers and sweet clover, or plant a m ixture of crops in the same field.  The wildlife food plots 
must be clean and free of weeds. 

(3) Fall plowing of crop stubble is prohibited. Summer fal low of cropland areas must be 
minimized or el iminated but fields in fallow rotation may be black fallowed if the lessee plants vegetation erosion 
strips, ridges fields or uses other Natural Resources Conservation Service approved means to inhibit wind and water 
erosion. Continuous cropping is an approved method of using cropland as long as the lessee rotates the types of 
crops that are planted annually (wheat, barley, oats, corn, sunflowers, sweet clover, etc. ) .  The Natural Resources 
manager may require the lessee to d iscontinue continuous cropping or require that specific crops be planted in a 
specific year. 

2. Specific Managemen t  Practices. 

(Specific management practices, as shown under each item, will be l isted here on the signed lease.) 

Lessee's Initials 

EXTBIT "A" ATTACHED TO AND MADE 
A PART OF DACW45- J - 1 3-XXXX 

Page 5 of 5 Pages 



TO: 

NOTICE NO. DACW45-13-B-RE-0003 

APPLICATION FOR LEASING UNITED STATES REAL PROPERTY AT 
LAKE OAHE PROJECT, NORTH DAKOTA 

District Commander 
Omaha District, Corps of Engineers 
Real Estate Division 
1616 Capitol Avenue 
O maha, Nebraska 681 02-4901 

DATE: _____ _ 

The undersigned: 

an individual 

__ a partnership consisting of _________________________ _ 

__ a corporation existing under the laws of the State of _________________ _ 

doing business as--------------------------------

of ________________________________________ , 
in accordance with your Notice of Availability No. DACW45-13-B-RE-0003 for leasing of property at the Lake 
Oahe Project, and subject to all conditions and requirements thereof, propose(s) to enter into a lease for the property 
identified below, and agree(s) to pay the rental offered below. 

Item Tract & Description Use, Conditions, Acreage and Annual Rental Offer 

Tracts 2622(pt) part ofNWli.l Sec I 0, part PURPOSE: GRAZING 
of WYzWYz Sec 3 and part of EYzEYz Sec 4, 
T l 32N, R79W ; 2624(pt) part of WYz Sec Graze after 1 5  July each lease year. 
36, T133N, R79W, Emmons County, ND 

1 90.0 acres 

TERM: 4111 13 - 1 2/3 1 1 17  with five year option to renew 

MINIMUM ACCEPT ABLE BID $2,850.00 

ANNUAL RENTAL BID "'-$ ---

2 
2 Tract 321 l (pt) part of SEY4 Sec 1 1 , T l 34N, PURPOSE: HAYING 

R79W, Emmons County, ND 

3 Tract 3428(pt) part ofNWli.ISEY4 Sec 3 1 ,  
T l 3 6N, R78W, Emmons County, ND 

Hay after 15 July each lease year. 

1 6.0 acres 

TERM: 4/1113 - 1 2/3 1/17 with five year option to renew 

MINIMUM ACCEPTABLE BID $235 .00 

ANNUAL RENTAL BID ""'$ __ _ 

PURPOSE: HAYING 

Hay north section only years 2 and 5of lease. 
Hay middle section only year 3 of lease. 



4 Tract 3452(pt) part of NW!f.t Sec 27, 
Tl35N, R79W, Morton County, ND 

NOTICE NO. DACW45-13-B-RE-0003 

Hay south section only years 1 and 4 of lease. 

2.0 acres 

TERM: 4/1/13 - 12/3 1117 with five year option to renew 

MINIMUM ACCEPTABLE BID $30 .00 

ANNUAL RENTAL BID "'"$ __ _ 

PURPOSE: HAYING & GRAZING with offset* 

Hay after 1 5  July each lease year. 

Graze 1 5  April to 15 May each lease year. 

Offset: Lessee shall plant and leave unharvested a 2.0 acre 
row crop food plot on north side of  draw and a 1 .5 acre row 
crop food plot on the south side of draw each lease year. 

25.0 acres ( 1  0 hay, 1 5  graze) 

TERM: 4/1/13 - 12/3 1117 with five year option to renew 

MINIMUM ACCEPT ABLE BID $Any Positive Bid 

ANNUAL RENTAL BID =-$ __ _ 

5 Tracts 3470(pt) part of SEYtSEYt Sec 22 PURPOSE: HAYING with offset* 
and part ofE!tSNEYt Sec 27; 3473(pt) part 
of SWY4NWY4, NWY4SWY4 and NEY4SWY4 Alfalfa or native grasses only allowed in lease area. 
Sec 26, T136N, R79W, Morton County, 
ND Ground disturbance or breaking of ground is prohibited. 

Offset: Lessee shall plant and leave unharvested a 1 .0  acre 
corn food plot each lease year. 

27.0 acres 

TERM: 4/1113 - 12/3 1/17 with five year option to renew 

MINIMUM ACCEPTABLE BID $435.00 

ANNUAL RENTAL BID ..,_$ __ _ 

2 



6 Tracts 3502(pt) part of NWY.NWY. Sec 6 ;  
3503(pt) part of NEY.NW Y. Sec 6; 35 1 6(pt) 
part ofNEY.SEY. Sec 6 ;  3 545(pt) part of 
NEY.SEY. Sec 6; 35 1 9(pt) part of 
SWY.SEY. Sec 6; 3547(pt) part of 
SEY.NEY. and NEY.SEY. Sec 6,  T l 36N, 
R79W, Morton County, ND 

NOTICE N O .  DACW45-13-B-RE-0003 

PURPOSE: HAYING 

Only one ( 1 )  hay cutting is allowed in the lease area after 1 5  
July each lease year. 

Hay south 1 5 .0 acres only years 2 and 4 of lease. 
Hay north 1 5 .0 acres only years 1 ,  3 and 5 of lease. 

30.0 acres 

TERM: 411 1 1 3  - 1 2/3 1 1 1 7  with five year option to renew 

MINIMUM ACCEPTABLE BID $ 1 75 .00 

ANNUAL RENTAL BID ""$ __ _ 

*See Bidding Instructions, paragraph 5a(2) and Land Use Regulations Paragraphs I c and 1 d(2) for additional 
information concerning offsets. Rental Offsets will be considered an integral part of the lease and the annual rental 
bid should be reduced accordingly to reflect this work performed by the Lessee. 

Lease applicant represents: (Check the appropriate boxes in the below statements. )  

(a) that applicant [ ] has [ ] has not employed or retained any company or persons (other than a full-time 
bona fide employee working solely for the lease applicant) to solicit or secure this contract, and 

(b) that applicant [ ] has [ ] has not paid or agreed to pay to any company or persons (other than a full­
time bona fide e mployee working solely for the lease applicant) any fee, commission, percentage, or brokerage fee 
to solicit or secure this  contract. 

ENCLOSED IS A CHECK OR M ONEY ORDER, MADE PAYABLE TO " FAO-USAED, OMAHA 
DISTRICT",  IN THE AMOUNT OF $ TO COVER THE REQUIRED D EPOSIT, 
WHICH IS NOT LESS THAN TEN PERCENT ( 1 0%) OF THE ANNUAL RENTAL OFFER. 

I (we) make this lease application w ith ful l  knowledge of al l the conditions and requirements set forth in the NOA 
and wil l  enter into a written lease within ten ( 1 0) days after the date of receipt of a l ease for execution. 

Signature Date 

Social Security No. or Tax Identification No. 

Street Address, Rural Route or  B ox No. 

City, State and Zip Code 

Telephone Number 
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NOTICE NO. DACW45-13-B-RE-0003 

C ORPORATE CERTIFICATE 

I, -----------,,-.----------------' certify that I am the 
(Name) 

-------
..,--,--:----

------ of the corporation named as lease applicant in the attached lease 
(Title) 

application; that--------------' who signed the lease application on behalf of the lease 
(Name) 

applicant, was known to me and was then----------- of the Corporation; and that the lease 
(Title) 

application was duly signed for on behalf of the Corporation; by authority of its governing body, and is within the 

scope of its corporate powers. 

DATE: __________ _ (CORPORATE SEAL) 
(Signature) 

PARTNERSHIP CERTIFICATE 

I, ---------
---,-

---
-:--

---------' certify that I am a General Partner 
(Partner X) 

in the Partnership named as lease applicant in the attached lease application. I further certify that 

------
-,-

--------'' who signed said lease application on behalf of that Partnership, 
(Partner Y) 

is also a General Partner and has the authority to bind the Partnership by virtue of powers vested in him in the 

Partnership Agreement. 

DATE: __________ _ (SEAL) 
(Signature Partner X) 
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DEPARTMENT OF 

lltlTRUST LANDS 

TESTI MONY BY 

M i chael Brand, Director 
Surface Management Division 

North Dakota Department of Trust Lands 

HOUSE BILL NO. 1 338 
Senate Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 

March 28, 201 3  

INVESTING FOR EDUCATION 

Lance D. Gaebe, Commissioner 

Appearing today on behalf of the Department of Trust Lands to express concerns about 
House Bill 1 338 which seeks to have the State of North Dakota acquire "excess land" around 
Lakes Sakakawea and Oahe from the Army Corps of Engineers. The Department's apprehension 
about the bill is largely because it does not contain provisions for the costs of negotiating for the 
return ; the costs and responsibilities of surveying and marking the boundary; nor the anticipated 
costs of managing the land if acquired . 

As stated in HB 1 338, the term "excess lands" is assumed to include any land above 1 ,854 feet 
mean sea level around Lake Sakakawea and above 1 ,620 feet mean sea level around Lake Oahe, 
excluding lands within the reservations. Because elevations do not provide a meaningful boundary 
for land descriptions, a registered and federally approved surveyor would be required to conduct 
surveys for the State and the Army Corp of Engineers in order to establish a defensible property 
boundary. 

When the property was originally purchased , a survey of the "take line" was not completed . 
Instead , lines were drawn along legal subdivisions which would encompass the above described 
elevations. This was a cost effective method of describing the property and provided easily 
described and manageable property boundaries. For example , a meandered metes and bounds 
property line would require fencing that is expensive to construct and maintain. 

There are several areas to carefully consider , 1 )  The cost of a metes and bounds survey, 2) how is 
that property boundary marked or separated , so the public or lessees know the line and 3) The 
costs for "State" to cost effectively manage the property. 

A metes and bounds survey would be extremely costly, especially now with surveyors in high 
demand because of energy development. The estimated cost of a metes and bounds survey of 
the attached land description would be approximately $1 5,000. There are about 1 80 miles of 
surveys on Lake Sakakawea and another 1 1 2 miles on the Oahe reservoir excluding the 
reservations. The total estimated cost would then be between $4 and $5 million . 

The cost of managing the property would also exceed the revenue from grazing leases. In 201 0  
the Army Corp received a total of $ 1 94,392 in rental . In lieu tax payments would be over $500,000 
and management expenses would exceed that amount. Managing this property would result 
significant cost to the "State". 



HB 1338 
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March 28, 2013 - Page 2 

South Dakota has accepted the property around several of the Missouri River reservoirs. However , 
in recognition of these costs, they did not accept the property unti l a Congress established a $ 1 08 
mi l lion trust fund which provides $4.5 - $6.5 mi l lion annually for management costs on 73,3 1 9  
acres. The North Dakota acreage which is the subject of this bi l l  wou ld be simi lar . 

While the prospect of State ownership of excess lands around the reservoirs is an appropriate 
po licy discussion , the conversation shou ld include recognition of the potential costs, jurisdictional 
chal lenges and management responsibi lities. 
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Date: 

urpose: 

i l l :  

M a rch 26,  2013 
Official  Written Testimony 
HB 1338 

Committee: G overnment a nd Veterans Affai rs 

The letter below is testimony submission for a DO NOT PASS recommendation on HB 1338. 

zt/ !I 

The Army Corp o f  Engineers (COE) has played an importa nt role in planning, designi ng, bu i lding a n d  operating water 
resou rces and other civi l works projects th roughout the nation.  In North Dakota, the COE has done the same 
m a i nta in ing a re latively strong relationship whi le preserving their authority throughout various projects inc luding La ke 
Sakakawea a nd the M issouri River below the dam. 

I n  total ,  the COE purchased a pproximately 550,000 acres necessary in ensu ring its project purposes of flood control, 
navigat ion,  hydropower, fish and wi ld l ife habitat, and recreation . Included in the purchase, were 155,000 acres from the 
Three Affi l iated Tri bes (TAT) and the remain ing 395,000 from state, public a nd private entities. 

HB 1338 forces the State of N orth Dakota into accepting "excess lands" deemed no longer needed for project purposes. 
The b i l l  is  flawed in many ways and reignites an age old battle waged to protect pub lic interests. To the publ ic's dismay 
we a re forced to explain yet aga in  the project purposes of the Pick-Sloan M issouri Basin Progra m .  

There Are No Excess Lands 

In the e arly 1990's when the TAT requested tra nsfer of "excess lands" the COE was persuaded to acknowledge their  
loose i nterpretation of excess lands. Between l itigation and reassessment, the COE deemed a l l  acres non excessive for 
the m an agement of the Garrison Dam. Then again between 2005 and 2006 the publ ic aga i n  successfu l ly  defended the 
defi n it ion of excess lands thwarting another attempt by the TAT requesting so-ca l led excess lands.  Fast forward to 2013 

e constituents of North  Dakota find themselves battling un informed and/or agenda drive n legislators in  the ha l ls of 
gress. 

Accord ing to the Merriam-Webster d ictionary, excess is defined as: 1 {a) the state or an instance of surpassing usual, 
proper, or specified limits. Therefore, the COE would need to fi nd proven lands "surpassing usual, proper, or specified 
l im its" of the p roject pu rposes. 

So let's look again at the project purposes of flood control, navigation, hyd ropower, fish and wildlife habitat, and 
recreation and explore their  specified l im its. 

By focusing on the bolded items it should a l ready be obvious no excess lands exist. For instance, in 2011 we l ived 
through an epic flood many thought cou ld never happen. The COE itself has acknowledged in media reports they may 
need to  acqu ire addit ional  acres for flood control purposes. Areas a long Lake Saka kawea and the M issouri River 
inc lud ing ca bins/homes, roads and other infrastructure were in need of closure and/or sand bagging. By defi nition of 
flood cont ro l  do you see any excess la nds ava i lable? The answer should be no. 

But if t hat is not compel l ing enough let's examine what the US Government defines recreation as: auto touring, biking, 
boating, camping, climbing, historic/cultural sites, educational purposes, fishing, fish factories, hiking, horseback riding, 
hunting, lodging, off-highway vehicle access, recreational vehicles, museum/visitor centers, water sports, wildlife viewing 
and winter sports. 
By a n a lyzing flood contro l, recreation, and fish and wild l ife habitat (without even mentioning the other obvious project 
purposes) ca n you honestly look anyone in the eye and say one acre of the 555,000 is surpassing the project purposes? 
The a nswer should be no. 

They a re many and to list them a l l  in  this summarized testimony wi l l  be burdensome as I need your focus on the 
item ized affects and/or effects of HB 1338 continued on page two. 
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The Affects/Effects of Tra nsferring Fictitious Excess Lands, contd . . .  

1. If lands were to somehow to be found in  excess they should never A) go to the State of North Dakota o r  B) go to 
the TAT. I nstead, the former owner or heir should have the right to purchase that land o r  receive by other 
agreed u po n  tra nsfer. 

2 .  Any transfer should b e  equitable a n d  ensure the project purposes o f  flood control, navigation, hydro power, fish 
and wi ld l ife and recreation a re maintained. 

3. What easements wi l l  be e nforced and maintai ned to ensure publ ic access to the l a ke for a l l  recreatio n ?  

4.  Counties receive payment in  l ieu of taxes off the publ ic land.  Emergency manage rs p lan fire, enforcement, 
ambu lance jurisdictions based on the current land structure. Roads wi l l  need to be m a i nta i ned.  Many other 
s imi lar  q uestions/concerns wi l l  arise. Who is going to ana lyze the affects before they become effects? 

5 .  Weed control, publ ic assets l i ke boat ram ps, shore l ines and recreation sites wi l l  requ i re ma intenance. Who is 
going to p rovide the fu nds and resources to maintai n  function, enforcement and access? 

6. North Dakota Game a n d  Fish (NDGF) laws exist on COE public land.  This transfer w i l l  open the door for the TAT 
to request lands. Triba l  government is vo latile and chances frequently. Cu rrently the NDGF and  TAT a re back 
negotiatin g  memorandums regardi ng fishing and hunting access. Who is going to explain the loss of free pub l ic  
recreation if/when the TAT acquires once pub l ic  lands? 

7. H B  1338 removes the transfer of so-ca l led excess lands from the boundaries of the TAT and Stand ing Rock 
Reservatio n .  H istory has proven the im portance in mentioning the COE's preconceived attem pt to transfer 
excess lands  to the tribes. Where is the support for my cla im? In 2005 the COE premature ly  determ ined there 
were so-ca l led excess la nds with in  the bounda ries of the TAT but NOT outside the boundary of the TAT. Does a 
ca rtogra ph ic  l ine on a map have that much bearing? It seems ironic that the TAT Cha i rman Tex Ha l l  traveled 
recently to Washington D.C. to request the COE to transfer excess lands to the TAT. If HB 1338 i l legit imately 
survives the Senate the ab i l ity to survive a nother hosti le takeover of publ ic lands wi l l  n ot be survived.  

8. Transfer of la nds should requ i re environmental impact studies a nd management p la ns. Why have these plans 
not been submitted prior to a requested tra nsfer? 

9 .  Many reasons above requ i re s pecific answers. Who wi l l  fund a metes and bounds  s u rvey of the lands to  be 
transferred? I n  prior testimony from 2005 i t  was  estimated to cost $4,500 per  mi le .  Whi le the specific transfer 
in HB 1338 is smal l  in nature we must th ink long term as HB 1338 wi l l  o pen the doors for more acres to be 
transferred to both the State and TAT. In 2005 the TAT proposed transfer of 828 m i les of shore l ine wou ld  cost 
$21 mi l l ion .  Take todays survey rates and you can expect the per mi le  cost to be m uch higher. 

10. It is o bvious the H ouse of Representatives did not review the Effects Ana lysis Report from the 2005-2006 TAT 
transfer requests. Has a nyone ta ken the time to contact the COE for their pr ior documentation? Has the COE 
itself show cased i nvolvement? Have they been forth coming with the recent req uests by Tex Ha l l ?  

Today, there a re a number of  stakeho lders with interests a nd concerns regard i ng pol ic ies i n  a n d  a round Lake Saka kawea 
a n d  the Missouri River. The corresponding land a long the waters has become a recreation  g ia nt, a mun ic ipal  and rura l  
water portal, a fish, wi ldl ife, a n d  conservation machine, a n  agriculture and ra nching sav ior, and a d i rect/ind i rect tax 
generator. 

If the passage of H B 1338 is a l lowed the very constituents tasked to protect North Dakota w i l l  have fa i led their  peop le .  
By s imple defi n it ion there a re no excess lands around Lake Sakakawea and the M issouri R iver. To force such assum ption 
upon the COE of w h ich they have shown poor judgment before wi l l  empower them to abandon the p roject purpose of 
recreation further deterioratin g  our  ab i l ity to fight downstream interests. The House of Representatives made a poor 
choice i n  passing H B  1338. The people trust the Senate wi l l  not make the same mistake. 

m Sandstrom 
13th Ave NW 

M inot, NO 58703 
701-471-2399 I tsandstrom @fishi ngbuddy.com 
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# I  
PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1338 

Page 1 ,  line 1 ,  after "A Bill" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to address conditions 

on private lands owned adjacent to lands under the control of the United States Army Cotps of 

Engineers. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. AUTHORITY OF THE BOARD OF UNIVERSITY AND 
SCHOOL LANDS. The boatd of university and school lands shall explote options to 
address the concems of landownets adjacent to land undet the control of United States 
Army Corps of Engineers surrounding Lake Sakakawea and Lake Oahe. This review shall 
include consideration of control of noxious weeds, protecting public access for hunting and 
fishing, the costs associated with making the transition, and the costs associated with 
maintaining any property that may become a responsibility of the state. Consideration shall 
also include the intetests of North Dakota tribes. The board of university and school lands 
may establish a task force of stakeholders including, but not limited to, landownets, hunting 
and fishing organizations, the game and fish department, the parks and tecteation 
department, the Notth Dakota National Guard, and other patties that utilize access through 
the lands.  The board o f  university and schools lands shall provide a report to legislative 
management by October 1 ,  2014 of the findings of this review. 

SECTION 2. APPROPRIATION. There is approptiated out o f  any moneys in 
the general fund in the state treasury, not othetwise apptopriated, the sum of $50,000, ot so 
much of the sum as may be necessary, to support the wotk of the task fotce tefetenced in 
section 1 of this bill." 

Renumber Accotdingly 




